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TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 12, 2013 9:54 A.M.

THE COURT: Connell Living Trust, P066425. All
right. Will evervybody make their appearances?

MR. MUGAN: Good morning, Your Honor, John Mugan,
10090, for Eleanor Connell Ahern.

MR. LUM: Good morning, Your Honor, Michael Lum,
bar number 12997, co-counsel with Mr. Mugan.

MR. POWELL: Good morning, Your Honor, Joey Powell
appearing on behalf of Jacqueline Montoya.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. So this is a
petition for declaratory judgment regarding limited
interest of the trust assets and then there was -- I'm not
sure 1f it was technically noticed for today, but we see on
here that there is something filed with respect to
referring this back to the Commissioner, but I didn’t know
if it was opposed, I didn’t know if there was anything else
filed on that one because --

MR. POWELL: Yeah, we filed --

THE COURT: -- that was kind of ccnfusing.
MR. POWELL: -- a response tc that.
MR. MUGAN: I believe there -- I believe you filed

a response Thursday and then we filed a reply yesterday in
a moment of brilliance. I didn’t realize yesterday was

Veteran’s Day when we got it Thursday and we filed 1t
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electronically yesterday. I don't know 1f our runner put
one in your drop box or not.
THE CQURT: Yeah and it hasn’t shown up yet in --

MR. MUGAN: I --that’s my fault. I apologize. I

THE COURT: Oh I see, yeah.

MR. MUGAN: Our office was open yesterday --

THE COURT: Right.

MR. MUGAN: -- and it didn’t dawn on me that it
was Veteran’s Day.

THE COURT: Yeah, exactly. Exactly. I remember
those days. Now that I'm a government employee, it’s a
little different.

So, with respect to that issue of referring it
back to the Commissioner —--

MR. MUGAN: I -- if I may, Your Honor? I think --

THE COURT: If it’s -~

MR. MUGAN: You know, I think it’s a relatively
simple issue. I think i1t needs to be handled first before
we start getting into the substantive issues. We didn’t
address the substantive issues because we filed this motion
and, quite frankly, after this motion, we’re going to be
filing a motion to dismiss on issue preclusion and some
other facts, but on this motion, and looking at it, I think

the saving grace 1is twofold.
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Number one, I don’t see any Landreth II1 problems.
I don’t think we need a super judge. So I don’t think we
have Landreth problems and I think the issue is solely in
yvour discretion. I mean, you can do whatever you want.

Our whole poilnt is -- and I practiced.law back 1in
the Midwest for 33 years and then came out here because all
of our children and grandchildren are here and I’ve
practiced here for 7 years and I never gquite understood how
Probate Court worked even though I appear there all the
time and this luckily has hopefully clarified some of 1t.

If you look at the law -- the Rule 4.16 of the
local rules, 1t basically says that you, as Probate Judge,
may hear whatever contested matters you select and you also
may refer any contested matters on the probate calendar to
a Master appointed by you for hearing and report. And
Nevada Rule of Civil Procedure 53 always gives the Court,
vou know, the power to appoint a Master in any case.

And then, granted it’s not a rule, 1it’s a proposed
rule on the new rules that have been redone and proposed
and they’re a long way from being adopted, but Rule 4.08
basically is a rule of the longstanding practice 1n Probate
Court. If the Probate Commissioner hears something and you
don’t request that it go to the Probate Judge, then you
live with the Probate Commissioner otherwise you’re going

to be doing forum shopping or the minute you get a bad

AA 1257




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

ruling, you want the Probate Judge and I know that’s not
the rule, but that’s the practice as I understand 1it.

And in this situation, back in 2009, exact same
case, case number, exact same trust, there was a petition
brought in part to construe and reform the trust. Sat down
for a hearing, and notice given, hearing date comes, an
order entered, notice of entry sent out, and that was 1t
and part of the order construed and reformed the trust.

Now we have 2013, one of the interested parties
comes back and basically says that her mother 1s only
entitled to 35 percent of the income from certain assets
and we believe that even though we have no problem with you
as a Judge, I’ve appeared before you a number of times, we
believe that the Probate Commissioner 1s the one that'’s
most familiar with 1it, has construed this and reformed it
previously. We think it should go before him, that he
should keep it. It would be just easier and simpler.

In the response Mr. Powell said it’s not a -- it
was not a contested matter. We searched and searched 1in
Nevada law, there is no definition of a contested matter.
I note —- like I said previously, this was all done on
notice, etcetera, etcetera. The order wasn’t stipulated
to. There was another interested party: Shriners
Hospital, and they were sent notice of the hearing. They

were sent notice of the notice of entry. They never
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stipulated. They never consented. There’s an email
attached to Mr. Powell’s response, Exhibit A, where the
attorney, Mr. Steadman, says that there is an interested
party, Shriners, they have the right to object, etcetera,
etcetera. They got notice of the hearing and also the
notice of the entry.

So we believe it was a contested matter that was
handled by the Probate Commissioner and now we’re coming
back four years later, same case, same trust, and we’ re
asking for a declare -- a declaration that my client’s only
entitled to 35 percent of the income and we belileve that
there is a substantive and direct connection between the
two matters and if you look at the pleadings in the 2009
case, you look at the consent of the party in this case,
Mr. Powell’s client, there are allegations and consents
that basically say trust number two has these assets and
our client is a lifetime beneficiary.

And so, there 1s a direct connection, direct
connection, and we believe that there may be issues of
reforming and construing the trust because we believe if
yvou look at the trust language and the facts and
circumstances, it was obviously the intent of the decedent,
W. N. Connell, that my client, his only child, be entitled
to income from these Texas assets which were his sole and

separate property that he brought into the marriage and he
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wanted to make sure that she receive the income for as long
as she lived and any alleged power of appointment that Mr.
Powell’s client 1s claiming that the second wife had was
specifically subject to that life estate.

So I think there’s reformation issues. There’s
construction issues. Like I saild, you know, regardless of
how you rule, we’re going to be filing a motion to dismiss
on issue preclusion, etcetera, but we believe that since
the Probate Commissioner handled it previocusly, the
longstanding practice, regardless of the proposed rules,
you as Probate Judge, have the right at any time to refer
the matter to a Master including the Probate Commissioner.

We Just think under the circumstances it would be
better if the Probate Commissioner handled it because he’s
familiar. I know vyou’ve got plenty of things to do. If
vou want the case, that’s fine, too. We don’t have any
problem with it; we Jjust think under this circumstance it
would be better 1f the Probate Commissioner handled it.

THE COURT: Okay. So, I guess just trying to
figure out procedurally where we are here, that motion 1s
technically not on calendar. I guess it’s been fully
briefed although the only thing that shows up in Odyssey 1is
the motion which, you know, we didn’t see noticed. It
didn’t show up at least on our calendar from Master

Calendar and an errata and I don’'t -- didn’t see an
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opposition or a reply. So, just, you know, for the record,
I don't know —-- Mr. Powell, do you want to be heard on the

issue of whether this is really appropriately before this

Court --

MR. POWELL: Yeah and --

THE COURT: -- and why you -- I guess, because —--
it’s here because you requested that it be here. 5o, --

MR. POWELL: Yeah. In terms of the motion, their
motion, you know, it’s up to you. We’ve already briefed
it. We’ve filed our response. Even though it had the
heading of motion to reference back, it had substantive
arguments. So I took it as though that was an objection to
our petition. It was basically pleading in the alternative
of here’s our argument that we -- you know, we don’t want -
- we want this to go back to the Commissioner to hear these
arguments.

THE COURT: And so then that really I guess gets
us really to the issue here which 1s =--

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- and I think that’s what Mr. Mugan
was —-—

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- referencing that in 2009, & certain
action was taken, -—--

MR. POWELL: Yeah.
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THE COURT: -- and now in 2013 there was a
petition for declaratory relief.

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: SO ——

MR. POWELL: We have that petition because 33
vears of precedent and status gquo 1s now being changed and
that’s the issue before us i1s there’s -- there was --
again, 33 years of a 65/35 split of the income from oil,
gas, and mineral rights in Texas and suddenly in basically
June/July, Ms. Ahern decides: ©No, I'm entitled to 100
percent. That 65/35 that I’'ve been living with for 33
vears, I don’t want to abide by that anymore. No logic, no
reason, nothing, Jjust I'm keeping 100 percent now. Okay?
Well, that changes the status quo and --

THE COURT: Okay. So the issue 1s —-- because 1
think kind of the argument they were arguing here is that
if —-

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- you’re going to oppose this order
reforming the trust back in 2009, --

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- the process should have been
followed in 2009 to do that; there was no such process.
But the point is she didn’t do anything until 2013.

MR. POWELL: Well, no, actually the 2009 had no
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effect on the 65/35 split.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. POWELL: That -- the whole point of what 09
did was to add provisions and that was the key. It added
provisions to the trust to basically say: These are the
remainder beneficiaries after Ms. Ahern’s death which
wasn’t first spelled out. It was easily inferred that it
would go to her issue, it was just spelled out because it
wasn’t addressed. So that was the point of the reformation
was to say we need to -- we should probably Jjust handle
this now so that there’s no issues that arise later.

THE COURT: So -- and so there’s nothing that
happened in 2009 that would have prompted any kind of an
appeal? You’re not like —--

MR. POWELL: No.

THE COURT: ~-- it’s not like [indiscernible] --

MR. POWELL: There was nothing wrong with it.

THE COURT: -- to do a late appeal of that earlier

MR. POWELL: Exactly. ©None of that 1s beilng
appealed at all and that’s why a consent was signed to say:
We’re fine with it, spelling out the fact that my sister
and I are the remainder beneficiaries of trust number two.
No problem.

T mean, that -- it basically was to their benefit

10
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to have that go into effect because basically it’s spelled
out.

Not -- again, it was -- if you read the trust, the
language clearly inferred that that was the normal way that
it would go, it just -- it didn’t expressly state it and
that was the issue of the reformation.

THE COURT: If there -- Mr. Mugan’s point that
traditionally if a matter starts out with the Probate
Commissioner, it stays with the Probate Commissioner unless
you think some sort of -- you know, he has no authority to
hear a jury trial for example. So that’s -- it’s got to
come up here. And the way it’s always been handled, as he
pointed out, you know, 1t hasn’t ever been really clear how
we’/ re going to handle probate. It’s just sort of been
grafted on as a —--

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: =-- vyou know, to a highbred of what
part of District Court it was going to be and no real clear
rule.

So I guess the point is what you’re seeking now 1is
instead of filing a new action, there’s -- you don’t file a
new action, 1t stays under the old action, --

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- which -- like probate cases never

close.

11
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MR.

THE

MR.

THE

MR.

POWELL:

COURT :

POWELTL:

COURT:

POWELL:

affirmatively —--

THE

MR.

off and then,

back. But,

until --
THE
MR,
THE
MR,
THE
MR.
THE

MR,

COURT :

POWELL:
in that case,

absent that,

COURT:

POWELL:

COURT :

POWELL:

COURT:

POWELL:

COURT :

POWELL:

Right.
They are never =--
Not -—-

over.

-- 1n a trust situation unless you

Right.

-- request that jurisdiction be taken

veah,

We’ve got a case from --
-— somebody --

-—- 1972.
Yeah.
So, I mean, --—

Yeah.
-— I -- it -- they just never

They never end unless you do

something affirmative =--

THE

MR.

THE

COURT:

POWELL:

COURT:

Right.

vou’ve got to get jurisdiction

it just continues forever

end.

~-—- to get rid of jurisdiction.

Right.

old case number because that jurisdiction --

MR.

POWELL:

That --

12

So you had to file under the
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THE COURT: The Court’s got jJurisdiction there.
so fine.

MR. POWELL: Jurisdiction still exists. Yep.

THE COURT: OXkay.

MR. POWELL: Yep.

THE COURT: So, now 1t gets to the next point --

MR. POWELL: Yep.

THE COURT: -- which 1s who ig really the most
appropriate person to hear the case?

MR. POWELL: Right and --

THE COURT: I mean, because that really seemed
like that was --

MR. POWELL: -- basically 1t’s not a knock on
Commissioner Yamashita, i1it’s really a situation of it’s an
urgent, pressing matter that we get a determination now and
it’s something that we feel that vyou’'re clearly capable of
handling. There’s not -- there’s no special expertise
which, vyou know, obviously you have -- you can do as you
choose, but there’s no special expertise that’s required
that Commissioner Yamashita would bring to this that you
otherwise don’t possess.

So, really, it’s a matter of efficiency and
urgency because we need an order, not Jjust a report and
recommendation, as soon as possible because we’ve got big

money at stake here, we have reliance on these

13
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distributions, and as Mr. Goodsell pointed out with his
case, 1t’s a situation that you can be a war of attrition
because these monies are being choked off that they have
been relying on, my client and her sister, basically for
the last four years when they stepped into the shoes then
of their grandmother, Marjorie, who had for the previous 29
vears been receiving 65 percent of oil, mineral, and gas

income.

THE COURT: Okay. S50 that —--

MR. POWELL: ~-- the whole point is —--

THE COURT: The guestion is --

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- vyou know, is this -- I can’t think
of any other way to frame it and I don’t know 1if Mr. Mugan
necessari}y accused you of this, but is this forum
shopping? Because that’s what I want to make real clear.

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: You’'re not seeking to —--

MR. POWELL: Not —-- no.

THE COURT: -- reform anything that Commissioner
Yamashita has previously done?

MR. POWELL: No.

THE COURT: It’s just a gquestion: Who 1s more

perfect to hear this? So what are you looking for because

14
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MR. POWELL: We’re looking for --

THE COURT: -- if you’re looking for it to be
decided on just, you know, the pleadings or is this
something where you need some discovery and an evidentiary
hearing?

MR. POWELL: I think we’re good with the pleadings
because --

THE COURT: Because 1t’s a petition for
declaratory relief.

MR. POWELL: I think we’re good with the
pleadings. We can’t -- we -- there’s nothing further that
I can submit to you in terms of testimony or anything else
other than to -- and I don’t think this is being contested
and 1f it is, then I’m super surprised because we have tax
returns all the way up through 2012 showing a 65/35 split.
It’s been that way for the last 33 years; only over the
summer has this now changed. So, the issue 1s pretty black
and white there.

The other thing is on the one tax return we have
which we can’t locate the Form 706. The IRS has been
asked. They don’t have a copy of it. It was prepared
here. The preparer doesn’t have a copy of it and, I mean,
how can you really expect 1it? It was a -- from ‘'79/'80.

So, I mean, that’s going back a long time to try to get

15
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form way back before we had electronic -- saving documents
through electronic means. So, we just don’t have 1it.

But going back to that return that was filed, 1t
shows a 65/35 split. That’s the way, again, it’s gone
since 1980 when Mr. Mugan’s client became a co-trustee of
the trust. So we’ve got the precedent. There’s nothing
more than we can declare.

THE COURT: What was going on in Texas? That was
another point where I wasn’t quite clear if --

MR. POWELL: There was a ——- oh —-

THE COURT: -- there was maybe a -- and, like I
said, I don’t want to accuse anybody of forum shopping, --

MR. POWELL: Sure. Jure.

THE COURT: -- but it seemed like there was a
concern about that that might be some forum shopping.

MR. POWELL: Yeah, I don't know if you could call
it forum shopping. The issue there was the fact that there
-— it was Texas property and it's —--

THE COURT: Right.

MR. POWELL: -- related to Texas real estate.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. POWELL: So I think that was the issue there
is covering all bases because I -- 1it’s basically a
situation where, again, you have 33 years of the status quo

and then all of a sudden the plug is pulled and then the

16
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question is: Wait a second, how do we put the plug bac
in? And so, that was part of it was basically I think

simply getting a declaratory ruling there on the 1ssue.

k

Just

There’s -- the accusations, you know, -- and it

upsets me when there’s not full disclosure given. There

was a mistake made in the Texas filings and immediately
upon the Texas attorney realizing the mistake, it was -
there was a phone call made, 1t was corrected.

So 1it’s a half-truth to say: Well, you tried
in bad faith, vyou tried to avert this and done this.
Nobody has ever made any assertion that Ms. Ahern is no

the adopted daughter of Marjorie Connell, not -- that'’s

t

not

even an issue. They spent time briefing the issue somehow

trying to establish that. It’s not a -- 1t’s a nonissue.
The Texas return -- the Texas filing was simply a
mistake. Texas counsel didn’t realize it. Upon being

notified he made a mistake called opposing counsel and
I made a mistake. You know, your client is clearly thi
That was my error as the drafting attorney and that’s 1
It wasn’t in bad faith. Nobody is looking to hoodwink
anybody or do anything like that.

The situation that we have here 1s we need an
order and so —--

THE COURT: Well but I guess my guestion --

MR. POWELL: -- going back to --

17

said

S -

t.
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THE COURT: -- is it you’re --

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- trying to get a different order
here from --

MR. POWELL: No.

THE CQURT: -- what you’re getting out of Texas =--

MR. POWELL: No.

THE COURT: -- because what i1s the Texas --

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- going to be asked to do?

MR. POWELL: Yeah. No, I’'m glad to kind of bring
vou up to speed on that.

Basically, the Texas proceeding has essentially
been simply stayed. Ms. Ahern has Texas coungel. They had
a mediation there. It was unsuccessful. The last report I
got 1s basically Texas is just kicking the can down
basically saying: No, really, Nevada should probably be
deciding this because that’s where the trust has
Jurisdiction.

So, my understanding is that whole proceeding 1is
just simply stayed pending this outcome.

THE COURT: Okay. So, I guess then what are you
looking for? Are you looking --

MR. POWELL: We’re looking for a declaratory --

THE COURT: I guess —-

18
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MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- my question is: What’'s the
procedure that you think would be followed and who i1s more
appropriately, I guess, set up to hear that? If it’s a
matter of having a hearing and putting this evidence on,
because, I mean, when you’'re seeking declaratory relief, 1t
seems to me that -- I mean, you can get a declaratory
judgment basically on the pleadings, but I think that
they’ve got -- you know, their initial response was: We
think this has to go back to the Commissioner because there
is -- this has already been determined and I understand
your position is that that order didn’t really determine
anything that effects —--

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- this issue that you’ve got golng on
right now, -—--

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COQURT: -- but they’ve indicated that their
next step is they want to file a motion to dismiss this
because they think that it does. So, —--

MR. POWELL: Which I think is something --

THE COURT: -- logistically, what’s the schedule?

MR. POWELL: Which I think is something that you
can basically handle right now just by looking at the

pleading that the petition that was filed, nowhere in that

19
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petition is there any declaration of basically asking for -
- them, in their prayer, asking for declaration that Ms.
Ahern has 100 percent interest in that income. It’s solely
a reformation petition saying: We want to add provisions
so that it’s clear who the remainder beneficiaries of trust
number two are and that’s another key function.

The whole thing was -- this was -- and 1t gets a
little confusing because they use the term trust one, trust
two, trust three. Trust one was essentially just when both
of the settlers were living, they refer to that as trust
one, basically an undivided trust. Then at the first
death, which was Mr. Connell, they did a division of the
trust number two, trust number three. Trust numpber three
was the survivor’s trust along with a marital trust because
back at that time there was no such thing as what we do now
with the martial trust as being the third sub trust. BSo,
it basically -- whatever was determined to me the marital
monies for purposes of tax deferment went into the
survivor’s trust. Trust number two was essentially the
decedent’s trust.

So, when they were reforming the trust, the
provisions that they were adding to were dealing with trust
number two. That’s another issue as well and what they did
is basically -- and, again, I'm not saying anything that’s

not in the pleadings and then in the accompanying order.
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All they sought was to act -- basically what I would say
clarification provisions saying: At the death of Ms. Ahern
that Jacqueline Montoya and her sister, Kathryn, would be
the residuary beneficiaries of that trust. It also
basically prescribed the way that that trust would be
administered for Jacqueline and Kathryn, and then it also
prescribed as well that -- who would be the successor
trustees of trust number two upon Ms. Ahern’s death.

Currently Ms. Ahern is the only trustee of trust
number two. So, that’s what that 09 petition did. It had
nothing to do with a declaration of rights saying: Ms.
Ahern now owns 100 percent of the income. My client and
her sister would have never agreed to that. That wasn’t
even remotely in the mindset of why they would agree to
that. It wasn’t even —-- it wasn’t being asked.

And so, in my response to their motion, again,
relying entirely on a consent? You’re consenting to the
prayer. The prayer is the substance of the petition. Any
other facts that get thrown in are irrelevant. You're --
again, the substance of the petition 1s the prayer. We all
know that. The only thing that can be in the order is
what’s asked for in the relief, 1n the prayer.

So, they had no reason to object to that. That’s
why they signed consents. Yeah, fine, add in the

clarifying language. We want it. It’s not detrimental to
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them.

And to the assertion, again, that contested, we're
on two different wavelengths then in terms of what
contested means because the whole point of the approved
list in Probate Court 1s there 1s not an objection filed,
therefore -- meaning there 1s no contest to what’s being
asked for and the fact that you have to give notice and a
notice of a hearing, well, you have to do that for every
petition, and the fact that you don’t necessarily secure
consents from anybody, that doesn’t defer it from being put
on the approved list, which this was. There was no oral
argument at this hearing. It was -- the order got rubber
stamped. So, that’s --

THE COURT: Well I =--

MR. POWELL: -- my point i1s this is not a --

THE COURT: But I guess the --

MR. POWELL: ~-- contested matter.

THE COURT: -- point, as I understood it, the
point that was being made about shouldn’t this be heard by
the Commissioner is isn’t he the more perfect person to
make that determination of when I entered that order 1in
2009 granting this reforming of the trust it was or was not
addressing an ultimate issue here and I understand your
point that you don’t want to go through that process and

then have to object to that report and recommendation and
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then come up here, but it seems like that’s kind of the
suggested method --

MR. POWELL: Well, --

THE COURT: -- that Mr. Mugan is --

MR. POWELL: Yeah, and I'm not sure why.

THE COURT: -- seeking.

MR. POWELL: I don’t really understand. They are
two separate things. 1It’s apples and oranges what’s golng
on here and so I don’t think there’s any need to clarify
because the order itself doesn’t reference any declaration.

Tf you read the order, it doesn’t reference any declaration

about: Oh Ms. Ahern 1is 100 percent -- has 100 percent
interest in these o0il, mineral, and gas rights. It doesn’t
say that. The only thing it says -- and that’s, again, 1f

the Commissioner looks at the order, there’'s --

THE COURT: And certainly 1t --

MR. POWELL: -—-- nothing vyou can ever infer from
that.

THE COURT: -- would seem that if she had thought
that it did, she would have taken that action in 2009.

MR. POWELL: Exactly. Exactly.

MR. MUGAN: Your Honor, if 1t --

THE COURT: That’s a good point. Thanks.

MR. MUGAN: I don’t mean to interrupt Mr. Powell,

but --
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MR. POWELL: But so --

MR. MUGAN: This is a really important 1ssue,
really important.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MUGAN: And you look at the petition that was
filed in 2009 and here’s what it says 1n part:

Trust number two owned land and oil and gas shares
in reserve and 1ncome located in Upton County, excuse
me, Texas.

That’s what we’re talking about in this
declaration, petition today, and paragraph 19 of that
petition in 2009 says:

Pursuant to Article 4", and they’re referring to

Article 4" of the Trust Agreement, which article
governs the administration of trust number two, all
income from the oil assets is to be paid to the
petitioner, and the petitioner is my client, as the
residual beneficiary during her lifetime.

I agree it’s black and white. It’s already been
decided and that was stated in the 2009 petition and Mr.
Powell and his clients say: Doesn’t have anything to do
with it. Doesn’t have anything to do with it. It’s got
everything to do with 1it.

And you look at their consent that his client

signed, she not only consents to it, she makes an
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affirmative statement and says:
I am a contingent income beneficiary of the trust.
I have read the petition and believe it to be true and
correct to the best of my knowledge. I hereby consent
to the petition and request that the Court enter an
order approving the petition in its entirety.

I don't know how the two of them aren’t related.
That’s what we’re arguing about 1n his declaratory
petition. My client’s not entitled to all of the income.
The order that was entered in 2009, it’s based on the
petition with affirmative allegations which his client
consented to and she even admits she’s the contingent
income beneficiary.

So, how you can say they’re completely separate
and distinct and how this shouldn’t be handled by the
Probate Commissioner, at least the motion to dismiss since
he’ s the one who handled the previous matter, I -- in my
limited intellect, I don’t see it. I think they’'re
intricately -- there’s a substantive, intricate
relationship between that action and what was done and pled
in there and what they’re asking for now.

And, you know, I don’t want to get into
substantive matters because basically we’re just asking for
a motion here. We really didn’t address the substantive

matters -—-
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THE COURT: Well but see [indiscernible] me. The
motion that you filed isn’t technically on my calendar
today.

MR. MUGAN: Right. Right. And I think he said
that it was all right and we can go ahead with it unless 1
misunderstood him.

MR. POWELL: No, let’s do it. Let’s do 1t. 1It’s
fine. I briefed it. I'm --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. POWELL: -- fine with it. So let’s go.

THE COURT: Okay. But I haven’t seen your brief.

MR. POWELL: My response?

THE COURT: Yeah. Haven’t seen 1t.

MR. POWELL: Okay.

THE COQOURT: So, you know, that’s my problem is
that --

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- we’ve got this fugitive motion out
there that wags filed and not calendared, but if the parties
feel that it’s appropriate to address 1t, then I guess we
can address it and -- because then I think we get down then
to the next point which is it sounds to me that even if

this Court keeps jurisdiction, that Mr. Mugan wishes to

file his motion to dismiss, that -- and 1t seems to me that
the declaratory judgment action then -- 1it’s kind of a
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countermotion almost to it that you’re seeking -- your
petitioner seeks declaratory Jjudgment and their opposition
ig: No, we oppose that and our countermotion is that there
is -- there’s already been a ruling on this essentially by
the Commissioner, despite the fact that she didn’t act on
it for four years, there’s a ruling from the Commissioner
in 2009 that governs this, that she’s acting under the
authority of. So, this should have already been decided.

MR. POWELL: Which I would have no problem with
except let’s read the order.

THE COURT: Right. Okay.

MR. POWELL: The order doesn’t correct any of
that.

THE COURT: I'm not --

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: I don’t really want to get to the
merits, but I’'m trying to figure out the procedure what we
are trying --

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- to do here today.

MR. MUGAN: Excuse me, Your Honor, but maybe the
answer 1s to kick it out two weeks, give the Court an
opportunity to read the pleadings and then we come back and
try and answer whatever guestions you have. If that -- if

that’s agreeable to Mr. Powell and you, I'm willing to do
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whatever the Court wants to do.

THE COURT: OQOkay. Well because see -- and I agree
that with the -- the first thing to be decided is who’s
going to hear it. 1Is this something that’s more

appropriate for this Court to hear? Is i1t more appropriate

for this to be referred to the Commissioner to hear and

then seek this -- you know, appeal any report and
recommendations?
Mr. Powell’s clients are =-- you know, position is:

We want this to go faster. We don’t want the additional
built-in delay of getting a report and recommendation and
then doing an appeal on that.

MR. POWELL: Yes.

THE COURT: We want this all decided now. We
think the Court can hear all of it. Both the guestion of
was this in fact previously ruled on by the Commissioner,
that’s -- basically, that’s the opposition to the petition
of declaratory relief is: No, you can’t have this ruling
that you’re seeking because it’s already ruled on by the
Commissioner and you’ve lost it or you consented to the
action that she’s taking now, whatever the opposition is.
It sort of seems to me that procedurally that’s where we
are with it that --

MR. MUGAN: Well, vyeah, I didn’t intend to do

that. What I intended to do is take it one step at a time.
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I think the first question is who is this matter
going to be heard by: Your Honor or the Probate
Commissioner? And so that’s the issue that I was trying to
get decided and then whoever 1t 1s going to be, whether
it’s you or Commissioner Yamashita, then we’re going to
file our motion to dismiss based on issue preclusion.

I think the first step is to decide whether this
Court or the Probate Commissioner is going to handle this
matter and then the next step is for me to either file the
motion to dismiss or an opposition.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Well, so then 1if
you’ re prepared to have this unfiled motion -- or unnoticed
motion ruled on now, I appreciate the point, Mr. Mugan,
that practice has been that if the Commissioner hears
something, then it’s going to -- he’s going to continue the
hearing. You know, whether he actually took action on
this, he signed an order on something that was unopposed
and consented to. I think ultimately whatever he would rule
on issue preclusion would be appealed up here anyway. The
request has been made by these petitioners that we skip
that step and just come here. So I’'1ll grant the
petitioner’s request and I’11 hear the -- I’'11 keep
jurisdiction over this and we’ll keep this motion here.

So, respectfully, deny the motion to remand back to the

Commissioner.
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Now we have this question of this petition for
declaratory relief --

MR. MUGAN: TIf I may --

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. MUGAN: Pardon me, Your Honor, 1f I may say
one thing?

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MUGAN: I just want to clarify the record. If
part of your ruling is based on the fact that it was on the
approved list and rubber stamped, I don’t think there’s
ever been any showing of that. In fact, I don’t think that
was an allegation in his response on that. This, today, is
the first time I’ve heard that. So, I just --

MR. POWELL: It was -—-—

MR. MUGAN: -- want to clarify the record.

MR. POWELL: It was addressed. I can’t say with
100 percent certainty because I haven’t located a
transcript of that, but I can say with nearly 99.99 percent
certainty it would have been on the approved list and there
would not have been additional oral argument and that
implication is addressed in my response. So 1t’s not the
first time I'm raising it here.

MR. MUGAN: I just wanted the record to reflect
that, Your Honor.

THE COURT: It’s likely that it wasn’t because

30

AA 1283




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

there’s no minutes.
THE CLERK: There are minutes. If you go ahead

and click on it, it’s just it 1s so old, it didn’t locate

it.
THE COURT: I didn’t see minutes.
THE CLERK: Here’s the -- you’re clicking too far.
THE COURT: Oh.
THE CLERK: They just didn’t go over because -—-
THE CLERK: Yeah, it says: Matter being on the
approved list there being no objection.
MR. POWELL: Yeah.
THE COURT: So 1t was on the approved list.
MR. POWELL: It was on the approved list, yeah.
THE COURT: Okay.
MR. MUGAN: Very good.
THE COURT: 211 right. So, anyway I don’t see any
reason to send it back to him and then -- because the

request is of the petitioner’s that it be heard here and we
skip that step. Okay, fine.

So having -- moving on then, I think though, Mr.
Powell, that the point is, and I don’t know, Mr. Mugan,
what -- I appreciate your position being that we have to
take this step by step. First you have to see, you know,
our -- we have the right to oppose this and our opposition

is going to be that this has already been decided. 5o
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however you want to present that because the -- otherwise
it’s a petition for declaratory relief which is you need to
oppose 1t or file some -- whatever -- and I guess my
question is: Do you view this as something that requires -
- that can all be done on affidavits becausec it’s strictly
a legal issue? Do you need testimony?

MR. MUGAN: No, I think it’s going to need
testimony if we -- you know, if we get to that point. I
really think there’s going to need to be some evidence.
There’s two sides —-

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MUGAN: -- to every story and you need to hear
her side of the story.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MUGAN: My client’s side.

THE COURT: All right. So, is it something that
requires any kind of -- is it more like a preliminary
matter like an injunction hearing where you don’t need
discovery first or are you going to need discovery? This
is just what --

MR. MUGAN: Oh I --

THE COURT: =-- I'm trying to Jjust figure out 1s
how we schedule this and set this up procedurally to go
forward.

MR. MUGAN: I think we’re going to need some
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discovery.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Powell.

MR. POWELL: No. I don’t need any. I mean, 1t --
Mr. Mugan was just saying a moment ago that it’s black and
white, 1it’s already been decided, and now we're saying 1t’s
not. So, --

THE COURT: Right.

MR. POWELL: -- I think --

THE COURT: So I guess the —-

MR. POWELL: We don’t need discovery on our end.
There’s nothing more we can offer to establish that 33
vears of precedent has been established. There’s nothing
more that we can go by.

If that’s what we’re intending to raise that issue
that it was done improperly back then, I don’t know what
more we can go to than saying that this is the way that
it’s been done and, really, at the basis of what we're
asking for is if they want to now dispute that 65/35, let -
- what we would ask is put -- let’s go back to the status
quo and then we’1l haggle it out from there, but it’s not
fair to have my clients, my client choked off from
receiving what they’ve been -- what she’s been getting for
the last four years, her grandmother has been getting for
the previous 29 years and that’s the issue.

I’m not sure how the delay benefits anybody. To
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me, this is something you want declared now. Both sides

apparently feel it’s black and white. So let’s go. I

mean, again, there’s nothing more we can offer than what

we’ve already established. I can give -- we can provide

tax returns. Those are just pleadings. There’s no

testimony that can be offered in that regard.

It’s precedent. It’s been 33 years of this split.

If that’s -- if that issue -- I don’t think that issue

in dispute. If the issue in dispute 1is: Well, 1t

1S

shouldn’t have been that way, okay, fine. Then that’s up

to them now to change what’s been, but you can’t just,
again, pull the plug and then go: No, I'm not putting

back in. It doesn’t work that way and —-

it

THE COURT: Okay. So you’re seeking some sort of

MR. MUGAN: Your Honor, —-

MR. POWELL: That’s why I’'m seeking the

declaratory —-

THE COURT: -- preliminary --

MR. POWELL: -- judgment is so that we can go back
to the trustee -- trustee, again, not beneficiary, the

trustee and say: This must be honored. 1It’s a 65/35
split. What --
THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MUGAN: The --
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THE COURT: So vyou’re looking for a preliminary
relief which is to maintain the status quo --

MR. POWELL: Exactly.

THE COURT: -- pending a determination on the
underlying issue?

MR. POWELL: Exactly. Exactly.

THE COURT: Okay. Got it. Thanks.

MR. MUGAN: Your Honor, it’s black and white I
think in my motion to dismiss, that issue preclusion.
That’s what I mean when it’s black and white. If they get
over that hurdle, then I think there’s evidentiary issues.

You know, he keeps talking about urgency and
returning to the status quo, his client -- and if you look
at their petition, they state that my client is entitled to
at least 35 percent, at least 35 percent -- no argument
about that.

MR. POWELL: No argument about that.

MR. MUGAN: No argument.

MR. POWELL: Nope. NoO.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. MUGAN: Her Texas attorney sends a letter to
all of the oil companies —--

THE COURT: When you say her 1in Texas, you mean
the petitioners?

MR. MUGAN: She had -- the petitioner. Not Mr.
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Powell, but her Texas attorney sends a letter to all of the
01l companies paying the royalties, encloses copies of the
petition up here, and doesn’t say: There’s 65 percent in
dispute, we want you to hold the 65 percent. ©No. The
letter says: There’s a dispute, we want you to hold it
all. You know, even though there’s no dispute about my
client getting 35 percent, we want you to hold it all. And
what did the oil companies do? They hold until we show
them the petition and try and convince them and the biggest
one is Apache, the one who really pays the money and we
haven’t convinced them yet that they should release the 35
percent.

So this urgency and return to the status gquo, 1it’s
a little fuzzy, a little fuzzy because they claim they want
it but yet they tie us up.

MR. POWELL: Let’s go back to ©5/35 and we’re

done.

MR. MUGAN: No.

MR. POWELL: And then we can go —-

MR. MUGAN: That’s not going to happen because
it’s =--

MR. POWELL: Oh, so give us our money but you keep
yours.

THE COURT: One at a time.

MR. POWELL: Okay.
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THE COURT: So, Mr. Mugan, I guess my problem -- 1
guess it’s -- I'm just trying to understand --

MR, MUGAN: Right.

THE COURT: -- procedurally how we’re going to go
forward. The petition for declaratory relief doesn’t seek
an emergency finding. It is emergency relief saying, you
know, at least maintain the status guo pending a
resolution.

MR. MUGAN: No.

THE COURT: But it sounds to me like that might be
a perfectly reasonable option to order -- enter a
preliminary order saying: Let’s maintaln the status quo
and we’1l make a determination as to who is correct.

MR. MUGAN: Well, I think if you want to go that -
- down that line, down that path, and there’s no argument
that my client’s entitled to 35 percent. There’s a dispute
over the 65 percent and whose it’s going to go to. The oil
company holds 65 percent until the dispute is determined.
That would seem to be more logical to me than to kind of
make a predetermination and then say: Well, we’re golng to
give them o0b percent.

There’s reasons for what happened in the past, the
33 years, and I’11 be glad to get into them 1if you want me
to but then we’re starting to get into substantive issues

and stuff, but there’s reasons, there’s explanations,
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there’s reasons why it changed. There’s Nevada statutes
that we can cite, etcetera, but I don’t want to get into
the substantive 1ssues.

But addressing your point, what’s in dispute 1is
the 65 percent. If anything, I would think you just hold

that -- hold the 65 percent and that doesn’t go to anybody

THE COURT: Well, here’s my question and this 1is
why I asked earlier, 1s there some forum shopping going on
here because what’s happening in Texas? Is this Texas
attorney just takes it on himself to send an order -- tO
send around a petition that hasn’t even got an order
attached to it and oil companies act on that?

MR. POWELL: There’s an obligation because they
don’t want to payout to anybody anytime there’s a dispute
and that’s the whole thing is -- it’s -- if they don’t,
there’s issues there with them not having notified that
there’s a dispute as to these.

The oil companies, like anything else, it’s almost
kind of like an interpleader. They want to be informed:
Wait a second. Okay. There’s disputes here, you better
notify us.

And I -- if -- and I could be mistaken and so
please don’t hold me to this, but I believe there’s some

boiler plate in there -- in these contracts that are
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voluminous basically saying if there’s any other claims
going on here, you better notify us immediately. That's my
understanding of the way it’s done. I’'m not a Texas
authority. I don't know --

THE COURT: I don’t think any of us would hold
ourselves out to be authority for --

MR. POWELL: Yeah, and the whole --

THE COURT: =-- Texas 0il and gas law.

MR. POWELL: -- o0il and gas -- and, I mean, that’s
really almost a Texas-based --

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. POWELL: I mean, that’s -- Texas 1s oil
country.

THE COURT: It is its own thing.

MR. POWELL: Yeah. It’s its own entity.

So the -- it’s not an issue of simply retaliating
or anything like that. 1It’s basically giving notice to
this third party to say: I'm putting you on notice, you
know, and basically there’s a dispute. We have a dispute
here from the way it was being originally anticipated and
going.

So, I mean, --

MR. MUGAN: I’ve been through those leases and
I’ve been through those addendums and they’re about that

thick and, again, don’t hold me to it, but I sure don’t

39

AA 1292




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

remember any provision like that and this attorney 1is
representing Ms. Montoya down there in Texas and I presume
he wouldn’t be doing anything without her direction and
consent.

THE COURT: Okay. But here’s my question is
procedurally, how do we go forward? If there’s Dbeen some
action taken, and it sounds to me like Texas Court doesn’t
-- Probate Court doesn’t want to take jurisdiction over
this, they will honor any order entered if that’s what the
point is. Then the question is: At this point in time, 1s
there any proper order? Because 1s what they’re -- 1s what
the oil and gas companies are doing in reaction to this
premature? There has been no finding that anybody 1is
entitled to any of this money other than I think it says
pretty clearly that everybody agrees that 35 percent goes
to Eleanor. Nobody disputes the 35 percent to Eleanor.

So, Mr. Powell’s suggestion is let’s just go back
to the status quo and I understand, Mr. Mugan, your
opposition to that is the undisputed portions should be
distributed but if you distribute the disputed portion,
there’s no way for your client to get it back if ultimately
it’s determined it 1is hers.

MR. MUGAN: Well, I don’t think that was
requested.

THE COURT: Okay.
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MR. MUGAN: You know, I think we’re going way
beyond what we were here today for, number one.

Number two, Texas --

THE COURT: What we are here today for technically
is an unopposed motion for declaratory relief.

MR. MUGAN: Well, I am appearing personally to
oppose 1it.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MUGAN: Texas has not turned down
jurisdiction, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MUGAN: What happened was that petition was
filed. My client was never given any notice of it. The
will was admitted to probate and the -- Ms. Montoya was
appointed personal representative down there.

THE COURT: Why would the will be admitted to
probate in Texas? I mean, nobody lived in Texas, did they?

MR. POWELL: I think those rights -- dealing with
the rights --

THE COURT: Right, but nobody lived in Texas?

MR. MUGAN: I don’t understand that either, Your
Honor.

MR. POWELL: Well it was Jjust --

MR. MUGAN: Died a Nevada --

MR. POWELL: It was —-
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MR. MUGAN: -- resident.

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: I was going to say she’s a Nevada
resident.

MR. POWELL: I -- yeah, I think it’s like anything
else. It’s an ancillary proceeding dealing with property
rights or something there. You know, obviously, same thing
here, if somebody owns a house -- mineral rights in Las
Vegas or water rights, I guess would be more approprilate
out here --

MR. MUGAN: But property rights were owned by the
trust. There’s no dispute about that. You know, why you
would go to Texas and then have a false or 1ncorrect
allegation in there and get yourself appointed down there
and try and get the will admitted to probate down there
without noticing my client and the will is the document
that they claim exercised this power of appointment where
my client, you know, doesn’t get all the rights -- all of
the money and as soon as my client finds out about it, they
file a -- they intervene and file a motion basically to set
it aside, etcetera, and the matter was scheduled for
hearing and, as I understand it, an expert witness was
supposed to testify, had serious health problems, 1is
hospitalized, and so they continued the hearing

indefinitely until the expert witness who is hopefully
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available to testify. Texas has never said -- turned down
jurisdiction; has never said we’ll do whatever Nevada
tells. That i1s just not correct.

MR. POWELL: Well, one 1s a probate matter and one
is not a probate matter. The trust matter 1s this matter;
the probate matter for Marjorie Connell is a Texas matter.
I don’t think there’s -- I think it’s clear they are two
separate things. So I’'m not sure -- I am not even sure
what the relevance of Texas as opposed to what we’re asking
for here even comes into play.

THE COURT: But see this is my problem, I'm not --
I'm trying to figure out what exactly it is you’re asking
for this Court to do and what the best process 1s --

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- to get to a hearing on that.

MR. POWELL: We’re asking for the status quo to go
back which was the whole point of the declaratory judgment
was to say: It’s 65/35 like 1it’s been --

THE COURT: Well --

MR. POWELL: -- for 33 years.

THE COURT: But it didn’t say status quo, it said
we want --

MR. POWELL: Well, not in those terms, but, I
mean, we asked for the declaration that it’s 65 percent

interest, 35 percent interest. S0, —-
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THE COURT: Okay.

MR. POWELL: Yeah, I mean, I’'m kind of Jjust
informalizing the relief, but if you see what we’re praying
for it’s the declaration that it’s the 35/65 split.

THE COURT: But I -- but that to me, the
declaratory relief is seeking a conclusive and permanent
determination of that --

MR. POWELL: Right.

THE COURT: -- as opposed to maintaining the
status quo which is a little bit different --

MR. POWELL: Right.

THE COURT: -- which is that pending the outcome
of these wvarious motions, we’re going to --

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: ~-- return to that.

MR. POWELL: And I -- and the only thing I can
offer is I guess, you know, we pray 1n general, too, for
any other relief the Court may grant and so, to me, 1t goes
hand-in-hand with -- you know, basically, the whole point
is to get the determination done with and that sets the
record straight.

There has been no declaration despite what Mr.
Mugan says. Show me any order, order -- I want to see the
order that says that Ms. Ahern is entitled to 100 percent.

There was just simply statements in a petition as to that.
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There’s no prayer seeking to confirm that. And, again, as
Your Honor recognizes, if that was what -- 1f that was the
point of what you were going for and you then continued
four years of distributions and some of which were $500,000
plus, where’s the gift tax returns? Were those gifts? If
yvou had your declaration, those must be gifts. You don’t
have --

THE COURT: Well but -- that -- and that gets us
to the how procedurally do we get there -—-

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- because I'm trying to figure out
what -- how this thing should go forward.

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: I mean, it -- are you just looking for
right now a temporary determination to let the oil and gas
companies in Texas know the Court’s assuming jurisdiction
over this, we’re goling to have a hearing to determine who's
ultimately entitled to this money, until then, continue
with the distributions as you were previously making them,
35 percent to Eleanor, 65 percent to the granddaughters,
and we’ll let you know once we’ve determined --

MR. POWELL: That there’s an ultimate --

THE COURT: -- who in fact is entitled permanently

MR. POWELL: That’s fine.
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THE COURT: -- to this money?

MR. POWELL: That’s fine with us.

THE COURT: Because —-

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COQURT: -- it may be that it’s 100 percent, 1t
may be that it remains 65/35.

MR. POWELL: Right.

THE COURT: We don’t know yet. That remains to be
determined.

MR. POWELL: And what I will tell you, though, 1is
when Ms. Ahern decided I'm entitled to 100 percent, she was
taking 100 percent. That’s the issue is 1t was previously
taking 35 percent, 65 percent going to Jacqueline and her
sister, then the plug was pulled, and then from essentially
June, she --

THE COURT: You see, I'm not understanding the
logistics of this. Is 1t the --

MR. POWELL: Okay.

THE COURT: -- oil and gas companies that you
notify to stop this or is it a trustee that gets notified?

MR. POWELL: Well, that’s the whole thing. The
petition is based on a declaratory ruling that the trustee
must then honor.

Again, we have this weird situation where we’ve

had 65/35 for 33 years including the last four and then all
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of a sudden, the trustee determines: No, —-- the trustee
and the beneficiary being the same person --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. POWELL: -- no, I'm entitled to 100 percent,
I'm not giving you that 65 anymore. I’ve turned off the
spigot. It’s done. You’'re not getting it.

So that puts my client in the precarious position
of: Under what authority are you acting with that?

THE COURT: That’'s --

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: There you go. That’s my question 1s -

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- how do we ultimately get to that
question?

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: It seems to me that that’s an
evidentiary hearing.

MR. POWELL: I guess. I mean, —-

MR. MUGAN: I agree.

MR. POWELL: I -- the thing is we can go into an
evidentiary hearing, I'm -- your question though 1is, you
know, basically are you -- do you need discovery? Do you

need any more evidence? There’s nothing --

THE COURT: Well --
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MR. POWELL: -~-- more we can offer other than what
we’ve —-- what we already have.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.

MR. POWELL: Tax returns, and all that, yeah.

THE COURT: So then, Mr. Mugan, I understand that
the procedurally you have a motion you want to file, but as
to the status quo, you're -- let’s Jjust say we’ll be
returning to the status quo. Your position 1s, at most,
the undisputed portions should be distributed and I don’t
understand if it’s the o0il and gas companies that aren’t
honoring it or if it’s your client as the role of trustee.

MR. MUGAN: Yeah. And I apologize if I haven’t
made myself clear.

Number one, I'm opposed to returning to the
alleged status quo.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. MUGAN: There was no request for that. There
was a request for a final determination. He can certainly
file and request a temporary order, injunction, whatever,
you know, but that was never prayed for and I think we’re
going beyond the bounds of the pleadings, number one.

Number two, if the Court in its discretion thinks
there should be some type of order entered at this point in
time, the 65 percent should not go to his clients because

that’s in dispute. The 65 percent should just be held or
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tied up or put in trusts or whatever until there’s a final
determination and my client, there’s no dispute that she’s
entitled to the 35 percent.

And my understanding is that the companies are the
ones, you know, who -- they’re the ones who 1ssue the
checks, etcetera. They’re the ones that have to be
notified, not the trustee.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, here’s my concern here 1s
that I have before me this petition and yes, it does -- 1
viewed it as seeking an ultimate ruling. I don’t think
we!/ re at the point where we can make an ultimate ruling,
however, you know, the concern I have 1s that these Courts
in Texas are taking action based on just getting a letter
from an attorney that -- and there’s -- I have this whole
question of whether the Texas Court is doing anything with
respect to this, but my point is that who would be ordered
to -- 18 it an order saying: Resume your distributions,
the trustee’s ordered to impound the 65 percent and not
make any distributions of the 65 percent, she’s entitled to
her 35 percent as the beneficiary?

Because the whole point i1s I understand your
concern is that if the granddaughters aren’t entitled to
it, how do you claw it back, but if it’s -- but their
concern 1g: Wait a minute, we don’t want to go back to the

—-— to her getting 100 percent because we think 65 percent
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of that is ours and how do we claw 1t back?

MR. POWELL: How about a bond?

THE COURT: Pardon?

MR. POWELL: How about a bond? I mean, 1f the
assertion is essentially we can’t give it to you because we
think you’re going to go and take it and then we can’t ever
get it back from you, how about a bond? I mean, that seems
to me to be —-

THE COURT: Well -- and so that’s, I guess, a
point is at some point in time is this something that can
be ruled on in this point in time or do we need to have a
separate motion on 1it? It seems to me that I can go
forward and say that it’s undisputed that 35 percent of
this money should be going to Eleanor and she 1s that
beneficiary, but to the extent that the -- my concern 1s
Just that there’s oil and companies that are out there who
are responding to letters from attorneys. I’ve never seen
any company respond to a letter from an attorney.

MR. POWELL: Yes.

THE COURT: I'm shocked that they did, but
apparently oil and gas law in Texas is unique --

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- and they actually are responsive to
claims for their --

MR. MUGAN: Well, --
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THE COURT: -- o0il rights because they don’t want
to end up paying them twice.

MR. POWELL: Right.

THE COURT: So if there’s some direction to say:
Go ahead and make the distributions to the trustee and the
trustee is directed because I -- she 1s a Nevada resident
and we certainly have jurisdiction over her. The trustee,
in her capacity as trustee of this trust, is directed that
she can distribute the undisputed portion of the funds to
herself but the 65 percent needs to be held until further
order and then --

MR. POWELL: I —-

THE COQURT: -- we have to figure out how we're
going to go about getting to how we determine who’s got the

MR. POWELL: And --

THE COURT: -- entitlement to that 65 percent?
What’'s —--

MR. POWELL: -- I guess --— yeah.

THE COURT: =-- the process?

MR. POWELL: You direct us because I think that’s
where it’s ultimately going to come down to is how we do
this. If you want me to come back and seek an injunction,
T -- what I was trying to do with this declaratory ruling

is skip all the steps, go right to the heart of the 1issue,
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and set forth to you we’ve had 33 years of precedent --

THE COURT: I understand but --

MR. POWELL: That’s only changed --

THE COURT: I don’t know that we can do —--

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: I appreciate the interest in the
judicial economy, --

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- however, I'm not sure we can get
there --

MR. POWELL: Okay.

THE COURT: -- in one big leap because I do think
that it requires steps —-

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- and it’s because I’ve got these
other parties involved here and --

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: ~-- I -- this Court -- 1f you're
saying: Will this Court today enter an order directing
these 01l and gas companies in Texas to resume their
distributions, which I guess means 1t goes to the trustee
and the trustee has been ordered to do the 65/35? Yeah, I
have no problem in saying: Oil and gas companies in Texas,
go ahead, we’ve taken this under consideration. We will

deal with this at the trust level. It’s not a problem for
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yvou, oil and gas company. Pay your royalties the way
you’ re supposed to be, make those distributions. I'm going
to direct the trustee what to do because I control that
trustee.

MR. POWELL: Yeah. And I don’t have a problem
with that. That’s --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. POWELL: =-- totally fine.

THE COURT: And my ruling to that trustee 1is
you’re entitled to 35 percent and nobody says you’re not.

MR. POWELL: Yeah. The only thing I would ask
though just to keep fairness is for the last distributions
that have gone back, I think starting in June, it was less
than 65/35, is require the trustee -- again, 1if we’re
keeping it all fair here is to go back, put that money back
in that same 65 percent category that’s in dispute. She
can have 35 percent of June, July, August, September,
October. Take the 35, but that other 65, put that back in
the pot, too.

THE CQURT: You know, I have no 1ldea how much
money this is involved here --

MR. POWELL: It’s a 1lot.

MR. MUGAN: That --

THE COURT: No, but my point is, --

MR. POWELL: Yeah.
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THE COURT: -- I don't know how much -- at what
point did these oil and gas companies stop distributing any
money. All I'm saying is my only point of what I want to
do here is to tell these o0il and gas companies stop
responding to letters from attorneys. An

MR. MUGAN: Your Honor, --

THE COURT: -- attorney can’t tell an oil and gas
company what to do.

MR. POWELL: Sure.

THE COURT: Make vyour distributions. The trustee
is going to do the following.

MR. MUGAN: But, Your Honor, we’ve gotten several
of them straightened out. Basically -- my client, of
course, has Texas counsel, too, and we’ve gotten several of
them straightened out. Apache just happened, just
happened. I think the letter was dated November or October
29" or something and we’re just getting it straightened out
with them.

Again, I think we’re golng way past what was asked
here and, you know, if you want to do i1t on a separate
motion, that’s fine. 1In the interim, we may get the spigot
turned back on. You know, I mean, we just keep moving down
the road, you know, and kind of making predeterminations
that I just don’t think are proper.

THE COURT: What’s wrong with what I suggested
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that we go to -- we tell these 0il and gas companies that
you don’t have to honor this letter from this attorney,
start making distributions to this trustee, the trustee 1s
directed she has to in her role as a beneficiary 1s
entitled to 35 percent. She’s got to hold 65 percent.
What’s wrong with that?

MR. MUGAN: There’s nothing wrong with it except
that i1t does prejudice my client. It wasn’t -- he never
asked for that in his petition. He had the right to ask
for that, for a temporary injunction, a restraining order,
etcetera. - It was never requested. I mean, all of a sudden
we have to address it right now and I, you know, that’s
fine. That’s fine. But I Jjust -- again, I think we're
going down the road in making some predeterminations that
were never requested, you know, and it’s just, you know,
return to the status quo, well then go back three months,
go back —--

THE COURT: I never said I was willing to go back

MR. MUGAN: I know, but that’s where we’'re going.
We’re just going —--

THE COURT: I appreciate that. I never sald I'm
willing to go back any period of time. All I'm saying 1s
that as of today’s date when I have what’s before me what

technically i1s an unopposed motion for declaratory relief
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that my only -- the only thing I'm willing to do is to say
to these Texas oil and gas companies, whoever they may be,
vou do not have to honor that letter from counsel. I am
telling you that 35 percent of this is the undisputed
property of this beneficiary, pay your distributions to the
trust, and I’'m ordering the trustee to hold 65 percent of
it, to not make a distribution as to 65 percent of 1it.

MR. MUGAN: That’s fine.

THE COURT: And then we -- we're going to set this
out for a hearing at some point in the future because 1
think, as you’ve said, your opposition -- your first thing
is we have this opposition that it shouldn’t even be --
that there’s nothing to be heard because it’s already been
ruled on. You’'ve got your right to do the motion to
dismiss. Mr. Powell’s got the right to oppose 1t and then
we wanted to get there much faster than this, but
procedurally I just think you can’t. I think you have to
follow the procedural steps. So we have to follow the
procedural steps.

I think ultimately this petition for declaratory
relief may not be whether it reguires a lot of discovery,
but I think that there’s still going to have to be
documents produced and you need to come in for a hearing.
So we need to probably put it out 60 or 90 days and have a

hearing. And, in the interim, if you’ve got a motion to
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file, you can file your motion and we can rule on that, but
I think it’s got to be out at least 60 days for the hearing
on the declaratory relief and I think that there needs to
be testimony.

MR. POWELL: And would that be -- that would be a
final determination at that point? That won’t Jjust be --

THE COURT: That’s the petition for —--

MR. POWELL: Qkay. That will be hearing the
petition on the merits?

THE COURT: On the merits.

MR. POWELL: Okay.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. MUGAN: Yeah. I -- 60 days, to me, 1s a
little short especially with the holiday season.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MUGAN: You know, I think we should be out at
least 90 days.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MUGAN: We are going to have to do some
discovery. You know, we have people down in Texas,
etcetera. So I would ask at least 90 days.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. POWELL: Just to clarify for the Court, too,
though, this was already -- this was filed 1n September.

So there’s already been almost a month and a half here to
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do a lot of fact gathering and fact finding.

THE COURT: Yeah, and that’s --

MR. POWELL: So to just -- and, again, 1t -- and I
don’t have a problem with what you’re --

THE COURT: Well --

MR. POWELL: -- saying 1s --

THE COURT: -- I think Mr. Mugan was only recently
retained though because I think there was this whole
problem about --

MR. POWELL: No, he was retained --

THE COURT: October.

MR. POWELL: ~- pretty qgquickly on. 1In fact, I
even gave him a continuance --

THE COURT: In October?

MR. POWELL: Yeah. And so, I -- you know, again,
we have the whole thing of who is really being choked off
here and, again, there’s not a problem with what you were
suggesting which is go back to oil and gas say: 65/35,
keep 1t coming; 65 stays in trust until the determination,
35 goes out to Ms. Ahern. That’s not a problem.

The only thing I would suggest though 1s, again,
my clients, who rely on this for their living expenses,
this is -- my client, Just so you’re aware, and this will
be raised further, my client gquit her job on reliance --

THE COURT: Okay.
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MR. POWELL: -- on this. So, 1it’s a situation
where -- and, again, I just want to be forthcoming so -- to
which sets up my next question which is in the meantime, 1s
there -- is it problematic for me, and, again, I don’t want
to do anything that upsets you, can I come 1n for
injunctive relief to have the 65 continue to flow with
something like a bond?

THE COURT: That would be -- yeah, that’s a
different issue.

MR. POWELL: Okay.

THE COURT: That’s a different issue and --

MR. POWELL: Because that’s -- I’11 tell you right
now, I’m goling to come back in as soon as possible then on
that --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. POWELL: -- jJust -- yeah.

THE COURT: That’s what I'm saying 1s I’'m not
going to rule on anything other than --

MR. POWELL: Sure.

THE COURT: -- I just want the oil --

MR. POWELL: Understood.

THE COURT: ~-- and gags companies to start sending
the money to the trust --

MR. POWELL: Understood.

THE COURT: -—- and the trust can deal with it in
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accordance --

MR. POWELL: Understood. Yeah. Understood.

THE COURT: It can be held and I have --

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- no reason that 1t wouldn’t be.

MR. POWELL: Okay.

THE COURT: So that’s my only -- the only thing
I’'m prepared to do today 1s --

MR. POWELL: Okay.

THE COURT: -- I'm denying the request to remand
this back to the Commissioner. I --

MR. POWELL: Okay.

THE COURT: -- think it’s ultimately going to have
to be heard here anyway.

MR. POWELL: Okay.

THE COURT: Step number two, set this out. Let’s
go 90 days.

MR. POWELL: Okay.

THE COURT: And that gives everybody time to file
these interim motions that they wish to feel.

MR. POWELL: Okay.

THE COURT: Mr. Mugan’s going to want to file his
motion to dismiss this thing 1n its entirety.

MR. POWELL: Sure.

THE COURT: Your clients may wish to seek some
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distributions.

MR. POWELL: Yes.

THE COURT: I jJust -- my only point right now 1s
Just 1f these 01l and gas companies are holding onto this
money for no reason other than an attorney sent them a
demand letter which I Jjust find --

MR. POWELL: I don’t think it was a demand letter.

THE COURT: ~-- mind boggling.

MR. POWELL: I think it was just -- I don’t think
it was a demand letter, I think it was Jjust a notification
letter of just so you are aware, this is what’s pending.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. POWELL: And from what I understand, that’s
the way it’s done there. I don’t think there’s --

THE COURT: Like I said, --

MR. POWELL: I don’'t --

THE COURT: -- maybe. I don’t think any of us
presumes to represent --

MR. POWELL: Yeah. Out here, I know 1t’s a shock

THE COURT: -- to know anything about --

MR. POWELL: -- that you can send a letter to
anvbody and they’1l do anything. So --

MR. MUGAN: I can read the letter to you and 1it’s

a demand letter.
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MR. POWELL: Okay.

THE COURT: Yeah. Okay. So here’s my point. At
this juncture, this 1s the procedure and I don’t know what
1t would take in an order that would satisfy these 01l and
gas companies that they can begin distributions. It may be
all i1t needs to say 1s the Court 1s assuming Jjurisdiction
for this petition for declaratory relief. It appears
undisputed that the 35 percent -- so that the Court makes a
finding that as to the 35 percent, Ms. Ahern’s entitled to
that. The 65 percent should be held by the trust.

Hopefully that will satisfy the o0il and gas
companies that they’re off the hook and that it’s going to
be litigation involving the trust and it doesn’t involve
the o0il and gas companies.

MR. MUGAN: Maybe the best thing would be for Mr.
Powell and I, you know, to contact our respective co-Texas
counsel and they can =-- they know more about 0il and gas
companies than I think both of us would ever know and make
sure that that’s the way to do it and that the oil
companies will do what they’re told that way and then we’ll
Just prepare an order for you.

THE COURT: Right because --

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- 1if Mr. Powell wants to see his

clients get some money in the interim, there’s no point in
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asking for that if the o0il and gas companies aren’t sending
it.

MR. POWELL: Right.

THE COURT: So we need the o0il and gas companies
to send the money.

MR. POWELL: Yeah. And that makes --

THE COURT: So --

MR. POWELL: -- logical sense. We’ll figure out
what they need to do that but then we’'re, Just for the
record, we’re preserving that we will have you sign an
order to that effect basically saying you’ re hereby
demanded to continue the 65 -- well, pay 100 percent of the
proceeds, ©5 must be held by the trustee and --

THE COURT: Correct.

MR. POWELL: -- 35 to Ms. Ahern.

THE COURT: Correct.

MR. POWELL: So, yeah.

THE COURT: But the -- it’s strictly an issue as -

MR. POWELL: Sure.

THE COURT: -- as under the trust, shouldn’t --
that these third parties don’t need to be involved in it
any further. It’s litigation with the trust. This Court’s
got the jurisdiction. This Court will make that finding

and, you know, proceed accordingly.
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MR. MUGAN: And --

THE COURT: And that’s -- if we put it out 90
days, you can file your respective motions and we can maybe
get all this stuff resolved in the interim, but at the
earliest the declaratory relief would be heard would be,
yvou know, 90 days in the future which would be -- and we
might need to --

MR. MUGAN: Maybe a status check, I don't know.

THE COURT: I was going to say we might need to
put it actually on a stack to actually give you like a date
for an evidentiary hearing, but -- so i1t would probably be
better to let you know what our stack looks 1like in
February. Would it be February?

THE CLERK: Yeah, February 17"". We have one med-
mal that starts on the 10%".

THE COURT: Okay.

THE CLERK: That was before we changed our --

THE COURT: Okay. So February 17 is --

THE CLERK: We have a preferential --

THE COURT: -- probate.

THE CLERK: -- [indiscernible].

THE COURT: Okay. So it will be a status check to
give you a hearing date for your --

MR. POWELL: On the 17" will be a status check?

THE COURT: Correct, for your actual --
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MR. POWELL: OQOkay.

THE COURT: 1It’s not going to be the actual
evidentiary hearing, but we’ll hopefully have enough
information that we can glve you a date that day.

MR. POWELL: Okay.

MR. MUGAN: I fjust --

THE CLERK: The 17"" in our department is on
calendar call --

THE COURT: What’s calendar call?

THE CLERK: The 24" of January. That’s the trial
stack [indiscernible].

MR. MUGAN: I --

THE COURT: Okay. So -- okay. I guess it might
be -- yeah, we might be better off then seeing you at the
calendar calls for that stack which is Friday, the 24", and
we’ll be able to tell you if there’s any time on that stack
that we can go because we do have one med-mal and one --

MR. MUGAN: That’s February 24", Your Honor?

THE COURT: No, January 24%".

MR. POWELL: January.

THE COURT: And it’s the calendar calls that
correspond to that stack that starts February --

THE CLERK: 17"" through March 14"".

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. MUGAN: And by way of full disclosure, Your
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Honor, and I don’t know 1f it will affect the thinking at
all, and we can deal with it later if we have to, 1f in
fact this ends up going to an evidentiary hearing and our
motion to dismiss is not successful, there are going to be
some counterclaims made by my client in this matter --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MUGAN: -- that are --

THE COURT: And I think --

MR. MUGAN: -- going to involve some things.

THE COURT: -- at that point in time, on the 24
if 1t’s not going to be ready to go, if we ruled on all

those other motions in the interim, then it may or may not

be ready to go. It’s a calendar call just to see if we can
get you on that stack, but I -- because until we actually
see what the pleadings are, you know, who knows. I just

want to make sure that we’ve got this calendar and the
declaratory relief petition is calendared. If it has to be
continued, 1t has to be continued, but we’ve got a date for
it which will be on that stack, that February 17" and I
think the first day of that stack might be a holiday. So,
you know, just keeping in mind that --

MR. POWELL: Qkay.

THE COURT: -- 1f the first day of the stack is a
holiday, then it won’t go —-- obviously it won’t go —-- just
like yesterday was a holiday for us, the -- you know,
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that’s just the first day. It doesn’t necessarily mean it
can go on that day because of the holiday and whatever else
we can figure out with respect to anybody who has a
preference on 1t.

MR. POWELL: Okay. What time 1s your calendar on
the 24"?

THE COURT: On January 24°"?

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE CLERK: The calendar calls are --

THE COURT: 9 a.m.?

THE CLERK: No. They’re late. I’11 have to get
that to him.

MR. MUGAN: Aren’t they at 117

THE COURT: That’s right.

THE CLERK: 11 is [indiscernible].

THE COURT: Yeah. They’re 11 because we have them
after regular motions.

MR. POWELL: 11.

MR. MUGAN: Yeah, I was thinking it was 11 but I
might be wrong. |

THE CLERK: It’s 11.

THE COURT: Okay. Sorry about that. 11 a.m.

MR. POWELL: 11 a.m.

And, Judge, just lastly, I know you want to move

on with your day, but just for the record again, we have in
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—-— our declaratory judgment petition asked for the fees,
costs, and damages. So we Just wanted to preserve that
that we have requested 1t --
THE COURT: Right.
MR. POWELL: -- and everything related. So, =--
THE COQURT: Yeah, exactly. That’s why I said I'm
not making any rulings on any other request for relief.
MR. POWELL: Sure.

THE COURT: The petition itself is set to be heard

on that --

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- date. This is just a preliminary
ruling --

MR. POWELL: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- and the only reason is I'm just
concerned about, you know, these —-- a foreign state that
they’ re somehow holding up -- I mean, the whole thing’s

moot 1f they’re not going to distribute any money.

MR. POWELL: Right. And just, again, foreshadow,
we will be coming back in shortly --

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. POWELL: -- on a petition, too.

THE COURT: 1’711 expect to see that and I711
expect to see the motion to dismiss in its entirety.

MR. POWELL: Yep. Exactly.
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THE COURT:

Okay. Without prejudice, I’'m not

making any findings or any rulings --

MR. POWELL:

THE COURT:

argued unfortunately

Right.
-- on anything. It’s all going to be

[indiscernible] the interest and let’s

get right to the point, but I don’t see any way to do 1t

other than a set time.

MR. POWELL:

THE COURT:

MR. MUGAN:

THE COURT:

MR. POWELL:

THE COURT:

MR. POWELL:

Okay.
Okay. So ==

Thank vyou, Your Honor.
-—- all right.

Thank you, Your Honor.
Thanks.

Apprecliate the time.

PROCEEDING CONCLUDED AT 11:04 A.M.

* * * * *
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CERTIFICATION

I certify that the foregoing is a correct transcript from
the audio-visual recording of the proceedings in the above-
entitled matter.

AFFIRMATION

I affirm that this transcript does not contain the social
security or tax identification number of any person or
entity.

"""" 8 ' oW
o X T
B N
R AN
k‘. \'\. X
..... W
o S S . -
R R N S A e T Y R R A A A R R AR AR (N R R T A AR R AR B A

KRISTEN LUNKWITZ
INDEPENDENT TRANSCRIBER
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Affidavit of Stan Crawford
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AFFD
JOHN R. MUGAN, Esquire
Nevada Bar No. 10690

]th@]gfﬁ‘eﬁburr com
MICHAEL D, LUM, Esquire

Nevada BarNo. 12997

mm];g@]@gﬂ’reyburr .com
JEFFREY BURR, LTD.

2600 Paseo Verde Parkway, Suite 200

Henderson, NV 89074

Telephone: (702) 433-44535

Facmmﬂe (702) 451-18353

Attorneys for Trustee ELEANOR CONNELL HARTMAN AHERN

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the Matter of

THE W. N, CONNELL AND MARJORIE T. CONNELL | Case No. P-09-066425-T
LIVING TRUST, .
Dated May 18, 1972 Dept. No. XXVI (26)

An Inter Vivos Itrevocable Trust.

AFFIDAVIT OF STANLEY E. CRAWFORD, ESQUIRE

STATE OF TEXAS }
COUNTY OF HARRIS ;9
The undersigned, STANLEY E. CRAWFORD, Esquire, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes
and states as follows:

1. Thave been licensed to practiced law for approximately thirty-seven (37) years in the state of
Texas.

2. My Martindale-Hubbell rating is AV Preeminent, and has been for many years.

3, This affidavit contains my opinions based on my experience, and my knowledge and

understanding of the Texas Natural Resource Code.
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4. Section 91,402 of the Texas Natural Resources Code sets the time limits by which e "payor”
(generally defined as the purchaser of production from a well, the operator of that well, or the lessee
under a lease on which royalty is due) must pay each "payee" (defined a.s "any person or persons
legally entitled to payment from the proceeds derived from the sale of oil or gas from an oil or gas
well Tocated" in Texas) proceeds derived from the sale of oil or gas production. Under Section
91,402 (a), proceeds from production must be paid within 120 days after the end of the month of the
first sale of production; after that, proceeds must be paid to payees 60 days after the end of the
month when oil is sold, and 90 days after the end of the month when gas is sold.

5. Section 91.403 of the Texas Natural Resources Code sets the rate of interest owed on
payments of proceeds not made within these statutory deadlinés. That interest is owed as a penalty
for late payment unless payments are suspended by a payor for one of the following reasons listed
in Section 91.402: |

Section 91.402(b)(1); There is "a dispute concerning title that would affect distribution of
payments;"

Section 91,402 (b)(2): There is "a reasonable doubt that the payee:

(A) has sold or authorized the sale of its sharc of the oil or gas to thc purchaser of
such production; or

(B) has clear title to the interest in the proceeds of production,

Section 91.402 (b)(3): There is "a requirement in a title opinion that places in issue the title,

identity, or whereabouts of the payee and that has not been saftisfied by the payee after a

reasonable request for curative information has been made by the payor."

A true and correct copy of the statutory text is attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and incorporated
herein.

6. Section 91.402 is a statutory protection for an oil company or other "payor" when royalties
aren't timely paid, and a penalty of additional interest when they aren't paid for a reason specified in

the statute. In my opinion, Section 91.402 says nothing about the liability of a third party for

tortious interference with contract, and it certainly doesn't say that all paytnent of royalty should be
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suspended and held in trust by an oil company whenever a lawsuit is filed that would affect
distribution of royalty payments.

7. Based on the pleadings, representations and stipulations of all parties in the Nevada
proceeding (Case No. P-09-066425-T), there is no good faith dispute as to the title of the Upton
County minerals begin vested in the 1972 Living Trust of W.N., and Marjorie Connell (Ttust No. 2).
There is no dispute that the proceeds from production have always been paid by “payors” to the
trustees of that Trust.

8, Furthermore, in my opinion, it 1s not industry standard or regular practice in Texas for
“payors” to routinely suspend royalty payments where royalty allocation is the focus of a lawsuit, at
least without incurring the penalty of statutory interest. In fact, this contention was rejected by the
Court of Appeals in Austin in Browning Oil Co,, Inc. v. Luecke, 38 S.W.3d 623, 647 (Tex. App.--
Austin 2000, pet. denied), when Browning Oil Co, argued that because there was 2 dispute as to
how much royalty the Lueckes should be paid, Section 91,402 protected them from paying interest
on the suspended royalties. The Court said:

"The purpose of the statute is to protect royalty owners from intentional payment delays
while permitting delays that result from legitimate #itle disputes.,..The crux of this case ig
whether the Lueckes are entitled to a pro rata share of royalties under the pooling provisions
or royalties for all production from their fand. Their entitlement to royalties, however, was
never in dispute. All parties agreed that the Lueckes' royalty interests are valid. Thus, the
Natural Resources Code does not excuse Lessees from paying prejudgment interest where
there is no legitimate title dispute, but rather a dispute as to how to calculate the Lueckes’
royalties." (Emphasis in the original.)

9. In any event, neither JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA nor her Texas counsel, Sean Guerrero,
is protected from liability for interfering with the payment of royalties by Seetion 91,402 of the

Texas Natural Resource Code. In my opinion, neither of them is considered a “payor,” and they are

not the parties for whom the statute was enacted.

STANLEY B fRAWFQRD
Texas Bar No. 05040500
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SUBSC EBED and SWORN to before me
this 77 day of May, 2014,

ot A e,

OTARX PUBLIC In and for the SAr¥) My COMMISSION EXPiRES

State of Texas
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Vernon's Texas Statutes and Codes Annotated
Natural Resources Code (Refs & Annos)
Title 3. Oil and Gas (Refs & Annos)
Subtitle B. Conservation and Regulation of Oil and Gas
Chapter 91. Provisions Generally Applicable
Subchapter J. Payment for Proceeds of Sale (Refs & Annos)

V.T.C.A., Natural Resources Code § 91.402
§ 01.402. Time for Payment of Proceeds

Currentness

(a) The proceeds derived from the sale of oil or gas production from an oil or gas well located in this state must be paid to
each payee by payor on or before 120 days after the end of the month of first sale of production from the well. After that time,
payments must be made to each payee on a timely basis according to the frequency of payment specified in a lease or other
written agreement between payee and payor. If the lease or other agreement does not specify the time for payment, subsequent
proceeds must be paid no later than:

(1) 60 days after the end of the calendar month in which subsequent oil production is sold; or

(2) 90 days after the end of the calendar month in which subsequent gas production is sold.

(b) Payments may be withheld without interest beyond the time limits set out in Subsection (a) of this section when there is:

(1) a dispute concerning title that would affect distribution of payments;

(2) a reasonable doubt that the payee:

(A) has sold or authorized the sale of its share of the oil or gas to the purchaser of such production; or

(B) has clear title to the interest in the proceeds of production;

(3) a requirement in a title opinion that places in issue the title, identity, or whereabouts of the payee and that has not been
satisfied by the payee after a reasonable request for curative information has been made by the payor.

(c)(1) As a condition for the payment of proceeds from the sale of oil and gas production to payee, a payor shall be entitled to
receive a signed division order from payee containing only the following provisions:

(A) the effective date of the division order, transfer order, or other instrument;
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§ 91.402. Time for Payment of Proceeds, TX NAT RES § 91.402

(B) a description of the property from which the oil or gas is being produced and the type of production,

(C) the fractional and/or decimal interest in production claimed by payee, the type of interest, the certification of title to the
share of production claimed, and, unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, an agreement to notify payor at least one month
in advance of the effective date of any change in the interest in production owned by payee and an agreement to indemnify
the payor and reimburse the payor for payments made if the payee does not have merchantable title to the production sold;

(D) the authorization to suspend payment to payee for production until the resolution of any title dispute or adverse claim
asserted regarding the interest in production claimed by payee;

(E) the name, address, and taxpayer identification number of payee;
(F) provisions for the valuation and timing of settlements of oil and gas production to the payee; and
(G) a notification to the payee that other statutory rights may be available to a payee with regard to payments.

(2) Such a division order does not amend any lease or operating agreement between the interest owner and the lessee or
operator or any other contracts for the purchase of oil or gas.

(d) In the alternative, the provisions of Subsection (¢) of this section may be satisfied by a division order for oil payments in
substantially the following form and content:

DIVISION ORDER

O L OO T U PP OO PO UUUPTRUPRPRRR (Payor) Property NO. i e

.........................................................................................................................................................................................................

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

(Date)

The undersigned severally and not jointly certifies it is the legal owner of the interest set out below of all the oil and related
liquid hydrocarbons produced from the property described below:

OPERATOR:

Property Name:
COUNLY: Liiitiiiiiirie vttt rre e bas s saae e srne s senseeeeaseaan N7 1 (- P PP PP

e B D Lo TTod oo 11T s OO OO OO OSSP PSS PP P TS TP
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§ 91.402. Time for Payment of Proceeds, TX NAT RES § 91.402

OWNER NO. e
TAX I.D./SOC. SEC. NO. PAYEE ...

DIVISION OF INTEREST

THIS AGREEMENT DOES NOT AMEND ANY LEASE OR OPERATING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE INTEREST
OWNERS AND THE LESSEE OR OPERATOR OR ANY OTHER CONTRACTS FOR THE PURCHASE OF OIL OR GAS.

The following provisions apply to each interest owner (“owner”) who executes this agreement:

TERMS OF SALE; The undersigned will be paid in accordance with the division of interests set out above. The payor shall
pay all parties at the price agreed to by the operator for oil to be sold pursuant to this division order. Purchaser shall compute
quantity and make corrections for gravity and temperature and make deductions for impurities.

PAYMENT: From the effective date, payment is to be made monthly by payor's check, based on this division of interest, for oil
run during the preceding calendar month from the property listed above, less taxes required by law to be deducted and remitted
by payor as purchaser. Payments of less than $100 may be accrued before disbursement until the total amount equals $100 or
more, or until 12 months' proceeds accumulate, whichever occurs first. However, the payor may hold accumulated proceeds of
less than $10 until production ceases or the payor's responsibility for making payment for production ceases, whichever occurs
first. Payee agrees to refund to payor any amounts attributable to an interest or part of an interest that payee does not own.

INDEMNITY: The owner agrees to indemnify and hold payor harmless from all liability resulting from payments made to the
owner in accordance with such division of interest, including but not limited to attorney fees or judgments in connection with
any suit that affects the owner's interest to which payor is made a party.

DISPUTE; WITHHOLDING OF FUNDS: If a suit is filed that affects the interest of the owner, written notice shall be given
to payor by the owner together with a copy of the complaint or petition filed.

In the event of a claim or dispute that affects title to the division of interest credited herein, payor is authorized to withhold
payments accruing to such interest, without interest unless otherwise required by applicable statute, until the claim or dispute

18 settled.

TERMINATION: Termination of this agreement is effective on the first day of the month that begins after the 30th day after
the date written notice of termination is received by either party.

NOTICES: The owner agrees to notify payor in writing of any change in the division of interest, including changes of interest
contingent on payment of money or expiration of time.

No change of interest is binding on payor until the recorded copy of the instrument of change or documents satisfactorily
evidencing such change are furnished to payor at the time the change occurs.

Any change of interest shall be made effective on the first day of the month following receipt of such notice by payor.

Any correspondence regarding this agreement shall be furnished to the addresses listed unless otherwise advised by either party.
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In addition to the legal rights provided by the terms and provisions of this division order, an owner may have certain statutory
rights under the laws of this state.

Signature of Social Security/

Witness Interest Owner Tax L.D. No. Address

.........................................................................................................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................

.........................................................................................................................................................................................................

Failure to furnish your Social Security/Tax 1.D. number will result in withholding tax in accordance with federal law, and any
tax withheld will not be refundable by payor.

(e) If an owner in a producing property will not sign a division order because it contains provisions in addition to those provisions
provided for in this section, payor shall not withhold payment solely because of such refusal. If an owner in a producing property
refuses to sign a division order which includes only the provisions specified in Subsection (c) of this section, payor may withhold
payment without interest until such division order is signed.

(f) Payment may be remitted to a payee annually for the aggregate of up to 12 months' accumulation of proceeds if the payor
owes the payee a total amount of $100 or less for production from all oil or gas wells for which the payor must pay the payee.
However, the payor may hold accumulated proceeds of less than $10 until production ceases or the payor's responsibility for
making payment for production ceases, whichever occurs first. On the written request of the payee, the payor shall remit payment
of accumulated proceeds to the payee annually if the payor owes the payee less than $10. On the written request of the payee,
the payor shall remit payment of proceeds to the payee monthly if the payor owes the payee more than $25 but less than $100.

(g) Division orders are binding for the time and to the extent that they have been acted on and made the basis of settlements and
payments, and, from the time that notice is given that settlements will not be made on the basis provided in them, they cease to
be binding. Division orders are terminable by either party on 30 days written notice.

(h) The execution of a division order between a royalty owner and lessee or between a royalty owner and a party other than
lessee shall not change or relieve the lessee's specific, expressed or implied obligations under an oil and gas lease, including
any obligation to market production as a reasonably prudent lessee. Any provision of a division order between payee and its
lessee which is in contradiction with any provision of an oil and gas lease is invalid to the extent of the contradiction.

(i) A division order may be used to clarify royalty settlement terms in the oil and gas lease. With respect to oil and/or gas sold in

23 &8 7% &4

the field where produced or at a gathering point in the immediate vicinity, the terms “market value,” “market price,” “prevailing
price in the field,” or other such language, when used as a basis of valuation in the oil and gas lease, shall be defined as the

amount realized at the mouth of the well by the seller of such production in an arm's-length transaction.

Credits
Added by Acts 1983, 68th Leg., p. 966, ch. 228, § 1, eff. Sept. 1, 1983. Amended by Acts 1991, 72nd Leg., ch. 650, § 2, eff.
Aug. 26, 1991; Acts 1995, 74th Leg., ch. 681, § 1, eff. June 15, 1995.
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Michael D. Lum

From: Michael D. Lum

Sent: Tuesday, January 28, 2014 11:54 AM

To: ‘joey@rushforth.net'

Cc: John R. Mugan

Subject: Connell Matter

Attachments: 2012-04-02 Apache Lease No. 2.pdf; 2012-04-02 Apache Lease No. 3.pdf; 2012-07-10

Addendum to Apache Lease No. 3.pdf; 2013-07-10 Addendum to Apache Lease No. 2.pdf

Helio Joey:

It was nice speaking with you yesterday. To follow up on the items you requested, attached are the Apache lease
agreements. With regard to the division orders that you requested, we are in the process of compiling them. They are
quite voluminous, so how would you like them delivered to you? The name of the expert that you requested is J.
Randall Turner.

Also, to confirm, the following is a list of items that you stipulated to.
1. W.N. Connell and Marjorie T. Connell Living Trust dated May 18, 1972.
2. Quitclaim deeds attached as exhibit B to our Objection Of Eleanor To Petition To Compel Trustee To Distribute

Income.

The letters sent by Sean Guerrero dated September 30, 2013.

The MTC Living Trust dated December 6, 1995 as restated on January 7, 2008.

5. The Adoption Decree attached as exhibit L to our Objection Of Eleanor To Petition To Compel Trustee To
Distribute Income.

6. The 2009 pleadings filed in this matter, including the Petition To Assume Jurisdiction Over Trust; Confirm
Trustee, And Construe And Reform Trust and the consents thereto.

7. The Texas Probate Application attached as exhibit K to our Objection Of Eleanor To Petition To Compel Trustee
To Distribute Income.

8. Marjorie T. Connell’s death certificate.

B W

in terms of our witnesses, you indicated that you will stipulate to the telephonic depositions of Stan Crawford, J. Randall
Turner, and Curtis Baggett (the handwriting expert). Note, as we discussed, if you will stipulate to the admission of the
handwriting expert report, we will not need to take the deposition of Curtis Baggett.

Furthermore, to confirm my understanding, you will be discussing with your client as to whether you will stipulate to the
admission of the handwriting expert report attached as exhibit | to our Objection Of Eleanor To Petition To Compel
Trustee To Distribute Income, and you will review the Apache lease agreements and division orders to ascertain whether
you will stipulate to the admission of these reports.

If it will help your discussions with your client, please note that the Apache lease agreements and the division orders
were signed by Eleanor and as you previously mentioned in your pleadings Jackie was involved in the negotiation and
execution of the lease agreement; accordingly, these documents will be admissible in any event. It would just be easier

and more efficient if we could stipulate to the admission of these documents. Like you, we would also like to keep this
trial as short as possible.

Please feel free to contact us with any questions.
Thank you for your cooperation,
Michael Lum, J.D., MAcc

Jeffrey Burr, Ltd
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2600 Paseo Verde Parkway
Henderson, NV 89074
michael@jeffreyburr.com

702.433.4455 phone
702.451.1853 fax

Follow Jeffrey Burr on Twitter
Read the Jeffrey Burr Blog
Visit the Jeffrey Burr Website

[EFFREY BURR

 ESTATE PLANNIMNG & PROBATE ATTORNEYS

This message contains confidential information and may also contain information subject to the attorney client privilege
or the attorney work product rules. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete the message. If you are not the
intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, distribution, reliance on or use of the contents of this message is prohibited.

Circular 230 Disclosure:

To ensure compliance with requirements imposed by the IRS, we inform you that (i) any tax advice contained in this
communication (including any attachments) was not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used for the purpose
of avoiding penalties under the Internal Revenue Code or (ii) promoting, marketing or recommending to another party
any transaction or matter addressed herein.
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EXHIBIT “6”

The W.N. Connell and Marjorie T. Connell Living Trust dated May 18, 1972
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LA

PRUST AGREEBHEWY

("The W, . Connell and sMarjorie o Connai} rLiving Trust?)
/

THLS TRUST AGREEMENT, wade this LA day of Z_ZZ cos '

1972, by W, H. COMNELL and HARJIORIE T COHIELL, husband and wife,

{hecrsinafteXx somatines referred bo 03 the wgrantors™, whan

reference is made to then in their capacity &S creators of this

orust and the tranaferrors of the principal properties thereof}),

and W. ¥, CONYELL and MARJORIE T. cowneLL, of Las Yegas, Hevada,

(hereinafter gometimes refarred to as vhe appustee” when reference

is made to them in thelr capacity as the prustee or flduciary

and by this instrument revaie the previous revocable
Dec‘j 3.973‘1

hereurder),
living trust made by us on the lst day of

WITN_ESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Grantors desiyxe by this Trust Agreement to

sstablish a revocable trust for the uses and purposes hereinafter

set forth, to make provision fox the care and management of

certain of theix present propexrties and for the ultimate disposi-

tion of the trust propertiest .
Jow, THERBFORE, the grantors hexeby give, yrant, transfsr,

set over and deliver as the oviginal trust estate, It TRUST, unto

the Trustea, who hereby daclara that they nave received from the

arantors all of the property 1isted on Schedule "A" (which

schedule 18 sttached hereta and mede 3 part of this Trust Agree-

ment), TO HAVE D TO HOLD THE SAME IN TRUST, and to manage,

invest and reinvest the same and any additions that may from time

to time be made thereto, subject to the hereinafter provided

byusks and the terms and conditions, powers and agreements,

relating theresbio.
additional propexty may he added to the trust estate, at.

any time and from time to time, by tha Grantoxs, or aither of

them, or by any person ox pexsons, hy inter vivoes ackt or testa-

mentary svansfer, OF by dnsurance contract or trust designatian,
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The propexty comprising the original bruat estate during

tite joint lives of the Grantors shall retain its character as their
community propaxty or_separate property, a% degignated on the
attached Scheduls "A". Properiy subsequently received by the
Prustee during the joint 1ives of the Grantoxs shall be listed

on an appropriate schedule annsxed hersto and shall have the

geparate OY community charactex escribed thereto on suell schedule.

FIR5T: NAME ALID BENEFICIARIES oF TRUST.. The trusts created
hereby shall be for bhe use and penefit of tha Grantors and for

SLEANOR MARGUERITE COWNELL HRRTHAN. the daughter of W. ¥. CONNELL

by a prior marriage, and for ber igaue ag nersinafter provided. -

FLEAHOR MARGUERITE CONNELL HARTHAN shall hereinafter he designated

as the rpesjdual Benaficiary”.

This trust shall bhe Kknown and jdentified as the "W. il. .
Connell and narjorie T. Conngll Living grust’, and, for purposeé
of coavenience, shall hereinafter be referrad to as ¢rust Ho, L.

SECOWD: TRUST HWO. 1. The Trustee shall hold, manage,

invest and reinvest the trust estate and shall gellect the income
thereof and dispose of the net income and principal as follows::

A, Income. The rrustee shall pay aqually to the
Graokars, GuElNg their joint lives, 21l community net inchmne
of the trust cotate and shall pay %0 each Grantox all 1
separate net sncome from his ox her xespective share of the
prust estate. Such jncome shall be pald to the Grantors
unless the Trustee recelives written natice from the Gxaptoxs
that all income shall not be digtributed buk shall be
accumulated hy the Trustee and invested and reinvested as

hersin provided.

g, Principal. pguring the joint 1ives of the Granhoxs,
the Trustée shall pay over and diatribute ‘o & Grantor such
art or all of the prjncipal af his or her separate property
and nig ox heXx gshare of the community properly placed in this
Initial trust by that Grantor as he oOX she shall demand in A
writing directed to the Trugtee.

c. Death of @ither granter. Upon rhe Qeath of the-

Grantor whose doath shall first OCCUEy the Trustae shall’
divida the trust estate, ineluding all propexty receivad asg
a result of the decedent's death, as follows: \
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1. he trust estate and al} property received”

as a result

of the decedent.'s death shall be divided

tnto two paris, each part to be adrinisterxsd as a

separate 1 4

ust to be known-xespectively as "Trust Wo. 2"

and “Trust §0. 3¢, Reference hereafter bO the

npecedent”

whose death

Hguyvivor”

ghall refer to either of the Grantors
shall first ocoMr and refexence to the
shall refer to the othar arantolr.

2. Jdhe Trustes shall allocate to Truyst Wo. 3

(a) the Sux

vivor's separate property interest in the

trust estate; {p} the gurvivor's one~half (1/2} )
jnterest inm the community property of the trust esktake.
less a propoxtionate part of all amounts properly

chaxgenble

against ald conmunity property: and (¢}

the Survivor's commun vy property“interest in any '
_policy of insuranca on the 1life of the Depedent awned

by the Grantorg as community property ang wade payable
vo Trust No. 1. '

3, The Trustee shall allacate to prust "o, 3,
grom the pecedent's separate property an amount ais

determined

in Article THIRD hereof.

4, The Trustee shall allocate to Trust Wo. 2,
all the remaining protion of the trust estate Dot
allocated to Trust No. 3 including, but not limited
to, the pecedent's commun Lty property interest, 1L any.
in any life insurance policy ©on the Life of the 2
pecedent payable toO prust Mo, 1. '

5. In the event that propexty 35 xeceived by the
prustee, by inter vivos ox testamentary transfer and .

directions

are contained in the instrunent of transfer.

for allocation toQ or between ryust NO. » pr Trust lo.

then the Trustee shall wake allocaktion in aceordanes
with such directions: anything to tha contrary hexein,
notwithstanding.

5., It is the intention of thea partles, that .
ELEANOR MARGUERITE CONMELL HARTMAW shall be a Co~" '

trustee of

the Decedent's separate propexty in trust

in this Trust to the extent the term "Trustee, 89’
hereinafteX used, shall spply to her-

FHIRD: MARITAL

Pl

Tyrusk NO. 3 from the

share of the sald ass

DEDUCTION. The Trustee shall allocate t0.

MARLIIADL

pecedent's separate property rthe fractional

ats which 1s equal L0 the maximum maritaf

deduction allowed EOX federal estate bax puxposes, reduced by .,

the total of any other amounts allowed under the Tntexnal Revanuc

Cpdz ag @ Marital Deduetion which ore not a part of this txust

estate, In making th

property to prust HO.

e computations and allocations of the sala)

3 as herein requizred, the determinatiocn

of the charactel and ownershlp of the gald property and the value

thereof shall be as £inally agtablished foxr federal estate taw
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pULPOSES . This distribntioh jg peing nade without regerd to
death taxas payabls by reason Of the Decedent's deatn, which taxes

shall be paid from peust Yo, 2 enly-
FOURTH TRUST NO. 2. Tha Trustee shall hold, manage, invast

and reipvest +he estate of Trusht HO. 2 ané shall collect the'

income thereof and dispose of the net incoma and princlpal as

followss
A. Death of pecedent. Wpon the death of the Decedent,

rhe Trustee Shall pay ixem the income OX principal of this
tyust, the death taxes, probate and legal expenses, and the
expenses of the last illneds and Funeral of Lthe Degedent,
provided, however, that no funds received bY the Trustee

as proceeds fyom a retirement plan qualifiea wder the
Tnternal Revenue Ccode shall be available for these PUXpPORes
gnlegss therxe pxe no aother apsels in the suxvivor's estato,
in which evenkt funds f£yom & qualified plan can ba used, but

only to the extent of thase actual expenses.

. B. Income. ALl income received by this Trust fxom
tha sepaxate propexty ©of phe Decedent shall be pald to theé
Hosidual Benefilciary, In the avent any of the real property

located in Upton County., Texas, 8% 1isted on the origina £
© Schedule np* attached hereto, forms 'a part of the corpus of
£nis Trust, the regsidual peneficiary shall be pald an
q@ditional paynent from the incomeﬂreceived from the
Décedent's half of the gommunity property. which formg &
part of the corpug of this ‘Trust, egual to all of the incone
vageived by this Trust from rhe real propexty located in
Upton County, TEXAE . HoweVEr,.the~provisions relating to
+the additional paynent, shall be noncunulative, and in auny
calendar year in which the income received from the sald
community propexty is not sufficient ko make full payment
hereunder, the prusbee is directed to Pa¥y only the incope
which has been received by this prust during that yeaxr. and
not to carry forward any deficlency 3o payment to the next

calendax year's income.

In the avent the Residual peneficiary predeceases

the Survivoxr, the Residual Beneficiary‘s rights to receive
income hergundex shall be paid to or for the benefit

of her living children and the issue of any degeased |
child ky right of representation; or in the event she’
dies without 1iving issue, het jncome rights hereunds

shall becoms those of the survivor.

»

a1l other income recelved by chis Trust shall bhe
distributed to the Survivor.

All payments as provided in this Segtion shall he
nade at freguent intervals, but at least semi-annually.

¢. Pringipal. The Trustee shall pay over and
distribute the principal of the estate of Trust No. 2
ag follows: .

ECAQ04
AA 1340




1. Powex to make {fts. The Survivor shall have
the discretionary pover Juring his or her Lifetime
to direct the Trustee to p3Y over and distribuke
F trust principal of the separate property in trvat
from the Dacedent’s rrust to ox for the benefif of
the Residual Beneficiary oX any of ner living issue:
snch pawer may be exercised by delivering to the
Trustee a writing duly axocubed and acknowledged,
whersip he or she gpecifies tha amount of principal
that should be paid over and distributed to the
particularx issue and in what proporkipna guch
principal shall bhe paid over and distributed. It
is the Grantors' intent hereby ta coavey upon the
survivor a sprinkling power: paid power is limited,
nowaver, to appointments made to and among the
Residual Beneficiaxy oY hey living issue.

2. power of invasion. 1f¢, in tha opinion of

the Trusted, &ha ThGome from all sources of which
the Trustee has knowladge shall not be sufficient
ro supperxt, maintaln, educats and provide for the

. survivor ‘ox Residual geneficlary or any lssue of
rhe Residual Beneficlary in their agcustomed mannalr
af living, or in the event of any emergancy ba-~
falling these said parties, such as illness,
accident.or other distress, the prustee Ls authorized
to uwaa and expend such part of the trust principal of
Decedent’s separate property in trust, as the
Prustes may deem necessary ar desirable to meat such
neags ar emergencies. rhe decision of the Trustee
as ko what shall constitute an emergency or the
nocessity or desirability of ancroachment upen
principal shall he conclusive upon all parties and
ihe Trustee shall be relieved and exonerated
hereundexr if the Trustes acts En good falth in
making such deteymination.

3. Sale of real property from Decedent's sgparate

roperty. The SUXVivor T direeted that ln the event
any additional money in needad for payment of

funeral, last illness O other costs to settle any
clajms made against pecedent's estate, or in the

event that the sale of Decedent's separate propexty

{s contemplated at any vime, only the separake
property of Decedent situated in Las Vegas, Clark
County, devada, shall be sold 0 gatisfy this
gbligation. '

4. Sale of yeal propexrty. In the event that
any real property which 1B {1sted on Schedule "AM’
attached heretd as vhe Decedent's separate property
angd, is a part of the corpus of Trust Jo. 2 is sold,
“the Grantors direct the Trugtee to distribute the net
prodéeds from such sale, less any applicable income
tax due becanse of sSudd gale, to the Rasidual
poncficlary, free gf trust. In the event. the
Residual Beneficiary is not living at the time of
the said 'sale, the proceeds therefrom shall remain "
in this Trust, and shall be subject to all of the
provigions as hwerein contained.
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D, Definition of real properliv. The term "real

property”_Es wsed in this Article FOURTH shall not include

the mineral, oil anil gas interests in Upton County, Texas,

{f the same are separately listed on Schedule "A" hereto.

EIFTH: TRUST NO. 3. ‘ona Trustee shall hold, manage, invest

and reinvest the eatate of prust No. 3 and shall collect the

ipcome thereof and-dispose of the net incowe and principal as

follows:

. AT Income. The Trusiee ghall pay to the survivoy
during his ox hex 1ifetime all of the net income of

the Survivor's truast estate in convenient, regular
{natallments, but not less graguently than quaxter~annually.

B, Powers of. appoinkment ovex lngome and prineipal,

1. During his or her jifetime, the Survivox
shall have the power to appoint all orx any part
of the principal and undistxibuted income, if any,
of the estate of Trust No. 3 to himself or hersgelf,
or to any person o persous. Swuch powex of appoint-
Dent §Rall Bo exercisable in all events, but only
by khe Suxvivor's submitting to the Trustee weltten
{nstructions expressly exercising such powmx.

2. . Upon the death of the Buyvivor, he or she
ghall have the absolute power to appoint the entire
principal and the undistributed income, 1f any,

NIRRT - 4 the. estate of Trusat NoO. 3, ox any part thereof,

to his ox her estate oy o ahy person or persons.

duch power of appointment shall be exercised only
by a provision in the Last Will of the Suryivor
eXpressly exerciaing such power. Unless within
ninety (90) days LWfter the death of the gurvivor
bhe Trustee has;actual notice :of the existence’
of a Will exercising such power, it shall be deemed
for all purposes hereunder that vuch -power wWasg

not exercised.’

¢. Revocation and Amepdments. The Survivex shall
have the power to yevoke, Tmend or terminate Txust Na. 3
herein pravided by delivering such amendments or xevocation
in writing to the Trustee provided that the Trustee's duties
and lisbilities cannot be increased without the Tyrustee's

consent.,

p. bDeath of Survivar, Upon the death of thse Surviver,
the Trustee shall distribute the trust estate in accordance
with and to the extent provided by the Survivor's exerclise
of his or hexr power of appointment.

Tf and to the extent that the gurvivor shall fail to
effectively exexcise tha foregolng pawer of appointment, ths
principal and undistributed income of Trust Ro. 3 shall, upon
hig or her death, be distributed to the Residual Bepeficiary,
or to the heirs of her body {f she is not then living.

L4
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gIXTH: SPENDTHRIET PROVISION, - Each and every veneficiary
under the Living prugt and the various estates created hexsunder
g hereby restrained from and ghall he witheut xight, powsx OX
authority to sell, transfex, psalgn, pledge, mortgadge, hypothecate,
alienate, anticipate, bagueath OF devise, or in any menner affeckt
or impair his, her or thelr wenefiaial right, title, intaréat,
claim and esgtate in and to eithex the income OT principal of any
claim created thereunder, or to any part thereof, during the entire
tpym of sald trustsy nor ghall the right, titlie, interést. oy
catate ©of ahy beneficiary be subject to any right, claim, demand .
1ien ox judgment of any creditor of any guch peneficiary, nox
be subjeckt nor liable to any proéess of law ox equity: but all

of the income and prinaipal, except as otherwige provided in this

Tyust Agreement chall by the Trustee pe payable and delivexakle

to pr for the benefib of only the before named and designated
beneficiaries, at the: times hereinbefore sat out, and receipt

py sueh pepeficiaries shall relieve the Trustee from responsibility
for such good faith digtributions.

‘ SEVENTHS POWE RS _OF TRUSTEE, TO carxy out the purposes of
any trust creatsd uqder this i nstrument and subject to any 1imi-

tations gtated elsevheXxe in this Trust agreement, the Trustee is8

vasted with the tollowing powers with resgpect to the trust estate

and any part of it, in addition ty those powWwers now or hereafteXx

ponferred DY law:

a. To cantinuwe to hold any property, including
any shares of the Trygtes's own stock and toO operate
at the risk of the rrust estate any businesa that the
Trustee receives 0T acquires under the txust as long

as the Trustee deems adviaable.

5, To manage, control, grank optlons on. sell,
(for cagh OF oOn deferred payments),.00“V€Y; exchange.,
partition, divide, improve and repaix¥ trust property.

c. To lease txust property for terms within or
beyond the texm of the trust and FOY 2any Purpose. jncinding

.
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exploration for and removal of gas, oil and other minerals;
and Lo enktex {pta compunity oil lesses; pooling and vniti-~

zation agreemants.

p. o horrow money apd to encumher ar hypothecate
truat property DY mortgage., deed of trust pledge, or
otharwise; to haorrow noney on pehalf of one rrust from
any othex grust created hereunder o quarantee any loan
made during the lifetime of the Grarntorls.

B. To varry, at the expense OF rhe trust, insUrance
of such kinds apd in such amQunts as the Truatee deems
pdvisable O protect the trust estate apnd the Trusites
against any hazard. '

F. ' To commence OF defend such 1itigation with respect
to the trust ox any property of the trust estate as the
proghee may deem advisable at the expense Of the trust.

6. %o compromise OX othexwige adjust any claims
ar litigation against or in favor of the trust.

¥. To invest and reinvest the ¢yust estate ip every
kind of property. real, personal O mixed, and every

kind of investwment, spacifically inclvding, but not by

way of Limitatlon, corporate obligations of evexy kind,
stocks, p:eferred or common, Snares of inveatment trusts,
jipvestment companien, and mutual funds and mortgage partici-
patlions, which men Of prudence, djscretion and intelligentce
acguire for their own acgcount, apd to inveet in any conwon
trust fund adminiotexed bY the Trustee and to lend money

of ona trust tO any other vrust created hergunder.

7. wWith xespect to securities held in the txust,

to have all tbhe rights, powers and privileges af an owner,
ineluding, but not by way af 1imitation, the powexr to

vote, give proxies and pay agsesaments; to participate

in voting rrusts, pooling agreements., forealosures, reorgans
igations. consolidations, Mergers, Liquidationa, snleag

and leases and incident to sueh participation ro deponit
securities with and transfer pikle to any protective

or other committee on such terms &8 the Trustee may deem
advisabley and to exercise or sell stock subscriptions

or coaversion rights.

J. Excepl as otherwisge specifically provided in

this i ngtyument, the determination of all matlers with ~
cespect £O what is principal and income oOf the truskt

cotate and the apportionment and allocation of receipts

and expenses therecd ghall be governed DY the proviglons

of the Naevada principal and ncama Law and ghall bea daterminad
by the prustea in the Truskee's diacretions provided, i
however, that a1l capltal gain aistributions fxow mukual

funds should be mllocated tO principal.

K., Al of the trust powers set forth in Navarda
fevised Sratutes 163.265 to 163.410 inclusive, 8are hereby
jnecorporated ipto this Trust Agreemant.

B
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EIGHTH: SPECIAL PROVISIONS,

A. Use of Home, the Trustee cshall allow the Survivor
to occupy and use until his ox her death the home (o¥
any interest therein] vsed by either or voth Grantora

as & principal residence a2t ihe time of the pecedent's

death, The Trusgtes shall, at the diseretion of the survivor,
sell such home, and 1f the gurvivor so directs, purchase
and/or build another comparable residence to be used

as a home for the Survivaor, and so on frow rime o time.

The Survivor shall not be required Lo pay any rent fox

the use of such homa,

B. ravocakion and Amendment -

1. (Exceﬁt ¥ | providea in paragraph 9 of this
clause) s

{a} This Trust Agreement, and the trusts
evidenced thereby, may pe revoked at any time
during the joint 1jves of the cGraptors by eithaer
of the Granltors delivering sritten notice of
revocation to the prugtee and to the other
Grantor.

(b} . This Trust Agreenent, and the trusts
evidenced thereby, may pe amended at any time
and from time 1o time during the joint lives

of the Grantors by the joint action pf both
Grantord delivering such ampandment OF amendments

in writing to the Trustee provided that the
Trugtee's duties and 1iabilities aannokt be
{ncreased without the rroatee's gonsants

(¢} From and after the death of the pecedent,
this Trust Agresment way not be revoked. altared
ov amended, except 28 provided in relation to

pragh NG. 3.

{3) Lpon any revocation of this Trust
hgreement, during the arantors’ joint lives,
the Trustec shall returx to each Grantox hisg
ar- hex nalf agf the commurtity asseks and to
each Grantox his @r hey separate propexty,
ag indicated on geohedule apr,

2. In the event thalt any {peurance on the

1ife of either GrantoX, owned by the other Grantor

ag his or heXx separate property, 3g payable o
the Trustee OF Trustees of any trust hersunder,
then, this Trust Agreemant and the trusts evidenced
thereby may be amended OF revoked, insofax as they
relate to such {psurance, only by the Grapntox who

. §5 ownexr of such insurance. *he insured Grantor
ghall have ne right tO revoke OF amend to that
extent. This paragraph shall be construed as 1imiting
the rights of the I pured~Grantor and not as expanding
the rights of the owner-Grantoer.

g i
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¢. Simultaneeus Death. 1f there he 00 sufficient
evidence that the Grantors died otheorwise than simultancously.
then Eor purposes of this Truskt agreement, it shall

ba concluaively presumed for all purposes oF administra-

tion and tax effect of this Trust Agreemant that the

pecedent shall be the Husband and the survivoer shall

pe the Wife. )

p. Limitation of Trusth POWeXS. agministrative
control and all other powexs Telating to the various
tyust estates ercated hereundex, shall he exercised
py the Trustee in a tiduciary capagity and golely for
vhe benefit of the gurvivor and the other heneficiaries
an herein praovided. Neither the Trustee, the Grantora,
nor any athexr parson, ahall be pormltted to purchase,
exchange, yeacqulre or othexrwise deal with oy diapoae
of the principal of any of the various trust estates
or the lncome therefrom, for less than an adegquate and
full consideration in money ox money's worth; nor shall
any person bOTXOW the principal or Tncome ©of the krust
astates, directly or $ndirectly., without adequate interast
in any case QX without adeguate gecurity therefor.

B gpmpenaation of Trustee. The prugtee or sUCCassor
fPrustee, asg herein provided, ghall receive reasonehle
compensation for ordinary Sexvices per formed hereunder.
Reagonable compengation shall be based LpOR the then
prevailing rates charged fa¥ gimilar services in the i
locality where the game are pexformed PY other fiduciaries
engaged in the trust business oF acting as trustees.

., Applicablae Law. whis Trust agreement 1s executed
under the laws of the State of yevada and shall in all
respects be governed by the 1aWa of the state of Nevadaj
provided, howevex, the prustee ghall have the discretion,
exercizable akt any later time and from time to time,

ro administer Trust No. 1 pursuant bo the laws of any
jurisdiction in which the Trustee may pe domiciled, by ‘
executing and scknowledging a written ingtroment to

that effeat and attaching the samo to this Trust hgree-

ment, and, 3f the. Trustes SO pxercises the prustee’s
discretion, &s ahove provideﬁ, xhe various +ryuant estatas
shall be govexrned, by khe laws of the other state OX
jurisdiction in which Trust No. 1 is then heing administered.

c. Invalid Broyigions. tn the event any clauge,
rovision or provisions of this Trust agreenent and

the Diving Prust created hereundex prove 1O be or be
adjudgad {qualid or void for any neason, then such invalid
or void clavseg, provision or provisions: shall not affect
the whole of this instrument, but the balance of the
provigions hereof shall remain operative'ané ghall be
carried blnto effect insofar as lagally possible. 1f
any provision contained in this Trust Agreement shall
stherwise violate the rules against parpetuities now
or horeaftex in affact in the state of Nevada or in any
state by which this Living Trust may gubsequently be
governed, that portion of the 'Prust S0 effected aball
be pdministered 283 herein provided wntil the termination .
of the maximuad period authorized by 1awW, at which time-
and forthwith, such part of the gaid trust estate 80

~10-
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affected shall be Aistributed in fee sinple to the bene-
figiary ot vepeficiaries in the propcrtions in whieh they
are then entitled to enjoy the beneilts 380 texminated.

H., Ipncompelency of peneficidf¥s: puxing any pariod
in which any beneficiary under this Trusk hgreement 1s
Judicially declared incompatent, ©F in the opinion of

the Trustee is uanable fo care for himselE, the Trustee
shall pay over Or use for the penefit of said incompetent
beneficiaxy any part or a1l of the net income or principal
¢rom his ox her share of the trust egstate, in sugh mannex
as the Trostee shall dea necessary or degirabhle for

sald peneficiary’s supporxk, maintenance and medical care.

v. Claimants. The Grantors have, axcept as othexwise
expreasty provided ju this Truat Agreemant jntentionally
and with full knowledde declined to provide for any and
all of theix heirs or othex pRrsons who may <lalm an
jnterest in thelr yespeckive agtates or iv thene trusts.

J. Headings. The varloas clause headings used
herein are for convenience oF raference only and constitute
- pa part of this Trust Agreeinant.

x. Copies. This Trusat Agreement DAY be axecuted
in any number of copies and each shall constitute nu
original of oneé and the same-instrument.

Toe ggnstruatioqa Wyhenever it shall be nacessary

to interpretl this trust, the masculing, feminine and neuter
personal pronouns may be constraed i pterchangeably. and

the singular chall include the plural and the plural

the singular. '

NINTH: LIFE INSURANCE POLICIES., with respact o any
policies of 1life insurance ander which the rrustee 18 designated
a5 beneflclary, the rruates shall deal with such policies as
required by the Ffollowing trust provisions, in addition to the

ganeral trust provisions hereinbe fore and herveinaftex set forth:

n. Custody of Insurance policies. The Prustee
shall have the custody ©of any poiicy of 1ife insurance
undey which the prustee 1S aesignatad as beneficiszy.
Howaver, the ownex shall have the right to possession
of sald policy ©KX poligies upon written request to the

Trustee,. .

g, payment of Premipms. the Txustee shall be
updex no obligatiop to pay the premiud of any policy
or policies of inpsurance, NOX o make certain that suach
premiums are paid by the Grantars OF othars, nor to
notify any persons of the non-payment of such premiums;
and, the Truskeo shall be under no responsibility or
1iability of any kind in case such premiums are not
paid.

~11-
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¢. collection of policy proceegds. UROM the death
of the insured underx such policy OX policles, the Truatea
chall collect all proceeds due therzon and the Trustee
shall make all-reasonable effoxts by carry out the provisions
of thig Trust Agreement, including the maintenance of or
defense of any actlian or sutt; provided, however, the
Trustee shall be undex no Juty to maintain O anter into
any litigation unless the expenses thereof, Lncluding
counsel fees and costs, hava been advanged OF guaranteed
in an amoupnt and in a manneyr which i8 reasonably satig-~
factory. The Trustee may Tepay any advances made by
the Trustee or reimburse itgelf for any auch feeg and
costs expended in reasonable attempts for collection
oF such proceeds out of the principal er income of the
trust,

5. Purchase of Rsgetg, whe Trustee 18 hereby
authoxrized 3nd empowered to apply any paxt or the whaole
amount of any ipsurance proceedys collected hereundex
to purchase assels from the insuxed's egtate which may
pe offered for sale DY the legal yepregentative of the
inaured's estate at A price equal Lo the value of guch
assets as Fixed by competent authority foxr purposet
of determining the 1{ability of the inguraed's catate
for death taxes oxr at such othex price a3 way be agxead
upon by the personal representative of the insured's

estate.

TENTH NON-CONTEBT PROVISION. qhe Grantoxs Bpecifically

degire that these truskts created hereln be sdministered and
distributed yiﬁhgptm;iﬁﬁggﬁign or éiapgtg of any kiﬂéﬁ If any
beneficiary of these trugta or any ather person. whetﬁer strange®w,
relatives or heirs, or any legatees OF dovisees under the Last
will and Testament of the Grantors OF the successoxs in interest
of any such persons, ipcluding any person who may ba crtitled

to receive any portion of the Grantors' estates under the

intestate luws of the State of Nevada, ggek or establish to

g§§e;;_gny_claim to the assets Of these trusts agtablished
_ ok to set sside the adminigbxacion

apd djstribution of the said txustg, ©OF to have the same declared

pull and void or aiminighed, ©OF to defemt OF change any part

of the provisions of the trust established herein, then in any

and all of the above mantioned cases anl events, such person oY

persons shall recaive Ona Dollax (51.00) and no mOXe in lieu

12~
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of any interest in the assets of the trusts.

QPEVENTEL DRATH OF ALL BENEPLCIARITS in the event the

Residval Beneficlary shall predscease the Grantors withoub

1iving lssue or children of any decsased cnild, then the Grantors
direct that all of the income and principal of any trusta creabed
hereunder shall be distributed to the ghriners Hospitals fox
Crippled Children upon the death of the gurvivor.

TWELFTH: SUCCESSOR TRUSTEZ. Xn the event of the death or

.
)
A

incapacity of either Grantor, kbo suxvivor shall continue to serve

ag the sole Trustee of all of the trusts ereatad hereaunder, Upon

the death or incepacity of the SUEvivox, the Grantors then

pominate and sppoint LLEANOR MARGUZRITE CONNZLL HARTMAN as the
rrustee of all of the krusts created hereunder, or in the event
that she is uneble oY unwilling Lo serve in the paid capaclty,
then the Grantors nominate and appoint the FIRST NATIONAL BANK
OF NEVADA to serve iph the said capacity. No sucdcéssor btrustee
ghall have any xespongibility for the acts or omissions of any
prioxr trustea and no duty to audit or inéestigafe the acoounts
or admipistration af any such trugtee, NOX. unless ip writing
raquested g0 kO do by @ person having a present or future bene-
f£icial intevest under a trust created hereunder, any duty to
take action or obtain redress for breach of tyust.

THIRTZENTH: ﬁgKNOWLEQGEMﬁﬂT[ REPORTE, INSPECTION OF RECORDS .

The Trustee hereby seknowledges recelph of and accepts the property
snd the estate of Trualk No. 1 created hereundar on the terms and
conditions gtated and agrees ro care for, panage and control

the same in accordance with the directions herein specified,

and to furoish to each bensficlary having income pald, dis-
tributed, credited or accuymulated for his or her benefit,

annually and more often if requested sSC to do, a statement showing

~13-
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the condition of the Lrust propexty. +he chavacter and amounts

of the investments and 1iabilities, and the receipts, eXpenses

and disbursements aingce the last previous atatamant, Tha hooksa

of account of the Trustee in connection with the investmentd

shall at all times be open Lo the reasonable inspection of

the living heneficlaries OF their duly gualified representatives,

and such person OX pexsons 3s they may designate fox that

pPuUrpose.

THIS TRUST AGREEMERNT 1s accepted and executed by the Grantors

and Trustge in the state of Nevada on the day and yeax firat

above written. '
GRANTORS :

7)1 el e
W, W.. ONNELL

/’s ﬁ:?ﬂx{{gf. »y "f/ (,_:?A"‘/zf/-’a’_/_fd.

MARTOREE - CONNALL,

TRUSTEE ¢
14 E‘Z : <7 Nasagett -
WY W, CONRELL

MBRJORYE T. CONNELL

STATE OF NEVADA%

COUNTY OF CLARK)

On "oaa o7 , 1872, personally appeared before me,

4 Notary Public, W. N, CONNELL and MARJORIE T. CONNELL, who

declarad to me thalt they executed the foragoing Trust Agreement.

Notpry Public in %ud for said g'mmmmfz-‘f”-mmﬂ':mzsv=~.~~.-..='--:=-v~--.--»_.-.,.~..-..,... .
é’ county and state Vo POTARY FULLID o« STAT: o % Ry & 94

&3

GLapy U dY H

JUNE £, GAVIN ¥

H

2

By Comuliingpg €rpards By 4 $4Y }
=
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g I o W b R e by
e rRA L TR Y
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SCHAEDULE “A"

(*The W. N. Connell and marjorie T, Cconnell Living Truak™)

ALl of the Grantors’ righta, title and interest in the

¢ollowing asgets are hereby trangferred to the Trustee as part

of this trust estate and will be administered and distributed

in agcordance with the texms of the forégding Trust Agreement.

the following real propexrty interests constitute the

communi ty preperty of the Grantoxrs:

1. Lots One {1) and Two {2) in Block sixteen (16}
of gouth Addition to the city of las Vegas, as
shown by map theracf on file in Book 1 of Platsa,

page 51, in the Offive of the county Regordex

of Clarxk county, Nevada.

5. Lot Three (3), glock Six (B}, Bilimore Addition
ro the City of Las Vegaa, as atiown by nap thexre-
of on file in Book 2 of pPlats, Page 33, in the

office of the County Recorxder of clark County,

Nevada.

3, lots Fifteen {15) and Sixtecn (16) in Block
Fifteen {13) in the gouth Addition to the City
of Lasg Vegas as shown by map thereof on file

in Book 1 of Plats, ®age 14, in the Office of
the County Recorder of ¢lark ¢county, Nevada.

4. Lots Twenty-Two {22} and Twenty-Three (23) in
Block Eleven {11} of South Addition to the city
of Las Vegas as shown by map thereof on f£ile in

pook 1 of Plats, Page 51, in the Office of the
gounty Recorder of clark County, Nevada.

5. LoLs Pwenty—four (24) and rwenty-five {25) in
Rlock Bleven {(11) of gouth addition to tha City
oF Lag Vegas, as shown by 1ap thexeof on £ile in

sook 1 of Plats, page 51, in the Dffice of the
county Recoxder of Clark County, Nevada.

The following assets constitute the separate property of

W. N. CONNELL:

1, peal Property:

(3} That portion of the North Half (v 1/2) of

the South Half (S8 1./2) of the gouthwest Quartex

(59 1/4) of section 2g, Township 20 South, Range
6l mast., M.D,.B.&M., described as fFollowa:s

peginning at the paint of jntersection ¢f the
cmnt Line of the Northwest quartex (NW 1/4) of

ECAO15
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the Southeast Quarter (s 1/4) of the gouthwest
Quarter {(SW 1/4) of said gection 18, said Township
and Range, (hereinafter called Line 1) with khe
seuth boundary of ¢lark Avenue produced Westerly
as the same is novw establighed (hareinaftex called

Line 2); thence South along

gald Line 1 2 digtance

of 478 feef; thence North 8990 36' West and parallel
to szid Line 2 a dlstance of 100 feet; thencd

Worth along a line parallael

to gaid Line 1 a

distance of 378 fget to said Line 2; thenhce tast

along said Line 2, 100 feet

to the point of beginning~

Togethexr with an andivided 1/30th interest of,

in apnd to all water flowing

or otherwise produced

from that certain axtesian well located in the
North #Balf of the gouth Half of the southeast

Quartexr of gaatlan 29, Town
61 Razgt, M,D.B.&M, known as

ghip 20 South, Range

the Hew russell

well. Together with an andivided 1/30th interest

in and to that certain pipe

1ine connected to

and xunning from said well Easterly to & point
100 feet Wesk fxom said Line 1 above desaxibed;
together with an sagemelt for said pipe line

in common with all the other owners of said pipc
line along a strip of ground three fert in width,

the center line of which 41

located apprnximately

150 feet South of and cunning parallel with gaid
rine 2, and which strip extends from said well

to a point 100 feet West from said line 1; together
with the right to enter therson for the purpose

of repairing, replacing and
peference: Deed # 1804085,

{n} The West 1/2 of Sectio

renewing gaid pipe line.
pook 35, pages 159 and 169.

n 37, all of gseckions

38, 47 and 48 in plock 3%, Township 5 South,
T. & P. R.R, Co. Suxvey in Upton gounty, Texas.

2, ‘Oil, gas and mineral rights

on and undex the following

described real propexty ip uUpton County, Texas.

{a) Sections 3l and 42 of Block 38, Township 5

gouth, T. & F. 2.R. Co., Sur

vey.-

{b} Sections 32, 33, 38, 37, 3g, 40, 41, 44, 45,
47 and 48 of Block 39, Township 9 gouth, T. & P.

A.R, Co. Survey.

{c) Bectionsy 36 and 37 of
5 South, T. & P, R.R, Co. S

3. 'The oil, gas and mineral le

plock 40, Township
wrvey.

ages on the fullowing desdribed

real proparty in Upton Coanty, Texas.

(a) Sections 31 and 42 of

nlock 38, Township 5

gouth, T- & P. R.R. Ca. Survey-

(b} Sections 32, 33, 36. 37, 38, 49, 41, 44, 45,

47 and 48 of Block 39, Townsbip 5 gouth, 7. & P.

R. R, Q0. Suxvey.

ECAQ16
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{¢) Sections 36 and 37 of Block 40, Townghip 5
South, T. & P. R.R. CO. Survey.

The undersigned Grantors named in the foregaling Trust Agree-
ment hereby certify that they have read gaid Trust Agreement and
that it fully and accurately aets out the terms, txusts and
conditions under which the trust guptate therein desexibed is
to be held, managed and dispomed of by the mruatee therein

pamed; and, that they hexehy approve, ratify and confirm the

gaid Trust Agreement.

STATE OF NEVADR)
) 88
COUNTY OF GLARK)

\ ¥ Y, , 1972, parsonally appeared befors

me, a Notary Public, W. ¥, CONNELL and MBRJIORIE T, CONNELL,

who acknuwledged to me that they executed the foregaing Trust

Agreement .

won QL Ay

No ¥y Public in and for said
County 2nd State

mmrmwwmwmml R NS iy Rl il ey
NOTARY PL -:\-3'3 M F s B0 'ﬂ\wﬂm

fotuaind
HI p‘.-)lr

JUNE A, GAaVIN

My Commussit Evparas Nep % PME

-
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EXHIBIT “7”
Schedule “A” of the Trust Agreement
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S5CHEDULE

(*The W. ¥, Connell and Marjorie

All of the Graptors' rights,

following asgebs are hereby trangfe

a"

7, Connell Living Trust")

title aﬁd interest ip the

ryed to the Trustee as part

of this trust astate and will be administerad and distributed

in accordance with the terxws of the forégding Trust Agreesnent.

The following real propexrty interest

s congtitute the

cammunity property of the Grantors:

1. Lots Ong (L} apnd Two (2) in plock Sixteeh (16}
of South pddition to the City of Ias Vegas, as
shown by wmap theraof on File in Book 1 of Plats:

page 51, in the Qffive of
of Claxk gounty, Nevada,

the County RegordeX

2. Iot Three {3), Block gix {6}, Biltmpre addition

to the City OFf Lag Vegda.

s shown by map thexe-

of on file in Book 2 of Plats, Page 33, in the
office of the County Recoxder of Clark County,

Nevadsa.

3, Lots Fifteen (15} and Sixtesén (16) in Block

Prifteen (15) in the south

aaddition to the City

of Las Vegas ag shown by map thereof on file
in Book 1 of plats, Page 14. in the Office of
the County Regoxder of Clark County, Nevada.

4. Lots Twenby-Two {22) and Twenty~Three {23} in
flock Bleven {11y of gouth Adaditaon ko the City
of Las Vegas as shown by map thereof op file in

pook 1 of Plats, Page 51,

in the Office of the

gonnty Recordex of Clark County. Revada.

5. LoLs Pwerty —-four (24) and

pwenty~£ive {23) in

nplock Elevan {11) of gouth addition Lo tha City

of Lag Vegas, a3 ahown by
sook 1 of Plats, page 51,

map thexeof on file in
ip the Office of the

county Recoxder of Clark county, Nevada.

The following assets cangtitu
W. N. COMNELL:
1. Real Property:

(z) That portion of the

te the separate_pzoperty of

North Half (v 1/2) of

the South Half (s 1./2) of the Southwest Quartex
(59 1/4) of gection 28, Townghip 20 gsouth, Range
pL Basb, M.D.B.&M., described as followa:s

peginning at the point of jntersection 08 the
fmat Line of the Northwest Quartex {nw 1/4) of

ECAO015
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‘031, gas and mln

the Southeast Quarter (st 1/4) of the southwest
Quarter {SW 1/4) of said section 28, said Township
ind fange, (hegeindfter called Line 1) with the
geukh boundary of ¢lark Avenne produced Westerly

as the same is 0oV establighed (hareinafter called
Line 2)}; thence South along said Dine 1 2 djgtance
of 378 feel:; thence Forth 899 36' Wesi and parallel
to =aid Line 2 a distance of 100 feet; thencs

North along a line parallel o gaid Line 1 a
distance of 378 fset to caid Line 2; thence East
along said bLine 2, 100 feet tO the pelnt of beginning-

Together with an undivided 1/30th iptexest of,

in and’ to all water flowing of otherwise produced
from that cerkain srtesian well located in the
worth Balf of the gouth Half of rhe sSoutheast
fuartex of geatlan 29, Pownehip 29 goutt, Range

61 Bast, M,D.B.&M, kpown as the New Rusaell

Well. Together with an undivided 1/30th interost
in and to that certain pipe line connected to

and running from salid well Easterly to & point

100 feet West Lxom said Line 1 above described;
together with an pusement for vaid pipe line

{n common with all the othar owners Of palid pipe
line slong & sE¥ip of ground three fept in width,
the center line of which ia located approximately
150 feet Sbuth of and cunning parallel with gaid
rine 2, and which strip extends from said well

to a point 100 feet West fxom sald line 1; together
with the zight to enteX thereon for the Purpose

of repaliring. replacing and renewing said plpe line.

Referenge: Ceed $# 180405, pook 35, pRYgRSs 159 and 160.

(b} The West 1/2 of section 17, all of Seckions
3g, 47 and 48 in Block 39, wownship 5 South,
T. & P. R.R, Co. Suxvey in Upton county, Texas.

eral rights on and undar the following

deascribed real propexty in Upton county, TeXas-

3.

{z) Sections Il and 42 of plock 38, Township 3
sounth, T. & P, 2.R. Co. Survey.

{b) sections 32, 33, 36, 37, 38, 40, 41, 44, 43,
47 and 48 of slock 39, Township 5 geuth, T, & P.
RvRO COQ Sul.'\fey.

(¢) Sections 36 and 37 of Block 40, Township
5 gouth, T. & F. R.R, Co. Survey-

rhe oil, gas and mineral 1eases on the following desdribed

real property in Uptan Couanty. Texas.

(s} Sections 3l and 42 of niock 38, Township 5
south, T. & P. R.R. CO. Survey.

<b> SGCtionS 32[ 33) ‘36; 37} 38’ 40! 41! 44’ 45[
47 and 48 of Bloek 39, Township 5 gouth, T. & P. .
R, R, Co. Suxvey. !

. -

erammars mps e TR RTAR PR
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COUNTY OF CLARK)

{¢) Sections 36 and 37 of Block 40T, Townghip 5
South, T. & P. R.R. Co. survey.

The undersigned Grantors naped in the foregoing Trust Agree-

ment hereby certify that they have read said Trust Agreement and

 that it fully and accurately sets out the Lerms, trusts and

conditions under which the trust gntate therein desoribed is
to be held, managed and 3digpomed of DY the Truatee therein

named; and, that they herehy APDrove, ratify and confirm the

; L Z” < {17 W’ﬁ?\ﬂ;‘g e
N, COMNELL ™

zzzgﬁi@a?‘ﬁmwgm
MARJORIE T. CONNEILIL

gaid Trust pgreemant.

STATE OF HEVRI}A}
) &8

1972, persdnally appeared befors

O

- YD
on }j}g&l&t.l\g
me, a Notary ¥Public, W. N, CONNELL and MBRIORIE T, CONNELL,
who acknawledged to me that they executed the foregoing Truast

Agreement .

Norajy Public in and fox said

gounty and State

AT R AT A R T R T T
o B aVanA 3
o \ CLINE TT LY b

3 T ) »
TR el LR aed -

ATy JUNE A, GaViN

] N My Gomrsezas vy Sep % 10

T Hii4 17 b FLIE NOPVREP PRETRY TR TRESPR W BT LS, S p LT, b

3
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EXHIBIT “8”
Handwriting Report from Curt Baggett
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Curtis Baggett

Expert Document Examiner
908 Audelia Road, Suite 200-245
Richardson, Texas 75081
Phone: 972.644.0285
-+Fax: 972.644.5233
curtbaggeliitmsn, com
wiww, ExpertDocumenibExaiiner.com:

Questioned Document Examiner Letter

Subject: Marjorie T. Connell
Date: April 16, 2014

I have examined three (3) documents with the purported known handwriting and signatures of
Marjorie T. Connell. For the purpose of this examination I have labeled these exhibits "K 1"
through “K 3”.

Today I have compared the handwriting and signatures on the questioned document; identified
herein as “Q1” to determine if the author of the Marjorie T. Connell handwriting and signatures on
the “K” documents was the same person who authored the name of Marjorie T. Connell on the
questioned document; signature page for the Marjorie T. Connell Last Will and Testament dated
January 7, 2008.

An examination of handwriting includes establishing patterns of writing habits to help identify the
author. Handwriting is formed by repeated habits of writing by the author, which are created by
neuro-pathways established in the brain. These neuro-pathways control muscular and nerve
movement for writing whether the hand executes the writing, foot, or mouth.

In support of my opinion, I have included an excerpt from Hawndwriting Identification,
Facts and Fundamentals by Roy A. Huber and A.M. Headrick (CRC Press LLC, 1999, pp
50-51) wherein the leading forefathers of document examination in the USA agree that one
significant difference in the fundamental structure of a writing compared to another 1s
cnough fo preclude common authorship:

[Ordway] Hilton stated: "It is a basic axiom of identification in document
problems that a limited number of basic differences, even in the face of numerous
strong similarities, are controlling and accurately establish nonidentity."

[Wilson R.] Harrison made similar comments: "..the fundamental rule which
admits of no exception when handwritings are being compared ...is simple --
whatever features two specimens of handwriting may have in common, they
cannot be considered to be of common authorship if they display but a single
consistent dissimilarity in any feature which is fundamental to the structure of the
handwriting, and whose presence is not capable of reasonable explanation."
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[James V.P.] Conway expressed the same theme when he wrote:  “A series of
fundamental agreements in identifying individualities is requisite to the conclusion that two
writings were authored by the same person, whereas a single fundamental difference in an
identifying individuality between two writings precludes the conclusion that they were executed
by the same person."”

And finally,

[Albert S.] Osborn and others have generally agreed that despite numerous similarities
in two sets of writings, a conclusion of identity cannot be made if there are one or
more differences in fundamental features of the writings.

Based upon thorough analysis of these items and from an application of accepted
forensic document examination tools, principles and techniques, if is my professional expert
opinion thal a different person authored the name of Marjorie T. Conmell on the questioned document:
Someone did indeed forge the Marjorie 1° Connell signature on the questioned document Q1 ",

I am willing to testify to this fact in a court of law and T will provide exhibits to the Court
showing that I had sufficient data and that my opinion is correct. My Curriculum Vitae is
attached and mcorporated herein by reference.

Respectfully submitted,

2w aﬂl_

Curt Baggett

State of Texas

O O

County of Dallas §

The above Letter of Opinion was sworn to and subscribed before me by Curt Baggett this 16th day
of April 2014, "

"“"-a,\ %f@)(_@f/kﬂ T T,

Notary Public

-

S B JESSICA BLACKSHEAR
). %% Notary Public, State of Texas

s My Commission Explres
¥ August 08, 2016
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Section 8.07  Other Definitions

Except as otherwise provided in my will, terms shall be as defined in the Nevada Revised
Statutes as amended after the date of my will and afier iy death.

Section 8.08  Survivorship

For purposes of this will, any beneficiary shall be deemed to have predeceased me if such
beneficiary dies within 90 days after the date of my death.

Section 8.03  Severability

If any part of this instrument shall be adjudicated to be voud or invalid, the remaining
provisions not specifically so adjudicated shall remain in full force and effect.

I, MARJORIE T. CONNELL, sign my name to this instrument consisting of 9 pages on
January 7, 2008 and being first duly swom, do hereby declare to the undersigned
authority that { sign and execute this instrument as my Last Wil and Testament, that |
sign it willingly, that I execute it as my free and voluntary act for the purposes therein

expressed, and that I am eighteen years of age or older, of sound mind, and under no

constraint or undue influence,

) ?7”- ‘ ' j?‘ ) i &
MARIOR]

- Page 8

QDE EXHIBIT

Q1
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TO: Prime Operating Co

COPY

September 19, 2001

O & GAS DIVISION ORDER

mpany Date:

2900 Wilcrest Dr., Suite 475

Houston, TX 77042

Property Number:
Property Name:
Operator:

County and State:
Property Description:

6375 Effective Date:  First Sales
Connell Estate #1 #2, #3, #4

Prime Operating Company

Upton

Section 33, Block 39, T&P Raihway Company Survey, Upton County, Texas,

containing 640 acres, more or less, from the surface of the ground down to a depth of

9,150 feet.
Owner # Interest Type Nanie & Address Decimal Interest
7635 Royalty Marjorie 1. Connall & 0.046392050

e, VR Tdogiiy
PR MHEMEE SO R B 1 F I FY S P

P.G.Box 710
Las Vegas NV 89125

R S
PR M 3

The undersigned certifies th

e ownership of their decimal interest in production or proceeds as described above

payable by Prime Operating Company:

Prime Operating Company s
address. All such changes sh

hall be notified, in writing, of any change in ownership, decimal interest, or payment
ail be effective the fisst day of the mouth following receipt of such notice.

Prime Operating Company is autherived to withhold payment pending resolution of n titke dispute or adverse cleim

1 1 4 [
asserted regarding the interest i produstion claimied herein by the undersizned,

The undersigted aprees to

indemnify and reimburse Payor zny amount ateibulabis 1o arc interest to which the undersigned is not entitled.

Prime Operating Company may accrug procac

z until the totz] amount equals $25.00, or pay annually, whichever

occurs first, or as required by applicable state stam!e.

This Division Order does aot amend any lesse or nperating agreenent between the undersigned and the lessee or

operator or any other contrav

15 for the purchase of ol oy gas.

it addition to tae terms and conditicns of this Division Order, the undersigned and Pripe Operating Company may

have certain statatory rights under the laws

Speciat Clanses: COMPLE

Owner Signanre:

Owner Tax 1.D. Number:

Owner Daytime Telephone #:

Owner Fax it

Failure to dureish yowys Sunisd
gecprdance with feders? L

of tha state in which the nropeity is locatsd.

{8 and RETURN V8 ATTACHED WG FORM

"?‘)’} o r:,, _»p'w:. T ai“‘r} ;./w.-;,j,{: «7 Lot .%-*{: et
.th déf., .-‘?’ﬁ’h? S ?)' 5_)1
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PRy .1 rertoenairein 4 ok lndding fux iy
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QDE EXHIBIT

Kl

e e e

AA 1362



ol o e o T
v @3 9 e b e w R &~ &
“_ﬁﬂwmm===£=n¢=m: ——

8

W & -~ @ @ B s N g

SUBSTITUTION OF TRUSTES

L]

?iARJORIB T. CDNHELL, suxviving Truatae af the W. G
CONNELDL AND WOREE T, CONNELIL LIVING 'I‘P,UST: nadn and en-
tared into an May 18, 1972, by anad batwaen W H.‘mmm
and HERJ’ORIE '1’. cmma;‘!” &8 Grantore, and %4., N. CORHBLH angd
MARJORIB T. ccséﬁnn, aa Trugtes, hereby aubneituten pngﬁ
appoints ELERNQR H&RGUBR}TB CONNELL E&RTMRRa dsughtexr of ’
Wo. M. CO&NE&», as ca-Trﬂatae of the aaparata propexty of
5. N. CONNELL peeaancl_y_halﬁ in the abova;-fmﬁi,tleci Trust.
This subsﬁi;%u‘%ian iz made pursunnt to the tem of paid Trust,

| dug &0 thoe dacesse of W, N. CONNRLL, who paé:tsnd awvay Novem-

ber 24, 187%.

Tha mdgmignaﬁe BLWGR mﬁpmﬂ muﬁgz& Hﬂﬂmﬂo &I.EO
knm .T: ELBM!QR C. We mee.hy eansents t@ gexve as (o~

Trustes of the zeparate propsrty of %, 18 eogmam, in the above-

entitled Trust. . _— ",
Dated this &8 aday of 2 -, 1980,

§TATE OF NEVADA 1} . y y
: B8 .

s e s et Ay S TI o ks g s T W

COUNTY OR @LARK ) -:*' " i 4 QDE EXHIBIT

On thiog é 6&137 Qf-_m& 1989; b&f@!‘ﬂ i'flﬁ's- K 2

undaraionad B Mo war. B dm S L.
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N e e
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Prime Operating Company s autherized to withhold payment pending resolation of o tisle duspute or adverse claim
asserted regarding the interest i produstion clabned hemein by the wndersioned.  The undersigned agrees to
indemnify and reinburse Payor any araount alttibutabds 10 s interess to which the undersignad is not entitled.

Prime Operting Company may accrue proczeds until the totel amotmt equals $25.00, or pay annually, whichever
occurs first, or as required by applicable state statute.

This Division Order does nov amend any lease or anerating ayreenent between the undersigned and the lessee
aperator or aay other contracts for the puarchase of off o gas.

In addition to e tenns and conditions of this Division Grder, the ﬂmmﬁ.ﬁmzﬁ_ and Prine Operating Company may
have certain sintatory rights undey the fawes of the state tnwhicls the vroperty s Jeented.

Special Clauses: COMPLETE ard RETURN YA ATTACHLD "NV-G FORRM

Lo . T P S
A . © o ) \s.«. ’ mv. PR F s . L -, .
(LA SIPR T SR m‘?ﬁ,\.w_vm A, v R G £oa
- J.\.w \h.v..\..\‘..‘ .‘\ - - w....n «:w”o MF-!I F _m. pa...mm.. 37 & 4 %H OO |
Os fner .JNS:%:: L_ii?hwaﬁm ﬁwﬁa._w-.;%h;.wlﬁ\,w..,.m!ﬁ”mwhnp R S
ot .y m. ] o M\é_o.. e IR .\.
Owner Tax LD, Number W gew (AU Y _
. n rd U \. R IR
- i . [ - w_. N A kv
Owner Daytiine Telephone #: N mv 3 ;;: R

Owner Fax Ik

- e s : . % T
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CURT BAGGLETT

Expert Document Examiner
908 Audelia Road, Suite 200-245, Richardson, TX 75081
Phone: 972.644.0285 - Fax: 972.644.5233
curtbagegett@msn.com
www.ExpertDocumentExaminer.com

Curt Baggett is a document examiner and expert witness. He is also a skilled authority in handwriting
identification and completed over 3,500 cases. Mr. Baggett has examined documents and/or testified in
court cases as a handwriting expert in all 50 states, Washington, D.C., the Bahamas, Brazil, Canada,
Chile, England, Ireland, Mexico, Pakistan, Puerto Rico, Thailand and New Zealand, Korea, China,
Australia and Denmark.

He has been retained by the U.S. Department of Justice, the State of Arizona, State of Arkansas, the State
of California, Louisiana Public Defender Board, and the State of Texas. Mr. Baggett has appeared as a
handwriting expert on WOLF-BLITZER-CNN; CHARLES GIBSON-ABC, INSIDE EDITION, CBS
Network Radio, CBS, CNBC, CNN, FOX, JUDGE ALEX, TEXAS JUSTICE and GOOD MORNING
TEXAS and was a consultant as a forensic document examiner for a number one television show, “CSI:
Crime Scene Investigation”. Mr. Baggett is the co-author of “The Handwriting Certification Home Study
Course” and has been a guest on various other television and radio programs discussing handwriting and
forensic document examination.

Mr. Baggett once held the position as Dean of the School of Forensic Document Examination at
Handwriting University. In addition to lecturing and teaching document examination, Mr. Baggett has
analyzed handwriting for over 30 years. He has been qualified as an expert witness i Justice of the
Peace, Municipal, District, State, U.S. District, and Federal Bankruptcy Courts.

His education and training in document examination and psychology include: U.S. Army, Military Police
Officer’s School; B.A. and M.Ed., McNeese State University, Lake Charles, Louisiana; and post-graduate
studies at the University of Houston, Houston, Texas.

Curt Baggett’s library is extensive and includes literature on questioned document examination, forensic
handwriting analysis, behavior profiling, and statement analysis.

Laboratory equipment used for examination consists of a Stereo Star Zoom American Optical 7x — 30x
twin microscope; Micronta illuminated 30x microscope; stereo microscope S/ST series; universal
DigiScoping adapter; numerous magnifying devices; protractor and metric measuring devices; Pentax ME
camera; Pentax macro 1.4, 50mm flat copy lens; overhead projector; light table, and transparencies.

Curt Baggett’s Education and Training in Handwriting and Document Examination Include:

An in-person, two-year apprenticeship with Dr. Ray Walker as a handwriting expert and questioned
document examiner. Dr. Walker’s qualifications have been affirmed in the Court of Appeals, Fifth
District of Texas at Dallas, and had historical rulings in his favor. A leading authority in the field of
handwriting analysis and document examination, Dr. Walker is the author of The Questioned Document
Examiner and the Justice System.

Mr. Baggett is certified by the American Bureau of Document Examiners. He also has a certificate of
completion from the American Institute of Applied Science.

Rev 5/6/14 1
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Lectures, Conferences, and Classes Attended:

2004 School of Forensic Document Examination’s Annual Conference, Dallas, Texas
Attended classes taught by Reed Hayes, QDE, Katherine Koppenhaver, QDE, Bill Koppenhaver,
QDE

2004 School of Forensic Document Examination’s Teleclass Curriculum
Examination of Anonymous Writing by Reed Hayes, QDE
Document Examination Terminology by Don Lehew, QDE
Notary Public by Don Lehew, QDE
Advanced Forgery Identification by Don Lehew, QDE
Instructor

2005 School of Forensic Document Examination’s Annual Conference, Dallas, Texas
Attended the following lectures, in addition to general sessions:
Tremors and line Quality taught by Reed Hayes, QDE
Demonstrative Evidence taught by Katherine Koppenhaver, QDE, Bill Koppenhaver, QDE
Photography through microscopes by David Babb, QDE
Paper and Watermarks by John McGuire, QDE
Lecturer

2005 School of Forensic Document Examination’s Teleclasses
Natural Variation taught by Reed Hayes, QDE
The Discrimination of Handwriting by Don Lehew, QDE
Procedures for Examining Signatures by Don Lehew, QDE
Courtroom Procedures and Roles by Don Lehew, QDE
Instructor

2006 School of Forensic Document Examination’s Annual Conference, Dallas, Texas
Attended the following lectures, in addition to general sessions:
Deposition and Cross Examinations by Dr. Richard Frazier, QDE
Medical Problems Affecting handwriting by Dr. Richard Frazier, QDE
Legal Issues for Document Examiners by Dr. Richard Frazier, QDE
Deposition and Cross Examinations by Dr. Richard Frazier, QDE
Health Factors Affecting Handwriting by Dr. Joe Alexander, QDE
Prescription Forgery and Medical Crimes by Diane King
Lecturer

2007 Handwriting University Annual Conference, Dallas, Texas
Trainer and Instructor

2007 School of Forensic Document Examination’s Teleclasses
Instructor - Handwriting Basics and Exemplars
Instructor - Multiple Classes on Case Studies and Examinations

2008 Handwriting University Annual Conference, Las Vegas, Nevada
Trainer and Instructor

2009 School of Forensic Document Examination’s Live Teleclasses
Attended a variety of classes taught by Robert Baier, QDE, Police Instructor

2009 Handwriting University Annual Conference, Las Vegas, Nevada
Critical Incident Stress: Statement Analysis and Interview v. Interrogation by Faith Wood

Rev 5/6/14 9
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Forensic Document Examination Application by Robert Baier, QDE, Police Instructor
Trainer and Instructor for Introduction to Forensic Document Examination

2010 Handwriting University Annual Conference, Las Vegas, Nevada
Advanced Statement Analysis by Faith Wood
Identity Theft and Prevention by Robert Baier, QDE, Police Instructor
Trainer and Instructor for Introduction to Forensic Document Examination

2010 Speaker — “Introduction to the Science of Handwriting and Forensic Document Examination”, Clear
Lake High School

2011 Lecturer and Instructor, “How to Spot a Forgery”, Denver Elections Division,
Denver, Colorado

2012 Lecturer and Instructor, “How to Spot a Forgery”, Denver Elections Division,
Denver, Colorado

2012 Speaker — “How to Avoid a Forgery”, Military Order of Purple Hearts Annual Meeting, Dallas,
Texas

2013 Speaker — “Introduction to the Science of Handwriting and Forensic Document Examination”;
Appointment as Guest Lecturer and Consultant by Stefanie Page, Instructor, Forensic Science
Department, Jesuit College Preparatory School of Dallas

2013 Speaker — “Introduction to the Science of Handwriting and Forensic Document Examination”, Irma
Lerma Rangel Young Women’s Leadership School, Dallas, Texas

Current Memberships

American College of Forensic Examiners International
American Legion

Center of Forensic Profiling

Forensic Expert Witness Association

IMS Expert Services

Military Order of World Wars

National Questioned Document Association
Sheriff’s Association of Texas

Texas Police Association

Veterans of Foreign Wars

World Federation of Handwriting Experts

Published Articles and Books

Ethics for Experts
Handwriting Certification Course
How to Help Attorneys With Your Case

How to Spot a Forgery
Taking the Witness Stand

Rev 5/6/14 3
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EXHIBIT “9”
Handwriting Report from Laurie Hoeltzell
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DECLARATION OF LAURIE HOELTZEL

I, LAURIE HOELTZEL, hereby declare as follows:

1. I am a Court Qualified Document Examiner and Handwriting Expert in this field. I am
over the age of eighteen years, am of sound mind, having never been convicted of a felony or crime
of moral turpitude; I am competent in all respects to make this Declaration. [ have personal
knowledge of the matters declared herein, and if called to testify, I could and would competently
testify thereto.

2. [ have studied and was trained in the examination, comparison, analysis and identification
of handwriting, discrimination and identification of writing. altered numbers and altered
documents, handwriting analysis, trait analysis, including the discipline of examining signatures,
with over twenty (20) years of experience in this field. A true and correct copy of my current

Curriculum Vitae (“C.V.”) is attached as “Exhibit 1”.

An examination of handwriting includes establishing patterns of writing habits to help identify the
author. Handwriting is formed by repeated habits of writing by the author, which are created by
neuro-pathways established in the brain. These neuro-pathways control muscular and nerve
movement for writing, whether the writing done is by the hand, foot, or mouth.

In support of my opinion, I have included an excerpt from Handwriting Identification, Facts and
Fundamentals by Roy A. Huber and A.M. Headrick (CRC Press LLC, 1999, pp 50-51) wherein the
leading forefathers of document examination in the USA agree that one significant difference in the
fundamental structure of a writing compared to another is enough to preclude common authorship:

[Ordway] Hilton stated: “It is a basic axiom of identification in document problems that a
limited number of basic differences, even in the face of numerous strong similarities, are
controlling and accurately establish nonidentity.”

[Wilson R.] Harrison made similar comments: “...the fundamental rule which admits of no
exception when handwritings are being compared...is simple -- whatever features two
specimens of handwriting may have in common, they cannot be considered to be of
common authorship if they display but a single consistent dissimilarity in any feature which
is fundamental to the structure of the handwriting, and whose presence is not capable of
reasonable explanation.”

[James V.P.] Conway expressed the same theme when he wrote: “A series of fundamental
agreements in identifying individualities is requisite to the conclusion that two writings
were authored by the same person, whereas a single fundamental difference in an
identifying individuality between two writings precludes the conclusion that they were
executed by the same person.”

Marjorie T. Conneli 4.17.14
DECLARATION OF LAURIE HOELTZEL
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and finally,

3.

[Albert S.] Osborn and others have generally agreed that despite numerous similarities in

two sets of writings, a conclusion of identity cannot be made if there i1s one or more
differences in fundamental features of the writings.

Request: 1 was asked to review the document in question to determine if the signature of

MARJORIE T. CONNELL is authentic. | have examined and compared the signature of

MARJORIE T. CONNELL on the questioned document to the signatures of MARJORIE T.

CONNELL on the comparison documents. Below are the documents [ was asked to examine:

4.

Fxhibit List: Questioned Document

Exhibit 2. Q1 — A signature page of a Last Will and Testament, page 8, dated January 7,

2008 bearing the purported signature of MARJORIE T. CONNELL, Testatrix.

Comparison Documents for MARJORIE T. CONNELL

Exhibit 3. C-MTC1-A one (1) page copy of an Oil & Gas Division Order to Prime
Operating Company, Property Number: 6375, Property Name: Connell Estate #1 #2 #3 #4,
Property Description: Section 33, Block 39, T&P Railway Company Survey, Upton
County, Texas, Containing 640 acres, more or less, from the surface of the ground down to
a depth of 9,150 feet, dated September 19, 2001, bearing the purported signature of
MARJORIE T. CONNELL, Owner Signature, Trustee.

Exhibit 4. C-MTC2- A one (1) page Substitution of Trustee, dated May 6. 1980,
bearing the purported signature of MARJORIE T. CONNELL, Owner Signature, and
Trustee.

Exhibit 5. C-MTC3- A one (1) page handwritten Trust Estate, Upton County, Texas,
Trust Number: 88-6037338, dated 1995, bearing the purported handwriting of MARJORIE

T. CONNELL, Trustee.

2

DECLARATION OF LAURIE HOELTZEL

Marjorie Connell 4.17.14
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Exhibit 6. C-MTC4- A one (1) handwritten letter to Ellie, dated November 7, 2006,
bearing the purported handwriting of MARJORIE T. CONNELL, Nanna.

Conclusion: Based upon my thorough analysis of these items, and from an application of
accepted forensic document examination tools, principles and techniques my professional
opinion follows.

5. Pertaining to the alleged signature of MARJORIE T. CONNELL, Testatrix on the ‘Q1’
document: It is highly probable the author of the MARJORIE T. CONNELL signatures on
the comparison documents ‘CMTC1” & *CMTC2’ did not author the signature of MARJORIE
T. CONNELL on the questioned document, ‘Q1" a signature page of a Last Will and
Testament, dated January 7, 2008. This document examiners professional opinion is that the
MARJORIE T. CONNELL signature on the questioned document, Q1" is a forgery.

6. 1 reserve the right to update my opinion based upon my examination of verified known

exemplars.

7. 1 declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 1s
true and correct and that this declaration was executed on the 17th day of April, 2014, in San
Bernardino County, CA.

T SR, AR }
LAURIE HOELTZEL, PhDc
3

DECLARATION OF LAURIE HOELTZEL
Marjoric Connell 4.17.14
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Seciion 8.47 Oither Definitions

cept as otherwise provided in my will, terms shall be as defined in the Nevada Revised
'a sutes as amended after the date of my will and after iy deam

Ee’J Tl‘i

Seotion 808  Survivorehip

"

For purposes of ihis will, any ‘amemm‘-f shall be deemed 1o have wredeceased me iY such
{

weneficiary diss within fi vy after the dale *fm}; :

'\:

Soofion 8.08 Severabill

If any pari of ihis instrament shall be adjudicated o be void or imealid, the remaining
provisions not specifically so adjudicsied shail rernain in full {orce az"a? sffect,

7, MARJORIE T. CONNELL, sign my name 1o this instrument consisting of ¥ pages on
ignuary 7, 2008 and being first duly swom, do hereby dechare m the undersigned
authority that | sign and exeente this instmspent as my Lasi b Wil and Testament, that !

la
sigm i wi?iiﬁg.y, that 1 execuie i as my Fee and volontary acl for ihe purpases therein
-

expressed, and that | am eighteen years of age or older, of sound mind, and under no
consiraint or vpdue infhience.

iy . nvte -
f’ ‘ o ' s > A

- } [ & ‘ - N P
Al B Bt i eal B0 £ il S
MAT \JSOOQF_. T CONNELL, Testairix

bt
£33
{16
[i3]
20
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OTL & GAS DIVISION ORDE g\\ /a
1O Prime Operating Company Date;  September 19, 2001
2900 Wilerest Dr., Suite 475
Houstan, Tw 77042
Property Mumber: &373 Effective Date:  First Sales
Property Mame: Connell Bstate #1 #2, #3, #4
{perator: Prime Operating Company
County and State: Upton
Property Description: Section 33, Block 39, T&P Railway Compasny Survey. Upton County, Texas,
containing 640 acres, more or less, from the swface of the gronnd down to a depth of
9,150 feet.
Owner # interest Type Wame & address Diechinal Interest
7635 Royaly Sariorie T Conrelt & 0.046392050
I 1 - 2 A

R LTy N ST T
Er SN iae Arilddaiais, maTRIRwGLS

P, . Bor 710
Las Vegas NV 89123

The vndersigned certifies the ownership of their decimal interest in production or procseds as described above
payable by Prime Operating Company:

Prime Opeiratmg; Company shall be notified, i vriting, of any changs in ownership, dechral interest, or payment
address. All such changes shall be effective the fitst day of the mout’ foli owing receipt of such notice.

Prime Opemtinu Compaty is autherized 1o withbold pryment senching resolution of a titke dipute or adverse claim
asserfed regarding the interest o prodastion elaind Nerein by ihe undersigned.  The undevsighad agrees o
indemnify and refmburse Payoer any anoeat attribulable 1@ an interest (o which the undersignad s not en titled.

Prime Opersting Company may acrue proceeds until the totz) amount equals $25.00, or pay annually, whichever
aceurs first. or as required by applicable state statute.

This Division Order does not umend any lesse or operating sgreement between the andersigned and the lessee oF
operator or any | ather contracts foe the parchase of ofi ¢

G Tan.
4

Lt addition 16 the ferms and conditicns of this Division Grder, the unders nmr‘:j wndt Prime Operating Company may
have cerlain statatory rights under the fawes of tha state in swliich the NremGtty 15 1o ﬂ“s:l

Snecial Clanses: COMPLETE and RETLHD

Owner Signatre:

Owner Tax LD. Number:

Owner Daytiine Telephoue #:

Orner Fox sl

I L 1T ST TR VTR AL E LI IR FR N UL RVIRTL I AN SRS NS o pesndocihhalfiog 1ax iy
sl d

P . 41, [N i ot NI
LOSUIARIICe ity il f b, ¥ g o S A S I Ao R e e D RY

QDE EXHIBIT
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HARJORIE T. COMNELL, surviving Trustsd g:sff whe W M
DONNELL AND %ﬁﬂw%ﬁ%ﬁ 7. CONWELL: LIVING Wﬁﬁﬁ?g Qmé@ and an-

red inve on May 18, 197%, by and batween W. M. COWNELL

and a@sﬁﬁ@i&:@ £o CUNME KM& ag Grentorg, nd ¥e M. Q0L %i;azzm. ané
L d

HARJORIRE @a ﬂwﬁ% ety @s ?ﬁuﬁﬁ%ﬁ haraby gub@?iﬁ%t&@ ?nﬁi

bl

appoints BLEARGR Em&ﬁgﬁm TN CONMELL Eﬁ.%%%% danghbtesr of
We . CONNELL,. 88 §QWT£%%§%@ af ¥he @@?&ﬁ&ﬁ@ property of
2, M. CONNELL presantly held in the shove-snglzled Trust.

werms of psld Trust,

38

Phin subseitutios iz wade pUrsuent Lo the

P dug b tho dscesss of B, Y. CONNBIL, who passsd awey Rovemn-

b
= , 3 9 o .H
ey 24, 197%. 4

The pndarsignad, ﬂhﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ hﬁ%@wMRXWﬁ m&&y@;& ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%&% ‘Bian
Enown &%ﬁ;-ﬁmﬁéﬁxﬁgﬁ €. &%&%¢ 5&@3?@%‘:: @ﬁﬁu@@ﬁa %’@ gueve Bg Tow

rugten of the sepsrate proporsy of ¥, Ry Wﬁﬁ in the abosve-

0

| antitlad Trupd.

Dated this éﬁma‘ms uf ¢ iBea,

s

-

p&ﬁﬁ&ﬁ‘}%: :

BLYBNOR M

SEATE OF REVADA

AR et g Wi g e e 7 e s € v

.o

P

e e

.
;B8 . _ s L
COUNTY OR fgmng b | R i ODE EXHIBT
.- 'J - E
On ehis, L& day of v 1988, befors dei
underad onan s Prabefn e ThandaR den 4 .. m @ L. . 8w e
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Laurie A. Hoeltzel, PhDc
California Handwriting Expert
PO Box 1496* Crestline®* CA* 92325
Office: 909-338-4247 Cell: 310-985-2807 Fax: 310-943-2647
E-mail: LAH78@MSN.COM

www.CaliforniaHandwritingExpert.com

www.FloridaHandwritingExpert.com

Curriculum Vitae

Laurie Hoeltzel, is a court qualified Forensic Document Examiner-Handwriting, she has studied
handwriting examination for the past twenty (20) years has studied and apprenticed under some
of the leading court-qualified Forensic Document Experts in the U.S.A. such as: Don Lehew,
Texas, Wendy Carlson, Denver, Colorado, and Curt Baggett, Texas all internationally famous
handwriting and document examination experts.

Laurie offers a verbal opinion or a written court qualified opinion to include but not limited to
the following: Disputed documents or signatures including: wills, checks, contracts, deeds,
account ledgers, mortgages, loans, notary disputes and medical records. Investigation and
analysis including: questioned signatures, suspect documents, forgeries, identity theft, robo-
signing, anonymous letters, bond authentication, alterations, obliterations, erasures, typewritten
documents, altered medical records, graffiti, handwritten numbers, suicide notes and
computerized and handwritten documents.

Education:

Laurie spent 11 years serving her country in the United States Air Force including three tours of
duty in Iraq, she has a Bachelors degree in Business Management and handwriting analysis
certificates and studying document examination,

Barron University, Los Angeles, CA: PhD’s
Capella University, Minneapolis, MN: Bachelor’s Business Management
Apprentice under Curt Baggett, Graduated 2004- Forensic Document Examiner since 1983

2004 School of Forensic Document Examination’s Teleclass Curriculum
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Examination of Anonymous Writing by Reed Hayes, QDE
Document Examination Terminology by Don Lehew, QDE
Notary Public by Don Lehew, QDE

Advanced Forgery Identification by Don Lehew, QDE

2006 School of Forensic Document Examination’s Annual Conference, Dallas, Texas
Attended the following lectures, in addition to general sessions:
Deposition and Cross Examinations by Dr. Richard Frazier, QDE
Medical Problems Affecting handwriting by Dr. Richard Frazier, QDE
Legal Issues for Document Examiners by Dr. Richard Frazier, QDE
Deposition and Cross Examinations by Dr. Richard Frazier, QDE
Health Factors Affecting Handwriting by Dr. Joe Alexander, QDE
Prescription Forgery and Medical Crimes by Diane King
Lecturer-Curt Baggett
Kathy Kopenhaven

2007 Handwriting University Annual Conference, Dallas, Texas
Curt Baggett-Trainer and Instructor
Bart Baggett and Don Lehew

2007 School of Forensic Document Examination’s Teleclasses
Curt Baggett Instructor - Handwriting Basics and Exemplars
Curt Baggett Instructor - Multiple Classes on Case Studies and Examinations
Dr. Joe Alexander Instructor

2008 Handwriting University Annual Conference, Las Vegas, Nevada
Curt Baggett-Trainer and Instructor

2009 Handwriting University Annual Conference, Las Vegas, Nevada
Critical Incident Stress: Statement Analysis and Interview v. Interrogation by Faith

Wood
Forensic Document Examination Application by Robert Baier, QDE, Police Instructor
Introduction to Forensic Document Examination-Curt Baggett & Laurie Hoeltzel

2012 American Institute of Applied Science-Home Study Course Lessons 1-3.
History, mechanism, Factors, Exemplars & Standards
Capitals, Numerals, and Special Marks
System, Movements, Muscular Habits & Skills

2012 American Institute of Applied Science-Home Study Course Lessons 4-3
Analysis Charts, Form, Cases Worked Out
Practical Examples Worked Out In Detail

2013 American Institute of Applied Science-Home Study Course Lessons 6-7
Typewriting History, Class Characteristics, Identifying Factors
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Analysis of Typewritten Material and Practical Examples

Organizations:

National Questioned Document Association
Thomas Reuters Round Table Group

Further Qualifications:

I have reviewed numerous signatures and handwritings, examined case documents and rendered
an opinion on cases in Alabama, California, Colorado, Florida, Indiana, Iowa, Illinois, Kansas,
Kentucky, Louisiana, Maryland, New Jersey, New Mexico, New York, Pennsylvania, South
Carolina, Texas, Wisconsin, Washington D.C., Virginia, Montreal, Quebec, Canada and
Freeport, Bahamas.

Laboratory Equipment used for examination:

Laurie Hoeltzel’s laboratory equipment, such as: 10x — 400x twin/digital microscope; HP flat
bed scanner; light table; SVP Digital Mobile Magnifier Microscope 500x, numerous magnifying
devices; Canon SD700 digital camera; Canon Powershot S2; protractor and metric measuring
devices; powerpoint; photoshop program and transparencies.

Specific Areas of Training:

Handwriting Identification and Discrimination, Signature Comparison, Techniques for
Distinguishing Forged Signatures, Disguised Handwriting, Altered Numbers, Anonymous
Writing, Factors that Affect Writing

Library:
Numerous forensic document examination books and other handwriting reference materials:
To include but not limited to:

The Expert Witness Handbook by Dan Poynter

Document Examiner Textbook by Jess E. Dines

Handwriting Identification: Facts and Fundamentals by Roy A. Huber & A. M. headrick

Scientific Examination of Questioned Documents by Kelly and Lindblom- (2”“r Edition by Hilton)
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Testimony

December 12, 2012

October 31, 2012

July 17, 2012

April 17,2012

December 7, 2011

Miami-Dade County Court House
Eric Nadel vs Wells Fargo

Case No.:08201CA-32

Assigned Judge Vicki Platzer

Van Nuys County Superior Court
William Washington vs People

Case LA070312

Assigned Judge Jessica Parrin Silvers

San Bernardino County Superior Court
Joe Bevacqua vs Mercedes Sanchez

Case No.;: PROPS120012

Assigned Judge Cynthia Ludvigsen

Orange County Superior Court
Jennifer Alter vs. Emily Neto Benes
Case No.: 30-2009-003117808

Assigned Judge David Chaffee

San Bernardino County Superior Court

Lalita Booker vs Millie Williams
Case No.: SCVSS145195
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September 21, 2011

September 11, 2011

Curt Baggett/Laurie Hoeltzel
June 23, 2010

June 9, 2008

February 8, 2008

Assigned Judge John P. Vanderfeer

Ventura County Superior Court
Riggs v. Aurora Loan Servicing

Case No. #56-2011-00394035

Assigned Judge Frederick Bythe

Central District Bankruptcy Court
Nick James Bankruptcy
Case No. 2:11-bk-25454-VZ

Circuit Court, Branch 1

Green County, Wisconsin
Warner Kent Bahler v. David Bahler et, al.

Case No. 08-CV-188

The Supreme Court of the Bahamas
Freeport, Bahamas

Nicole Longley v Kim Monique Stuart
Case No. 2006/CLE/gen/01210
Assigned Justice Mrs. Estelle Gray Evans

336™ District Court of Grayson County
Sherman, Texas

Paul Allen and Sharleen Wilson v. Allen Bryon Wilson
Case No. 07-1451-336
Assigned Judge Blake
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December 17, 2007

Superior Court of the State of California
County of San Bernadino, Redlands, California

LaMonte William Ward Trust
Case No. PRO50700188

Assigned Judge Cynthia Ludvigsen
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11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

28

EXHIBIT “10”

Texas Application for Original Probate of Foreign Will and Issuance of Letters of

Independent Administration

Page 39
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ESTATE OF § IN THE COUNTY COURT OF
| 8
MARJORIE T. CONNELL, §
| §
DECEASED § UPTON COUNTY, TEXAS

APPLICATION FOR ORIGINAL PROBATE OF FOREIGN WILL
AND ISSUANCE OF LETTERS OF INDEPENDENT ADMINISTRATION

TO THE HONORABLE JUDGE OF SAID COURT:

Jacqueline Montoya, the same person as Jacqueline Marguerite Montoya
(“Applicant”) furnishes the following information to the Court for the original probate of the
written Will of Marjorie T. Connell (“Decedent”), a domiciliary of the State of Nevada, and
for issuance of Letters Testamentary under Section 103 of the Texas Probate Code. .

Section 103 provides that the original probate of a will of a testator who died
domiciled outside of the State of Texas which, upon probate, may operate upon any
property in this State, and which is valid under the laws of this State, may be granted in the
same manner as the probate of other wills is granted under this Code, if the will does not
stand rejected from probate in the jurisdiction where the testator died domiciled.

1. Jacqueline Montoya is a granddaughter of the Decedent and an individual

interested in this estate whose residence address is 3385 Maverick St., Las Vegas,
Nevada 89108.

2. Matjorie T. Connell died May 1, 2009, at the age of 91 years. Four years
have not elapsed since the date of her death. She was domiciled in the State of Nevada,
her residence address being 1325 Strong Dr.,, Las Vegas, Nevada.

3 Decedent owned oil, gas and mineral interests located in Upton County,
Texas, of a probable value in excess of $100,000.00.

4. This Court has jurisdiction of this proceeding because the Decedent owned
property in Texas upon which her Will may operate, and it has venue because the principal
property is located in Upton County, Texas. - '

5. To Applicant's knowledge, Decedent was married one time only, such
marriage being to W. N. Connell, who predeceased her. She was notdivorced after the
making of her Will. No child was ever born to or adopted by the Decedent.

6. Decedent left a written Will dated January 7, 2008, duly executed according
to the laws of the State of Nevada, which was neverrevoked. The original Will was lodged

HADOCSMLCWonioyal\AprProswpd
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with the Clerk of the District Court of the Eighth Judicial District of the State of Nevada, in
and for the County of Clark. An exemplified copy of the Will is filed herein.

7. The subscribing witnesses to the Will are Sharon A. Brown, whose present
address is unknown, and Josefina C. Jones, whose present address is 900 Rancho Lane,
Las Vegas, Nevada 89106. The Willis not self-proved according to Texas law, but will be
proved by the sworn deposition on written questions of Josefina C. Jones.

8. Decedent's Will has never been offered for probate in the State of Nevada
where she was domiciled and does not stand rejected for probate in that state.

0. Decedent’s Will names Jacqueline Marguerite Montoya, Applicant herein, as
personal representative of her estate, and provides that no bond shall be required of her.

10. Decedent's Will was prepared in accordance with the laws of the State of

Nevada and does not provide for independent administration of her estate in accordance
‘with Texas law.

11.  Decedent’s Will provides that her probate estate shall be distributed to the

then acting Trustee of the MTC Living Trust dated December 6, 1995, as restated on
January 7, 2008.

12. In Article Four of Decedent's Will, she exercised a Power of Appointment
granted in the W, N. Connell and Matrjorie T. Connell Living Trust dated May 18, 1971,
Article Fifth, Trust No. 3, Paragraph B(2), by which she appointed the entire principal and
undistributed income in Trust No. 3 to Jacqueline Montoya and Kathryn Anne Bouvier, to
be distributed in trust in accordance with the provisions of the MTC Living Trust dated
December 8, 1995, as restated on January 7, 2008. The oil, gas and mineral interests

located in Upton County, Texas, comprise a portion of the principal and undistributed
income of Trust No. 3.

13, Jacqueline Montoya and her sister, Kathryn Anne Bouvier, are the
distributees of Trust No. 3 and the residuary distributees of the MTC Living Trust, which
includes the Upton County property. Jacqueline Montoya is the current trustee ofthe MTC
Living Trust, and Kathryn Anne Bouvier is the successor trustee. As the distributees,
Jacqueline Montoya and Kathryn Anne Bouvier agree to independent administration of
Decedent's Estate. Kathryn Anne Bouvier further agrees to the appointment of Jacqueline
Montoya as Independent Administrator of the estate.

14.  Applicant is willing to accept the trust and qualify and is not disqualified by
law from accepting Letters of Independent Administration, and she is entitled to such
Letters. Because Applicantis a resident of the State of Nevada, she will appoint Mary Lou
Cassidy, of Stubbeman, McRae, Sealy, Laughlin & Browder, Inc., Midland, Texas, as
resident agent for service of process in the State of Texas. |
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15. Decedent's Will does not name the State of Texas, 2 governmental agency
of Texas, or a charitable organization as a devisee.

16. Itis represented to the Court that there is no need for the appointment of
appraisers.

WHEREFORE, Applicant prays that citation issue as required by law to all persons
interested in this estate; that the Will of Marjorie T. Connell be admitted to probate; that
Applicant be appointed Independent Administrator of the estate to serve without bond; that
Letters of Independent Administration be issued to Applicant upon gualification; and that
all other orders be entered as the Court may deem proper. '

Respectfully submitted,

STUBBEMAN, McRAE, SEALY,
LAUGHLIN & BROWDER, INC.
550 West Texas, Suite 800
Midiand, Texas 79702
432-682-1616

432-682-4884 (FAX)

ary Lpu Cassidy /
State Bar No. 03979300

ATTORNEYS FOR APPLICANT
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

*

IN THE MATTER OF: THE W.N.
CONNELL AND MARJORIE T.
CONNELL LIVING TRUST, DATED
MAY 18, 1972,

ELEANOR C. AHERN A/K/A
ELEANOR CONNELL HARTMAN
AHERN,

Appellant,
VSs.

JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA; AND
KATHRYN A. BOUVIER,

Respondents.

* *

. tronically Filed
Supreme Court No.: 6%\? 20 2015 04:09 p.m.

Tracie K. Lindeman
Consolidated with: 6F[8rk ®¥®@@preme Court

District Court Case No.:
P-09-066425-T

Appeal from the Eighth Judicial
District Court, The Honorable Gloria
Sturman Presiding

APPELLANT’S APPENDIX

(VOLUME 6 OF 17)

(PAGES AA 1165 - 1386)

KIRK B. LENHARD, ESQ., Nevada Bar No. 001437
TAMMY BEATTY PETERSON, ESQ., Nevada Bar No. 005218
BENJAMIN K. REITZ, ESQ., Nevada Bar No. 13233
BROWNSTEIN HYATT FARBER SCHRECK, LLP

100 North City Parkway, Suite 1600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89106
Telephone: 702.382.2101
Facsimile: 702.382.8135

ATTORNEYS FOR APPELLANT
ELEANOR CONNELL HARTMAN AHERN

Docket 66231 Document 2015-35651



INDEX TO APPELLANT’S APPENDIX

Description Date Vol.

Filed | No. | YageNo.
Addendum To Petition To Compel Trustee
To Distribute Accrued Income And Future
Income From Oil, Gas, And Mineral Leases 03/06/14 4 AA 736-748
And Declaration Of The Applicability Of The
Doctrine Of Laches
Affidavit Of Service (Motion For Leave To 01/13/15 12 AA 2646-2647
Amend)
Ameqded Certificate Of Mailing (Motion To 03/20/14 5 AA 10861087
Dismiss)
Amended Notice Of Appeal 07/29/15 17 AA 3602-3613
Answer Of Trustee Eleanor C. Ahern To
Jacqueline M. Montoya’s Petition For
Declaratory Judgment Regarding Limited
Interest Of Trust Assets Pursuant To NRS 02/10/14 3 AA 609-627
30.040, NRS 153.031(E), And NRS
164.033(1)(A) And Counterclaims Against
Jacqueline M. Montoya
Brief Regarding Accounting, Fiduciary
Duties And Trust Administration Filed Under | 03/13/15 | 14-15 | AA 2926-3192
Seal
];r:;el:f Regarding Pending Issues Filed Under 03/12/15 13 AA 2891.2925
Cert1ﬁcat§ Of Mailing (Petition For 03/28/14 5 AA 1149-1150
Construction)
Certificate Of Mailing (Petition For 09/27/13 1 AA 205-206
Declaratory Judgment)
Certlﬁc.ate Qf Mailing (Petition For 03/31/14 5 AA 1151-1152
Determination)
Certificate Of Mailing (Petition To Assume) 08/17/09 1 AA 62-63
Certificate Of Mailing (Petition To Compel) 12/03/13 2 AA 302-303




Description

Date
Filed

Vol.
No.

Page No.

Certificate Of Mailing (Petition To Compel)

03/06/14

AA 749-750

Certificate Of Mailing (Response To
Objection)

05/08/14

AA 1430-1431

Certificate Of Mailing Regarding Opposition
Of Eleanor C. Ahern To Jacqueline M.
Montoya’s Petition For Construction And
Effect Of Probate Court Order

05/12/14

AA 1533

Court Minutes Hearing Motion to Dismiss
01/14/14

01/14/14

AA 579-580

Court Minutes Re All Pending Motions
05/13/14

05/13/14

AA 1534-1536

Court Minutes Re Bench Trial

02/18/14

AA 672

Court Minutes Re Evidentiary Hearing On
Pending Motions 01/30/15

01/30/15

12

AA 2687-2689

Eleanor C. Ahern’s (1) Reply In Support Of
Eleanor C. Ahern’s Motion To Dismiss
Petition For Declaratory Judgment For
Failure To State Of Claim Upon Which
Relief Can Be Granted; (2) Opposition To
Countermotion Of Kathryn A. Bouvier And
Jacqueline M. Montoya For Summary
Judgment On Petition For Declaratory
Judgment, For Damages, And Assessment Of
Penalties And For Other Relief; And (3)
Reply In Support Of Countermotion For
Summary Judgment

01/09/15

11

AA 2362-2540

Errata To Objection Of Trustee Eleanor C.
Ahern To Jacqueline M. Montoya’s Petition
And Addendum To Petition To Compel
Trustee To Distribute Accrued Income And
Future Income From Oil, Gas, And Mineral
Leases And Declaration Of The Applicability
Of The Doctrine Of Laches

05/07/14

AA 1153-1164

il




Description

Date
Filed

Vol.
No.

Page No.

Motion For Leave To Amend Pleadings Of
Jacqueline M. Montoya And Kathryn A.
Bouvier For Claims, Defenses, Damages And
Assessment Of Penalties, And For Other
Relief Against Eleanor Connell Hartman
Ahern

01/12/15

12

AA 2635-2645

Motion In Support Of Award Of Attorney’s
Fees And Costs

04/01/15

16

AA 3276-3406

Motion To Dismiss And Motion To Strike
Counterclaims Raised By Eleanor C. Ahern
Pursuant To NRCP 15 And NRCP 12(B)

02/14/14

AA 667-671

Motion To Dismiss Counterclaims Of
Eleanor C. Ahern

03/18/14

AA 1058-1085

Motion To Dismiss Petition For Declaratory
Judgment Regarding Limited Interest Of
Trust Assets Pursuant To NRS 30.040, NRS
153.031(E), And NRS 164.033(1)(A) For
Failure To State A Claim Upon Which Relief
Can Be Granted Per NRCP 12(B)(5)

10/09/14

AA 1617-1756

Notice Of Appeal

07/31/14

AA 1615-1616

Notice Of Appeal

05/18/15

17

AA 3570-3601

Notice Of Appeal Regarding Order Appoint
New Temporary Trustee

04/07/15

16

AA 3411-3417

Notice Of Entry Of Order (Appointing New
Temporary Trustee)

04/06/15

16

AA 3407-3410

Notice of Entry of Order and Stipulation and
Order to File Under Seal

02/17/15

13

AA 2886-2890

Notice Of Entry Of Order Compelling
Eleanor Ahern To Turn Over Trust Records
To Acting Successor Trustee

04/24/15

16

AA 3471-3474

Notice Of Entry Of Order Confirming Acting
Successor Trustee

04/24/15

16

AA 3475-3478

il




Description

Date
Filed

Vol.
No.

Page No.

Notice Of Entry Of Order On Summary
Judgment

04/17/15

16

AA 3435-3454

Notice Of Entry Of Order Regarding The
Accounting, Breach Of Fiduciary Duty
Claims And Award Of Attorney Fees

04/20/15

16

AA 3464-3470

Notice Of Entry Of Order: Re Pending
Motions And Scheduling

07/08/14

AA 1605-1614

Notice Of Hearing On Petition For
Declaratory Judgment Regarding Limited
Interest Of Trust Assets Pursuant To NRS
30.040, NRS 153.031(1)(E), And NRS
164.033(1)(A)

09/27/13

AA 203-204

Objection Of Trustee Eleanor C. Ahern To
Jacqueline M. Montoya’s Petition To Compel
Trustee To Distribute Accrued Income And
Future Income Received From Oil, Gas, And
Mineral Leases And Declaration Of The
Applicability Of The Doctrine Of Laches

01/03/14

2-3

AA 326-560

Objection Of Trustee Eleanor C. Ahern To
Jacqueline M. Montoya’s Petition And
Addendum To Petition To Compel Trustee
To Distribute Accrued Income And Future
Income From Oil, Gas, And Mineral Leases
And Declaration Of The Applicability Of The
Doctrine Of Laches

03/13/14

4-5

AA 751-1057

Objection To Motion To Dismiss Petition For
Declaratory Judgment Regarding Limited
Interest Of Trust Assets Pursuant To NRS
30.040, NRS 153.031(E), And NRS
164.033(1)(A) For Failure To State A Claim
Upon Which Relief Can Be Granted Per
NRCP 12(B)(5)

12/11/13

AA 304-325

v




Description

Date
Filed

Vol.

No.

Page No.

Omnibus Opposition To (1) Petition For
Determination Of Construction And
Interpretation Of Language Relating To Trust
No. 2 And (2) Petition For Construction And
Effect Of Probate Court Order; And
Countermotion For Summary Judgment

01/02/15

9-11

AA 1850-2361

Opposition Of Eleanor C. Ahern To
Jacqueline M. Montoya’s Petition For
Construction And Effect Of Probate Court
Order

05/12/14

AA 1432-1532

Opposition Of Eleanor C. Ahern To Motion
To Dismiss Counterclaims Of Eleanor C.
Ahern

05/07/14

AA 1165-1386

Opposition To Eleanor C. Ahern’s Motion To
Dismiss Petition For Declaratory Judgment
For Failure To State A Claim Upon Which
Relief Can Be Granted; And, Countermotion
Of Kathryn A. Bouvier And Jacqueline M.
Montoya For Summary Judgment On Petition
For Declaratory Judgment, For Damages And
Assessment Of Penalties, And For Other
Relief

12/23/14

AA 1757-1849

Opposition To Motion For Leave To Amend
Pleadings

01/27/15

12

AA 2673-2686

Opposition To Motion In Support Of Award
Of Attorney’s Fees And Costs

05/04/15

16

AA 3479-3497

Order Appointing New Temporary Trustee

04/01/15

15

AA 3274-3275

Order Compelling Eleanor Ahern To Turn
Over Trust Records To Acting Successor
Trustee

04/20/15

16

AA 3460-3461

Order Confirming Acting Successor Trustee

04/20/15

16

AA 3462-3463




Description

Date
Filed

Vol.
No.

Page No.

Order Regarding The Accounting, Breach Of
Fiduciary Duty Claims And Award Of
Attorney Fees

04/20/15

16

AA 3455-3459

Order: Re Pending Motions And Scheduling

07/07/14

AA 1597-1604

Petition For Construction And Effect Of
Probate Court Order

03/26/14

AA 1088-1127

Petition For Declaratory Judgment Regarding
Limited Interest Of Trust Assets Pursuant To
NRS 30.040, NRS 153.031(1)(E), And NRS
164.033(1)(A)

09/27/13

AA 64-200

Petition For Determination Of Construction
And Interpretation Of Language Relating To
Trust No. 2

03/27/14

AA 1130-1146

Petition To Assume Jurisdiction Over Trust;
Confirm Trustee; And Construe And Reform
Trust

08/17/09

AA 1-61

Petition To Compel Trustee To Distribute
Accrued Income And Future Income
Received From Oil, Gas, And Mineral Leases
And Declaration Of The Applicability Of The
Doctrine Of Laches

12/03/13

AA 277-299

Petition To Compel Trustee To Distribute
Accrued Income And Future Income From
Oil, Gas, And Mineral Leases And
Declaration Of The Applicability Of The
Doctrine Of Laches

03/06/14

AA 713-735

Pre-Trial Memorandum

02/11/14

AA 628-666

Recorder’s Transcript Motions Hearing
01/14/14

01/24/14

AA 581-608

Recorder’s Transcript Of Proceedings Civil
Bench Trial — Day 1 02/18/14

02/26/14

AA 673-712

Vi




Description

Date
Filed

Vol.
No.

Page No.

Reply In Support Of Countermotion Of
Kathryn A. Bouvier And Jacqueline M.
Montoya For Summary Judgment On Petition
For Declaratory Judgment, For Damages And
Assessment Of Penalties, And For Other
Relief; And, Opposition To Eleanor’s
Countermotion For Summary Of Judgment

01/09/15

12

AA 2541-2588

Reply In Support Of Motion For Award Of
Attorney’s Fees And Costs And Supplement
To Motion In Support Of Award Of
Attorney’s Fees And Costs

05/08/15

17

AA 3498-3531

Response To Objection Of Eleanor C. Ahern
To Jacqueline M. Montoya’s Petition And
Addendum To Petition To Compel Trustee
To Distribute Accrued Income And Future
Income From Oil, Gas, And Mineral Leases
And Declaration Of The Applicability Of The
Doctrine Of Laches

05/08/14

AA 1387-1429

Response To Objection Of Trustee Eleanor
C. Ahern To Jacqueline M. Montoya’s
Petition To Compel Trustee To Distribute
Accrued Income And Future Income
Received From Oil, Gas, And Mineral Leases
And Declaration Of The Applicability Of The
Doctrine Of Laches

01/09/14

AA 561-578

Second Supplement To Brief Regarding
Pending Issues Filed Under Seal

03/19/15

15

AA 3267-3273

Summary Judgment

04/16/15

16

AA 3418-3434

Supplement To Brief Regarding Accounting,
Fiduciary Duties And Trust Administration
Filed Under Seal

03/18/15

15

AA 3253-3266

Supplement To Brief Regarding Pending
Issues Filed Under Seal

03/18/15

15

AA 3193-3252

vii




Description

Date
Filed

Vol.
No.

Page No.

Supplement To Motion To Amend Pleadings

01/20/15

12

AA 2648-2672

Supplement To Reply In Support Of
Countermotion Of Kathryn A. Bouvier And
Jacqueline M. Montoya For Summary
Judgment On Petition For Declaratory
Judgment, For Damages, And Assessment Of
Penalties, And For Other Relief; And,
Opposition To Eleanor’s Countermotion For
Summary Judgment

01/12/15

12

AA 2589-2634

Sur-Reply To Montoya And Bouvier’s Reply
In Support Of Motion For Award Of
Attorneys’ Fees And Costs

05/12/15

17

AA 3532-3536

Transcript Of Proceedings Hearing On
Petition For Declaratory Judgment Regarding
Limited Interest Of Trust Assets Pursuant To
NRS 30.040, NRS 153.031(1)(E), And NRS
164.033(1)(A) 11/12/13

12/06/13

AA 207-276

Transcript Of Proceedings Motion For
Attorney Fees 05/13/15

06/12/15

17

AA 3537-3569

Transcript Of Proceedings: Hearing 01/30/15

03/02/15

13

AA 2690-2885

Transcript Re: All Pending Motions 05/13/14

05/20/14

AA 1537-1596

Verification For Petition For Construction
And Effect Of Probate Court Order

03/26/14

AA 1128-1129

Verification For Petition For Declaratory
Judgment Regarding Limited Interest Of
Trust Assets Pursuant To NRS 30.040, NRS
153.031(1)(E), And NRS 164.033(1)(A)

09/27/13

AA 201-202

Verification For Petition For Determination
Of Construction And Interpretation Of
Language Relating To Trust No. 2

03/27/14

AA 1147-1148

viii




Description Date Vol.
Filed No. Page No.
Verification For Petition To Compel Trustee
To Distribute Accrued Income And Future
Income Received From Oil, Gas, And 12/03/13 2 AA 300-301

Mineral Leases And Declaration Of The
Applicability Of The Doctrine Of Laches
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

*

IN THE MATTER OF: THE W.N.
CONNELL AND MARJORIE T.
CONNELL LIVING TRUST, DATED
MAY 18, 1972,

ELEANOR C. AHERN A/K/A
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the Matter of
THE W. N. CONNELL AND MARJORIE T. CONNELL | Case No. P-09-066425-T

LIVING TRUST, Dent. No. XXV (26
Dated May 18, 1972 ept. No. XXV1(26)
Date of Hearing:

Time of Hearing:

An Inter Vivos Irrevocable Trust.

OPPOSITION OF ELEANOR C. AHERN TO MOTION TO DISMISS COUNTERCLAIMS
OF ELEANOR C. AHERN

COMES NOW ELEANOR C. AHERN, a/k/a ELEANOR CONNELL HARTMAN AHERN
(“ELEANOR”), individually and as Trustee of THE W. N. CONNELL AND MARJORIE T.
CONNELL LIVING TRUST dated May 18, 1972 (the “TRUST”), by and through her counsel of
record, JOHN R. MUGAN, Esquire, and MICHAEL D. LUM, Esquire, of the law firm of
JEFFREY BURR, LTD., and hereby submits this Opposition of Eleanor C. Ahern To Motion To
Dismiss Counterclaims Of Eleanor C. Ahern (“OPPOSITION”), and in support thereof states:

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I. INTRODUCTION
In response to JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA’s Petition For Declaratory Judgment
Regarding Limited Interest Of Trust Assets Pursuant To NRS 30.040, NRS 153.031(1)(E), And
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NRS 164.033(1)(A) (2013 DECLARATORY JUDGMENT PETITION”) filed on September 27,
2013, ELEANOR filed her Answer Of Trustee Eleanor C. Ahern To Jacqueline M. Montoya’s
Petition For Declaratory Judgment Regarding Limited Interest of Trust Assets Pursuant To NRS
30.040, NRS 153.031(1)(e), And NRS 164.033(1)(a) And Counterclaims Against Jacqueline M.
Montoya (“ANSWER”) on February 10, 2014. In accordance with Rule 12(b) of the Nevada Rules
of Civil Procedure, ELEANOR did not file her ANSWER, a responsive pleading, until after her
Motion To Dismiss Petition For Declaratory Judgment Regarding Limited Interest Of Trust Assets
Pursuant To NRS 30.040, NRS 153.031(1)(e), And NRS 164.033(1)(a) For Failure To State A
Claim Upon Which Relief Can Be Granted Per NRCP 12(b)(5) (“MOTION TO DISMISS”) was

ruled upon. Rule 12(b) of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure provides:

(b) How Presented. Every defense, in law or fact, to a claim for
relief in any pleading, whether a claim, counterclaim, cross-claim, or
third-party claim, shall be asserted in the responsive pleading thereto
if one is required, except that the following defenses may at the option
of the pleader be made by motion: (1) lack of jurisdiction over the
subject matter, (2) lack of jurisdiction over the person, (3)
insufficiency of process, (4) insufficiency of service of process, (3)
[failure to state a claim upon which relief can be granted, (6) failure to
join a party under Rule 19. 4 motion making any of these defenses
shall be made before pleading if a further pleading is permitted. No
defense or objection is waived by being joined with one or more other

defenses or objections in a responsive pleading or motion. If a
pleading sets forth a claim for relief to which the adverse party 1s not
required to serve a responsive pleading, the adverse party may assert
at the trial any defense in law or fact to that claim for relief. If, on a
motion asserting the defense numbered (5) to dismiss for failure of the
pleading to state a claim upon which relief can be granted, matters
outside the pleading are presented to and not excluded by the court,
the motion shall be treated as one for summary judgment and
disposed of as provided in Rule 56, and all parties shall be given
reasonable opportunity to present all material made pertinent to such a
motion by Rule 56. (Emphasis added)

Thus, according to NRCP Rule 12(b), a motion asserting a defense based on the failure of an
adverse party to state a claim upon which relief can be granted must be made first before any

further pleading. In this case, ELEANOR’s MOTION TO DISMISS sought to dismiss this case for
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JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA’s failure to state a claim upon which relief can be granted and was
captioned as a Rule 12(b)(5) motion. Accordingly, it was required to be filed and decided upon
before any other responsive pleading could be filed by ELEANOR. Other pleadings were in fact
filed herein on behalf of ELEANOR, but they were Motions or responses to Motions of opposing
counsel. The MOTION TO DISMISS was denied by the Court without prejudice on January 14,
2014. A proposed Order was prepared by counsel for ELEANOR and sent to opposing counsel. As
of the date of this OPPOSITION and to date, such Order has not been entered.

In her ANSWER, ELEANOR asserted various affirmative defenses and counterclaims. It is
these counterclaims that JACQUELINE M. MONTOY A seeks to dismiss based on Rule 12(b)(5) of
the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure. On March 18, 2014, JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA filed
her Motion To Dismiss Counterclaims Of Eleanor C. Ahern (“MOTION”). However, for the
reasons set forth below, JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA has failed to satisfy the requirements to
prevail on her MOTION.

IL. ARGUMENT
A. Legal Standard.

Pursuant to Rule 12(b)(5) of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure, a defendant is entitled to
dismissal when the pleading fails to state a claim upon which relief can be granted. In considering
the dismissal of a pleading, this court must “construe the pleading liberally and draw every fair
inference in favor of the non-moving party.” Simpson v. Mars, Inc., 113 Nev. 188, 190 (1997);
citing Vacation Village v. Hitachi America, 110 Nev. 481, 484 (1994). Further, “[a]ll factual
allegations of the [pleading] must be accepted as true.” Id. Dismissal is only proper when “it

appears beyond a doubt that the plaintiff could prove no set of facts which, if accepted by the trier

of fact, would entitle him or her to relief.” 1d.; see also Edgar v. Wagner, 101 Nev. 226, 228 (1985)
(quoting Conley v. Gibson, 355 U.S. 41, 45-46 (S.Ct. 1957)) (emphasis added). Stated differently,

“la] claim should not be dismissed ... unless it appears to a certainty that the plaintiff is not entitled

to relief under any set of facts which could be proved in support of the claim.” Bemis v. Estate of
Bemis, 114 Nev. 1021, 1024 (1998) (emphasis added). Further, “Nevada is a notice-pleading

jurisdiction, [so] our courts liberally construe pleadings to place into issue matters which are fairly

noticed to the adverse party.” Hay v. Hay, 100 Nev. 196, 198 (1984) (emphasis added).
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B. Objection To Factual Allegations Made By Petitioner JACOQUELINE M. MONTOYA.

In her MOTION, JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA states that “[flor 34 years prior to July,
2013, the income from the properties had been allocated between the two sub-trusts created under
the provisions of Trust 1. One sub-trust (hereinafter “Trust 2”) received approximately 35% of the
income, which went to Eleanor as a beneficiary of Trust 2. The remaining approximately 65% of
the income was paid to Marjorie T. Connell (the surviving grantor of Trust 1) during her lifetime, as
beneficiary of the other sub-trust, Trust 3. Upon Marjorie’s death on May 1, 2009, this 65% share
of the income was then paid to Jacqueline and Kathryn, successor beneficiaries under Trust 3, until
Eleanor abruptly stopped the payment to them beginning in July, 2013.” Quite simply, these factual
allegations are incorrect.

First, contrary to the claim made by JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA, there was never an
allocation of the Upton County, Texas, Oil right income between Trust No. 2 and Trust No. 3.
Curiously, JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA’s claim that there was an allocation is contrary to the
position that she has espoused heretofore. In fact, prior to the trial scheduled in this matter on
February 18, 2014, JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA’s other counsel stipulated, via email, to the
facts that were to be testified to by Texas attorney John Randall Turner in that “[bJased on Mr,
Turner’s review and search of ... property records, Mr. Turner has determined that neither W.N.
Connell, Marjorie t. Connell, nor Eleanor Connell Hartman Ahern ever executed any deed or other
document of conveyance transferring any portion of the Upton County, Texas, Oil rights to “Trust
NO. 3° of the W.N. Connell and Marjoric T. Connell Living Trust dated May 18, 1972 and there 1s
no such deed or other document of public record.” A copy of such Email is attached hereto as
Exhibit “1” and incorporated herein by this reference. There was never an allocation between
Trust No. 2 and Trust No. 3 of the Upton County, Texas, Oil right income. Quite the opposite, all
of the Upton County, Texas, Oil right income was paid to Trust No. 2 and its EIN. A copy of the
Division Orders are attached hereto as Exhibit “2” and incorporated herein by this reference.
Because there was no allocation to Trust No. 3, MARJORIE T. CONNELL did not receive 65% of
the Upton County, Texas, Oil right income via Trust No. 3 as suggested by JACQUELINE M.
MONTOYA.
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Second, JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA claims that she and her sister, KATHRYN A.
BOUVIER, are “successor beneficiaries under Trust 3;” however, there is no language in Trust No.

3 to indicate as such. In fact, the terms of Trust No. 3 read in relevant part as follows:

FIFTH: TRUST NO. 3. The Trustee shall hold, manage, invest and reinvest the estate of
Trust No. 3 and shall collect the income thereof and dispose of the net income and principal as
follows:
A. Income. The Trustee shall pay to the Survivor (MARJORIE T. CONNELL) during his
or her lifetime all of the net income of the Survivor’s trust estate in convenient, regular
installments, but not less frequently than quarter-annually.

D. Death of Survivor. Upon the death of the Survivor (MARJORIE T. CONNELL),
the Trustee shall distribute the trust estate in accordance with and to the extent provided by
the Survivor’s (MARJORIE T. CONNELL) exercise of his or her power of appointment.

If and to the extent that the Survivor (MARJORIE T. CONNELL) shall fail to effectively
cxercise the foregoing power of appointment, the principal and undistributed income of
Trust No. 3 shall, upon his or her death, be distributed to the Residual Beneficiary
(ELEANOR), or to the heirs of her body if she is not then living. (emphasis added)

As is clearly shown by the forgoing language of the TRUST, the only beneficiaries of Trust
No. 3 are MARJORIE T. CONNELL during her life and thercafter ELEANOR. Neither
JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA nor her sister, KATHRYN A. BOUVIER, is a beneficiary or a
“successor beneficiar[y]” of Trust No. 3.

On various occasions throughout her MOTION, JACQUELINE M. MONTOY A alludes and
makes reference to the Upton County, Texas, Oil right income being paid to “Trust 1” (used by
JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA when discussing the TRUST) following the death of W.N.
CONNELL. As noted above, however, this was quite simply not the case. As this Court will notice
upon reviewing the Division Orders provided by the various oil lessees relating to the Upton
County, Texas, Oil rights attached hereto has Exhibit “2” from approximately 1986 through the
present, the oil companies have remitted payment of the royalties to the tax identification number
for Trust No. 2. The tax identification number for Trust No. 2 was provided to the o1l companies by
MARIJORIE T. CONNELL and ELEANOR. Trust No. 3 has a separate tax identification number
that was never furnished to, nor used by, the oil companies for such royalty payments. Notably, this
has been the practice since the death of W.N. CONNELL and even after the death of MARJORIE
T. CONNEL. Also, JACQULINE M. MONTOYA was extensively involved in dealing with the

Upton County, Texas, Oil rights, including dealing with accountant, Corey Haina, in accounting for
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the Upton County, Texas, Oil right income. Therefore, she was fully aware that the royalty income
from such rights was paid, in full, to Trust No. 2.

In his Affidavit attached to the MOTION, Texas attorney Sean Guerrero said, “[o]ur clients
filed a lawsuit in Clark County, Nevada, in January 2014 in order to enforce their rights to

distribution of a Trust created by the Will of Marjorie T. Connell.” In fact, there was no trust

created by the Will of MARJORIE T. CONNELL. The TRUST in question is an inter vivos trust,
not a testamentary trust, created during the lives of W.N. CONNELL and MARJORIE T.
CONNELL. Heretofore, this fact has been uncontroverted. And the assertion that a testamentary
trust was created by MARJORIE T. CONNELL’s Will is wholly incorrect. This statement
summarizes the confusion and inconsistency shown by JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA throughout

this litigation.

C. This Court May Not Dismiss ELEANOR’s Counterclaim For Intentional Interference
With Contractual Relations Because There Are Sufficient Facts For ELEANOR To
Prevail On Such Claim.

To establish intentional interference with contractual relations in Nevada, “the plaintiff must
show: (1) a valid and existing contract; (2) the defendant’s knowledge of the contract; (3)
intentional acts intended or designed to disrupt the contractual relationship; (4) actual disruption of
the contract; and (5) resulting damages.” Sutherland v. Gross, 105 Nev. 192, 196 (1989). The
intent necessary to maintain an action for intentional interference with contractual relations requires
the plaintiff “to demonstrate that the defendant intended to induce the other party to breach the
contract with the plaintiff.” J.J. Industries, LLC v. Bennett, 119 Nev. 269, 276 (2003) (Defendant,
who purchased real property from a seller that was under contract for the sale of said property with
a different buyer, was not found to have intentionally interfered with contractual relations because
the defendant was informed by the seller that the seller’s existing contract was terminated.).
Valid and Existing Contract and Defendant’s Knowledge of Such Contract.

Here, there is no dispute as to the validity of the existing contracts between the TRUST and
the various oil lessees and surface tenants. Nor is there a dispute that JACQUELINE M.
MONTOYA was aware of such contracts.  Admittedly, in her 2013 DECLARATORY
JUDGMENT PETITION, JACQUELINE M. MONTOY A noted that she was extensively involved
with the Upton County, Texas, Oil rights during the year 2000 when MARJORIE T. CONNELL’s
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health began to fail. Also, according to JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA, she “put in a tremendous
amount of time and energy” in April 2012 to negotiate new Oil and Gas Lease contracts with
Apache Corporation relative to the Upton County, Texas, Oil rights. Once these Oil and Gas Lease
contracts were prepared, JACQUELINE M. MONTOY A presented the same to ELEANOR for her

approval and signature. ELEANOR signed both Oil and Gas Lease contracts “[i]ndividually and

as Trustee of the W.N. Connell and Marjorie T. Connell Living Trust under Trust Agreement

dated May 18, 1972” (emphasis added) and as sole lessor. A valid contract was created between

the TRUST and the various oil lessees and surface tenants, including the Apache Corporation oil
and gas contract, and JACQUELINE M. MONTOY A was well aware of these contracts by her own
admission.

Intentional Acts Intended or Designed to Disrupt the Contractual Relationship:

JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA contends that there are insufficient facts such that
ELEANOR can prove elements 4 (intentional acts intended or designed to disrupt the contractual
relationship), 5 (actual disruption of the contract) and 6 (resulting damages) of her intentional
interference with contract counterclaim. With respect to element 4, there can be no question that
JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA'’s actions, through her Texas counsel, were designed to disrupt the
contractual relationship between the TRUST and the various oil and mineral lessees and surface
tenants of the Upton County, Texas, Oil rights. On September 30, 2013, only three (3) days after
JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA filed her 2013 DECLARATORY JUDGMENT PETITION herein,
her Texas counsel, Sean Guerrero, attorney at law, of the Stubbeman, McRae, Sealy, Laughlin &
Browder, Inc. Law Firm in Midland, Texas identified himself as writing on behalf of his client,
JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA, and wrote:

“I write on behalf of our client, Jacqueline M. Montoya, individually and in her capacity

as trustee of the MCT (sic) Living Trust, Plaintiff in Cause No. P-09-066425-T; In the

Matter of the W.N. Connell and Marjorie T. Connell Living Trust, dated May 18, 1972. The

lawsuit referenced concerns oil and gas royalty and interest payments in the W. N. Connell

and Marjorie T. Connell Living Trust, Eleanor Ahern, Trustee. I enclose a copy of the filed
petition and confirmation of filing for your reference. We will follow up with a file-marked

copy of the petition once we have received it.

Due to the dispute regarding the distribution of payments, a portion of which had been made
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by your company, we request that [Apache Corporation] [Plains Marketing, L.P.] [Drag
A Cattle Company] hold in suspense all payment to the W. N. Connell and Marjorie T.
Connell Living Trust until this lawsuit has been resolved. We request that you take

action immediately so that no further payments are distributed until this suit is
resolved. Please let me know if you have any question. We appreciate your cooperation
and look forward to working with you.”

Also, on October 10, 2013, Secan Guerrero wrote to Apache and stated, “[i]f you will

confirm when Apache places the rovalty payments in to suspense, I would appreciate it.”

Again on November 14, 2013, Sean Guerrero wrote to Andy Taylor of Apache and said the

following:

“We have undertaken the lawsuit in Nevada to re-establish our client’s rights to 65%
distribution of the Trust and ultimately force Ms. Ahern out as Trustee...

...Short of a court order, I do not see who (sic) you can legally and arbitrarily allocate 35%
of royalty payments to the Trustee of a trust and withhold 65% from the beneficiaries.
Apache would be wise to await a court order on_the subject rather than taking the
word of Ms. Ahern’s attorney....

We have a complicated suit regarding the Trust distribution pending, and we will have a
second suit regarding Ms. Ahern’s misappropriation of Trust assets filed in short order. Asa
result, we renew our request that Apache continue to hold all interest payments to the
Trust in suspense....” (emphasis added)

Clearly, these correspondences are designed to disrupt the contractual relationship between
the TRUST and the recipients of such correspondence in that JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA, if
successful, would have caused all payments to the TRUST to cease. It is well understood by all
parties hereto and undisputed that only sixty-five percent (65%) of the Upton County, Texas, Oil
rights are in dispute in this case. In fact, at the November 12, 2013 hearing, JACQUELINE M.
MONTOYA’s Nevada counsel said, “no argument about that” when referring to the thirty-five
percent (35%) of the Upton County, Texas, Oil right income paid to ELEANOR. A copy of the
Transcript from this hearing is attached hereto as Exhibit “3” and incorporated herein by this
reference. Notwithstanding this, however, JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA demanded that g/l
payments to the TRUST be suspended — not just the sixty-five percent (65%) that is in dispute.
(Notably, upon information and belief, similar correspondence has been sent to other oil and

mineral lessees of the Upton County, Texas, Qil right property, as the TRUST has not received all
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of the royalty payments owing to it since JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA’s Texas counsel began
sending these letters and emails.)

JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA, in her MOTION, intimates that the action of her Texas
counsel was proper and sanctioned by Texas law and in fact, was “the only method available to
them under Texas law to protect Jacqueline’s and Kathryn’s royalty income interest.” In support of
her position that the sending of the forenamed letters by her Texas counsel was sanctioned by Texas
law, JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA relies on the Affidavit of her Texas counsel, attorney Sean
Guerrero, which cites to Texas Natural Resource Code Section 91.402(b). (It is important to note
that Sean Guerrero, Esquire, was involved in sending the letters and emails above, and theretore, he
is not a disinterested third party affiant, but someone trying to avoid a possible malpractice claim by
his client — JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA.). In particular, JACQUELINE M.MONTOYA states
that under Texas Natural Resource Code Section 91.402(b) “a company paying royalty income has
authority specifically given to it to withhold payments without interest if 1) a dispute exists
concerning title that would affect distribution of payments; or 2) a reasonable doubt exists that the
payee has clear title to the interest in the proceeds of production” (emphasis added).

By way of full disclosure, Section 91.402 of the Texas Natural Resource Code sets the time
limits by which a “payor” (generally defined as the purchaser of production from a well, the
operator of that well, or the lessee under a lease on which royalty is due) must pay each “payee”
(defined as “any person or persons legally entitled to payment from the proceeds derived from the
sale of oil or gas from an oil or gas well located” in Texas) proceeds derived from the sale of oil or
gas production. See the Affidavit of ELEANOR’s Texas attorney, Stan Crawford, attached hereto
has Exhibit “4”. Under Section 91.402(a), proceeds from production must be paid within one
hundred twenty (120) days after the end of the month of the first sale of production; after that,
proceeds must be paid to payees sixty (60) days after the end of the month when oil is sold, and
ninety (90) days after the end of the month when gas is sold. Section 91.403 of the Texas Natural
Resource Code sets the rate of interest owed on payment of proceeds not made within these
statutory deadlines. That interest is owed as a penalty for late payment unless payments are
suspended by a payor for one of the following reasons:

91.402(b)(1) there is “a dispute concerning title that would affect distribution of payments;”
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91.402(b)(2) there is “a reasonable doubt that the payee:

(A) has sold or authorized the sale of its share of the oil or gas to the purchaser of such

production; or

(B) has clear title to the interest in the proceeds of production;” or

91.402(b)(3) there is “a requirement in a title opinion that places in issue the title, identity,

or whereabouts of the payee and that has not been satisfied by the payee after a reasonable

request for curative information has been made by the payor.” (emphasis added).

Thus, Section 91.402 of the Texas Natural Resource Code allows a payor of proceeds from
the sale of oil or gas to suspend payment to the payee, without interest, if there is a “title” dispute or
if the payee cannot be identified or found. Neither is the case here. The owner of the Upton
County, Texas, Oil rights is the TRUST and this has never been questioned. In fact on January 27,
2014, prior to the original February 18, 2014 trial date in this matter, JACQUELINE M.
MONTOYA’s other Nevada counsel stipulated to the admission of the two Quitclaim deeds that
were used to transfer the Upton County, Texas, Oil rights to the TRUST. A copy of an Email
confirming such stipulation is attached hereto as Exhibit “5” and incorporated herein by this
reference. Further, as noted above, JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA was extensively involved in the
negotiation of the 2012 Oil and Gas lease contracts with Apache Corporation, which she presented

to ELEANOR for her approval and signature and that were signed by ELEANOR “[i|ndividually

and as Trustee of the W.N. Connell and Marjorie T. Connell Living Trust under Trust

Agreement dated May 18, 1972” (emphasis added) and as sole lessor.  Accordingly,

JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA was and is fully aware that title to the Upton County, Texas, Oil
rights is vested in the TRUST and that there is no dispute as to this fact. Without a dispute
concerning title, JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA had no right to demand that suspension of the
Upton County, Texas, Oil right income.

JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA’s Texas counsel, Sean Guerrero, states in his Affidavit
attached to JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA’s MOTION that “[o]ur request was consistent with not
only Texas statutory law, but with industry standard and regular practice in Texas....” However,

this contention was rejected by the Court of Appeals in Austin in Browning Oil Co., Inc. v. Luecke,

38 S.W.3d 625, 647 (Tex.App.--Austin 2000, pet. denied). In that case, Browning Oil Co. argued
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that because there was a dispute as to how much royalty the Lueckes should be paid, Section 91.402

protected them from paying interest on the suspended royalties. The Court said:

The purpose of the statute is to protect royalty owners from intentional payment delays
while permitting delays that result from legitimate title disputes....The crux of this case is
whether the Lueckes are entitled to a pro rata share of royalties under the pooling provisions
or royalties for all production from their land. Their entitlement to royalties, however, was
never in dispute. All parties agreed that the Lueckes’ royalty interests are void. Thus, the
Natural Resource Code does not excuse Lessees from paying prejudgment interest where
there is no legitimate title dispute, but rather a dispute as to how to calculate the Lueckes’
royalties. (Emphasis in the original and emphasis added)

Again, the actions of JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA and her Texas counsel were not done
in accordance with Texas law and were inconsistent with “regular practice in Texas” because there
is no title dispute here. Furthermore and importantly, neither JACQUELINE M. MONTOY A nor
her Texas counsel, Sean Guerrero, are “payors” under Section 91.402 of the Texas Natural
Resource Code, and therefore, they are outside of the protected class of individuals that the statute
intends to protect. Section 91.402 provides protection to payors of oil and gas royalties when there
is a title dispute as to the land relating to such oil and gas interests or when the payee of oil and gas
royalties cannot be identified or located. JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA and her Texas counsel are
not “payors.”

In light of the forgoing, it is clear that the actions of JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA
constitute “acts intended or designed to disrupt the contractual relationship.” These actions can be
characterized in no other way.

Now that it has been established that the actions by JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA and her
Texas counsel in sending demand letters to the oil and gas payors of the Upton County, Texas, Oil
right income and demanding that all of such payments be suspended despite there being no dispute
as to thirty-five percent (35%) of such income payments are designed to disrupt the contractual
relations between the TRUST and the payors, it must next be shown that JACQUELINE M.
MONTOYA had the requisite intent. According to J.J. Industries v. Bennett, JACQUELINE M.
MONTOY A must have “intended to induce the other party (the payors) to breach the contract with
the plaintiff (ELEANOR as Trustee of the TRUST and individually).”

Unlike in JJ. Industries, LLC, v. Bennett, where the seller of real property informed the

defendant that the seller’s prior contract for the sale of said property was terminated, JACQUELINE
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M. MONTOYA knew there was and is a valid contract between the TRUST and Apache
Corporation (the recipient of her demands to suspend royalty payments owed by Apache to the
TRUST). JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA knew that there was and is no dispute as to the thirty-
five percent (35%) of the Upton County, Texas, Oil right income (which includes the amount
payable from Apache Corporation) owed to the TRUST for the benefit of ELEANOR. And
JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA knew that she had no legal basis, under Texas law or otherwise,
from which to demand that the suspense of all the royalty payments owing to the TRUST from
Apache Corporation as there was and is no dispute concerning the title of the Upton County, Texas,
Oil rights. Notwithstanding this, JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA sent not one, not two, but at least
three (3) correspondences to Apache Corporation to have them suspend funds owing to the TRUST.
Furthermore, given the fact that ELEANOR as Trustee of the TRUST has not received all of the
income payments owing to the TRUST from the oil and gas lessees of the Upton County, Texas, Oil
rights, she has reason to believe that JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA has sent demands to these
companies and tenants in addition to the ones referenced above. Upon information and belief,
ELEANOR belicves that JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA has sent such correspondence even after
this Court ordered otherwise it its Order Denying Motion To Refer Contested Probate Matter To
Master-Probate Commissioner Per EDCR 4.16; Directing Payment Of All Oil, Gas, Mineral And
Interest Royalties And Rent To Eleanor C. Hartman, Also Known As Eleanor C. Ahern, As Trustee
Of Trust No. 2 Of The W.N. Connell And Marjorie T. Connell Living Trust Dated May 18, 1972;
And Setting Calendar Call And Hearing filed on January 6, 2014. Based on these actions, this
Court should find that JACQUELINE M. MONTOY A has demonstrated the necessary intent for the
tort of intentional interference with contractual relations in that she intended and intends to induce
the payors of the Upton County, Texas, Oil right income to breach their contracts with the TRUST.
Actual Disruption and Resulting Damages:

Upon receipt of the aforementioned letters sent by JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA’s Texas
counsel, Apache Corporation did in fact suspend payment to the TRUST in order to evaluate
JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA’s demands. Although JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA in her
MOTION attempts to minimize the effect of this, it was not until the later part of February 2014,

four (4) months after Sean Guerrero sent his first correspondence, that Apache Corporation finally
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paid the TRUST the amount owed to it. When Apache Corporation finally issued a check to the
TRUST, they did so in the amount of Six Hundred Sixty-Four Thousand Five Hundred Twenty-
Four and 20/100 dollars ($664,524.20). This is no inconsequential amount and the delay was more
than minimal. Notably, when Apache Corporation paid the TRUST it did so without interest. In
light of this, there was certainly actual disruption and actual damages in this case.

In her MOTION, JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA admits that there was disruption in that
there was a “temporary delay” in payment while Apache Corporation “evaluated” JACQUELINE
M. MONTOYA’s demands. Contrary to JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA’s assertion that there was
“no appreciable disruption,” in fact, the delay was not so “temporary;” rather, it was a four (4)
month delay. In any event, the standard set forth in Sutherland v. Gross only requires “actual
disruption” and not “appreciable disruption.”

JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA further asserts that “any interest which may have been
earned on the suspended payments would have been so minimal in today’s financial market as to be

39

a non-factor in this matter.” Again, the Sutherland v. Gross standard does not require “more than
minimal” damages; instead, only “actual damages” are required. ELEANOR, as Trustee of the
TRUST and individually as beneficiary of the TRUST, incurred actual damages in that Apache
Corporation suspended payments and did so without paying interest. Although the amount of lost
interest is not a factor in the Sutherland v. Gross analysis, ELEANOR objects to JACQUELINE M.
MONTOYA'’s claim that the interest is “minimal.” We are talking about a payment of Six Hundred
Sixty-Four Thousand Five Hundred Twenty-Four and 20/100 dollars ($664,524.20) here — a
substantial sum of money. Of this Six Hundred Sixty-Four Thousand Five Hundred Twenty-Four
and 20/100 dollars ($664,524.20), the undisputed amount that should have been paid to ELEANOR
was Two Hundred Thirty-Two Thousand Five Hundred Eighty-Three and 47/100 Dollars
($232,583.47) (thirty-five percent (35%)). In reality, then, ELEANOR lost the use of over a quarter
million dollars! Given the tremendous run up in the stock market at the end of 2013 and into 2014,
it is untenable to say that ELEANOR’s damages are only “minimal in today’s financial market.”
Furthermore, as noted above, ELEANOR has reason to believe that JACQUELINE M.

MONTOYA sent similar correspondences as those sent to Apache Corporation to other oil and gas

lessee and surface tenants of the Upton County, Texas, Oil right property. Since JACQUELINE M.
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MONTOYA sent her demands, the TRUST has not received all of the income payments owning to
it. Thus, it is believed that JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA continues to cause damage to the
TRUST.

Summary:

ELEANOR’s claim for intentional interference with contractual relations should not be
dismissed because there are sufficient facts for ELEANOR to prevail on such claim. And, under the
facts plead it does not “appear to a certainty” that ELEANOR is not entitled to relief as required by
Nevada law. In this case, JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA sent demand letters/emails to Apache
Corporation, a company who has a contractual relationship with the TRUST, and demanded that
Apache Corporation cease all payment of income to the TRUST even though only sixty-five
percent (65%) of such payments are in dispute. JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA took these actions
despite there being no legal basis in Texas or Nevada for doing so — all in an effort to prevent the
TRUST from receiving income owed to it and to interfere with the TRUST’s contractual relation
with Apache Corporation. Thus, ELEANOR’s counterclaim for intentional interference with

contractual relations should not be dismissed.

D. This Court Should Not Dismiss ELEANOR’s Counterclaim To Apply the No-Contest
Clause _Against JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA Because JACQUELINE M.
MONTOYA is challenging the TRUST in contravention of the No-Contest Clause
Therein And No Exception To the Applicability Of The No-Contest Clause Exists In
This Case.

Section 163.00195, Enforcement of no-contest clauses, exceptions, of the Nevada Revised

Statutes states in relevant part:

2. A no-contest clause must be construed to carry out the settlor’s intent. ... Except as
otherwise provided in subsections 3 and 4, a beneficiary’s share may be reduced or
eliminated under a no-contest clause based upon conduct that is set forth by the settlor
in the trust. Such conduct may include, without limitation:

(a) Conduct other than formal court action; and
(b) Conduct which is unrelated to the trust itself, including, without limitation:

(1) The commencement of civil litigation against the settlor’s probate estate or family
members;

(2) Interference with the administration of another trust or business entity;

(3) Efforts to frustrate the intent of the settlor’s power of attorney; and
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(4) Efforts to frustrate the designation of beneficiaries related to a nonprobate transfer by
the settlor. (emphasis added).

The TRUST expressly sets forth the intent of the settlors, namely W.N. CONNELL and
MARJORIE T. CONNELL, in Article TENTH, NON-CONTEST PROVISION, which states as

follows:

The Grantors specifically desire that these trusts created herein be administered and
distributed without litigation or dispute of any kind. If any beneficiary of these trusts
or any other person, whether stranger, relatives or heirs, or any legatees or devisees under
the Last Will and Testament of the Grantors or the successors in interest of any such
persons, including any person who may be entitled to receive any portion of the Grantors’
estate under the intestate laws of the State of Nevada, seek or establish to assert any claim
to the assets of these trusts established herein, or attack, oppose or seek to set aside the
administration and distribution of the said trusts, or to have the same declared null and
void or diminished, or to defeat or change any part of the provisions of the trust established
herein, then in any and all of the above mentioned cases and events, such person or
persons shall receive One Dollar ($1.00) and no more in lieu of any interest in these
assets of the trusts.

Based on this language, it is clear that W.N. CONNELL and MARJORIE T. CONNELL, the

settlors of the TRUST, intended for the TRUST to be “administered and distributed without
litigation or dispute of any kind.” By filing her 2013 DECLARATORY JUDGMENT PETITION,
JACQUELINE M. MONTOY A violated the non-contest provision of the TRUST and did so against
the settlors’ clear expression of intent. Instead of the TRUST being administered without litigation,
the TRUST is now embroiled in intensive and highly contentious litigation. Clearly, this is not
what W.N. CONNELL and MARJORIE T. CONNELL desired when they created the TRUST. As
with the creation of any living trust, one of the main thrust is to preserve family wealth for the
settlors’ children. In this case, the only child of the settlors, W.N. CONNELL and MARJORIE T.
CONNELL, is ELEANOR, who is specifically designated as the “Residuary Beneficiary” of the
TRUST. But, instead of having the TRUST assets be distributed to ELEANOR, as 1s the norm,
JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA, a granddaughter of the Settlors, is seeking to claim a present
interest in the TRUST.

Notably, almost immediately after MARJORIE T. CONNELL’s death, JACQUELINE M.
MONTOYA removed numerous TRUST documents and records, including documents relating to
the Upton County, Texas, Oil rights, from MARJORIE T. CONNELL’s home and refused to allow
ELEANOR access to the same. Also, attendant to the control that JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA
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had gained while ELEANOR lived in Idaho (ELEANOR moved to Idaho in 1999), JACQUELINE
M. MONTOYA possessed the key to the post office box located in Las Vegas, Nevada, to which
the Upton County, Texas, Oil right income payments were sent. JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA
refused to turn over the key or allow ELEANOR access to this post office box. Accordingly,
JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA had full control over the payments received from the Upton
County, Texas Oil rights. Exerting her control, JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA took it upon herself
to continue dividing the Upton County, Texas, Oil right income in the same proportion as it had
been divided while MARJORIE T. CONNELL was alive. Now, however, JACQUELINE M.
MONTOYA decided that she would pay the sixty-five percent (65%) that was formerly paid to
MARJORIE T. CONNELL to herself and her sister, KATHRYN A. BOUVIER.

As JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA is not a trustee of the TRUST, her efforts above in
taking control of the TRUST documents and post office box against the will and instruction of
ELEANOR certainly interfered with the administration of the TRUST. In doing so, JACQUELINE
M. MONTOYA “attack[ed], “oppose[d],” [and] “[sought] to set aside the administration and
distribution of ... the trust,” in contravention of the non-contest provision of the TRUST.

JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA claims that her action in filing this lawsuit is protected by
Section 163.00195(3) of the Nevada Revised Statutes, which prevents the enforcement of the no-
contest clause of a trust where a beneficiary seeks only to: (a) enforce the terms of the trust; (b)
enforce the beneficiary’s legal rights related to the trust; or (c) obtain a court ruling with respect to
the construction or legal effect of the trust.

JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA, however, is only a residuary beneficiary of the TRUST and
under the terms of the TRUST, ELEANOR is the sole beneficiary with respect to the Upton County,
Texas, Oil rights (sixty-five percent (65%) of which is the subject of this dispute). The TRUST
agreement provides in part that upon the death of the Grantor whose death shall first occur [W. N.
CONNELLY], the Trustee shall divide the trust estate into two parts, each part to be administered as a
separate trust to be known respectively as “Trust No. 2” and “Trust No. 3”. In particular, Article
SECOND, TRUST NO. 1, Paragraph C, Death of Either Grantor, of the TRUST agreement in

relevant part states:
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Upon the death of the Grantor whose death shall first occur, the Trustee shall divide the trust
estates, including all property received as a result of the decedent’s death, as follows:
1. The trust estate and all property received as a result of the decedent’s death
shall be divided into two parts, each part to be administered as a separate
trust to be known respectively as ‘Trust No. 2’ and ‘Trust No. 3°.

A copy of such Trust is attached hereto as Exhibit “6” and incorporated herein by this
reference.

Subparagraphs 2 and 3 of said Paragraph C of the TRUST agreement (Exhibit “6”) describe

how Trust No. 3 is to be funded, and state as follows:

2. The Trustee shall allocate to Trust No. 3 (a) the Survivor’'s [MARJORIE T. CONNELL]
separate property interest in the trust estate; (b) the Survivor’s [MARJORIE T. CONNELL]
one-half (%) interest in the community property of the trust estate, less a proportionate part
of all amounts properly chargeable against all community property; and (c) the Survivor’s
[MARJORIE T. CONNELL] community property interest in any policy of insurance on the
life of the Decedent [W. N. CONNELL] owned by the Grantors as community property and
made payable to Trust No. 1.

3. The Trustee shall allocate to Trust No. 3 from the Decedent’s [W. N. CONNELL]
separate property an amount as determined in Article THIRD hereof.

Article THIRD, MARITAL DEDUCTION, of the TRUST agreement (Exhibit “6”) states in

relevant part:
The Trustee shall allocate to Trust No. 3 from the Decedent’s [W. N. CONNELL] separate
property the fractional share of the said assets which is equal to the maximum marital
deduction allowed for federal estate tax purposes, reduced by the total of any other amounts
allowed under the Internal Revenue Code as a Marital Deduction which are not a part of this
trust estate.

Subparagraph 4 of said Paragraph C of the TRUST agreement (Exhibit “6”") describes how

Trust No. 2 is to be funded, and states as follows:
The Trustee shall allocate to Trust No. 2 all the remaining protion (sic) of the trust
estate not allocated to Trust No. 3, including but not limited to, the Decedent’s [W. N,
CONNELL] community property interest, if any, in any life insurance policy on the life of
the Decedent [W. N. CONNELL] payable to Trust No. 1. (emphasis added)

The Upton County, Texas Oil rights were never allocated to Trust No. 3 via a deed, and
accordingly became a part of Trust No. 2 as part of “... all the remaining protion (sic) of the trust

estate not allocated to Trust No. 3.”
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Article FOURTH, TRUST NO. 2, Paragraph B, Income, of the TRUST agreement (Exhibit

“6”) sets forth how the income of Trust No. 2 was to be paid, and in relevant part states:

All income received by this Trust from the separate property of the Decedent [W. N.
CONNELL] shall be paid to the Residual Beneficiary [ELEANOR]. In the event any of the
real property located in Upton County, Texas, as listed on the original Schedule “A”
attached hereto, forms a part of the corpus of this Trust, the Residual Beneficiary
[ELEANOR] shall be paid an additional payment from the income received from the
Decedent’s [W. N. CONNELL] half of the community property, which forms a part of the
corpus of this Trust, equal to all of the income received by this Trust from the real property
located in Upton County, Texas.

Schedule “A” attached to the TRUST agreement sets out the detailed legal descriptions of
the Upton County, Texas, real property as the “... separate property of W. N. CONNELL.” See
Schedule “A” of the TRUST agreement, Exhibit “7”. It is obvious that the intent of Decedent
W.N. CONNELL was that his only child, ELEANOR, should have the right to receive an amount
cqual to all of income generated from the Upton County, Texas, Oil rights as long as ELEANOR
lived. This makes perfect sense from an estate-planning point of view in that the Upton County,
Texas, Oil rights were the sole and separate property of W. N. CONNELL that he brought into his
second marriage with MARJORIE T. CONNELL, ELEANOR was his only child, and ELEANOR
was his child from a previous marriage.

Based on the foregoing TRUST language, it is clear that W.N. CONNELL intended for
ELEANOR to receive all of the Upton County, Texas, Oil right income during her life; therefore,
JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA'’s contention that the no-contest clause contained in the TRUST
should not be applied to her because she is seeking a court ruling with respect to construction of the
TRUST is wholly without merit. W.N. CONNELL intended for the Upton County, Texas, Oil right
income (W.N. CONNELL’s sole and separate property) to benefit ELEANOR, his only daughter,
during her life — period.

Although, as JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA pointed out in her MOTION, there is an
exception to the application of a no-contest clause if the contestant’s action was brought in good
faith with probable cause, such is not the case here. In fact, few, if any, of the actions taken by
JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA in this case can be considered to have been done in good faith. In
brief, JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA forged or caused to be forged bank signature cards relating to

TRUST accounts; she instituted an improper probate proceeding in Texas and by making blatant
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misrepresentations therein she sought to have MARJORIE T. CONNELL’s purported Last Will &
Testament probated without giving notice to ELEANOR (MARJORIE T. CONNELL’s only child);
she forged or caused to be forged the purported Last Will & Testament of MARJORIE T.
CONNELL dated January 7, 2008; and she sent demand letters/emails to Apache Corporation
demanding that they cease payment to the TRUST notwithstanding the fact that there is no dispute
as to the title of the Upton County, Texas, Oil right property. Given these actions, JACQUELINE
M. MONTOYA cannot be considered to have acted in “good faith.” “Bad faith” is the more proper
characterization.

In sum, ELEANOR’s counterclaim for enforcement of the no-contest clause must not be
dismissed because sufficient facts exists on which ELEANOR could prove her claim. Based on the
facts set forth in ELEANOR’s ANSWER and the facts set forth above, it cannot be said that it 1s
“appears to a certainty” that ELEANOR is not entitled to relief. Again, at the motion to dismiss
stage, all facts must be construed in favor of the non-moving party (ELEANOR), and if every fact
above is accepted as true, then ELEANOR would certainly be entitled to the enforcement of the no-
contest clause against JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA. For these reasons, ELEANOR’s

counterclaim for enforcement of the no-contest clause must not be dismissed.

E. ELEANOR’s Counterclaim For Punitive Damages Should Not Be Dismissed As It Has
Merit And Is Supported By The Facts In This Case.

NRS 42.005, Exemplary and punitive damages: In general, limitations on amount of award;

determination in subsequent proceeding, provides in relevant part:

1. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 42.007, in an action for the breach of an
obligation not arising from contract, where it is proven by clear and convincing
evidence that the defendant has been guilty of oppression, fraud., or malice,
express or implied. the plaintiff, in addition to the compensatory damages, may
recover damages for the sake of example and by way of punishing the
defendant.... (emphasis added)

NRS 42.001, Definition, exceptions, defines “oppression,” “fraud,” and “malice” as follows:
2. “Fraud” means an intentional misrepresentation, deception or concealment of a
material fact known to the person with the intent to deprive another person of his or

her rights or property or to otherwise injure another person.

3. “Malice, express or implied” means conduct which is intended to injure a person or
despicable conduct which is engaged in with conscious disregard of the rights or
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safety of others.

4. “Oppression” means despicable conduct that subjects a person to cruel and unjust
hardship with conscious disregard of the rights of the person.

The definitions of “fraud,” “malice” and “oppression” are directly applicable to this case as
there are various actions taken by JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA that can be categorized as such.
The actions taken by JACQUELINE M. MONTOY A are more fully described below.

Forgery and Misrepresentation- Bank Records

In approximately spring of 2012, ELEANOR discovered that the bank account for the
TRUST had been closed by JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA. This account was established by
MARIJORIE T. CONNELL and ELEANOR to receive the royalty payments from the Upton
County, Texas, Oil rights. In its place, ELEANOR discovered that JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA
had opened an account on which JACQUELINE M. MONTOY A was listed as the Customer and to
which the Upton County, Texas, Oil right income was deposited. ELEANOR never consented to
the closing of the TRUST bank account or opening of this new account. Upon looking into this
matter further and hiring a handwriting expert, ELEANOR discovered that JACQUELINE M.
MONTOYA forged or caused to be forged ELEANOR’s signature and the signature of MARJORIE
T. CONNELL on this signature card for this account.

Further, in September of 2012, JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA completed a Consumer
Account Application at Wells Fargo Bank to open two (2) new accounts under the name of the ECA
LIVING TRUST. Included with this Consumer Account Application is a Certification Of Trustee
wherein JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA lists herself as the sole trustee and the person who has the
power to revoke said trust. However, the ECA LIVING TRUST is ELEANOR’s trust and
JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA is not a trustee of this trust.

These actions of closing the TRUST account without ELEANOR’s consent, secretively
establishing new accounts for the TRUST; forging or causing to be forged ELEANOR’s and
MARJORIE T. CONNELL’s signature; and making misrepresentations on bank account
applications without question rise to the level of “fraud,” “malice” and “oppression.” These actions
include intentional misrepresentation, deception and concealment of material facts. These actions

were intended to injure ELEANOR. And these actions are undoubtedly despicable.
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Forgery — The Purported Last Will And Testament of MARJORIE T. CONNELL

Based upon the expert opinion of two handwriting experts — Curt Baggett and Laurie
Hoeltzell — the signature of MARJORIE T. CONNELL on her purported Last Will And Testament
dated January 7, 2008, like the bank signature cards above, was forged. Copies of such
Handwriting Reports are attached hereto as Exhibit “8” and Exhibit “9” and incorporated herein
by this reference. Upon information and belicf, ELEANOR believes that JACQUELINE M.
MONTOYA forged or caused to be forged MARJORIE T. CONNELL’s signature on her purported
Last Will And Testament dated January 7, 2008. By forging or causing to be forged MARJORIE T.
CONNELL’s purported Last Will And Testament, JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA has subjected
herself to punitive damages and her actions are tantamount to “fraud,” “oppression” and “malice.”
Misrepresentation — Texas Probate

On July 12, 2012, JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA as Applicant filed an Application for
Original Probate of Foreign Will and Issuance of Letters of Independent Administration (the “Texas

Application”) in the Estate Of MARJORIE T. CONNELL, Deceased, in_the County Court of

Upton County, Texas, No. 1207-U1836-PRO. A copy of the Application is attached hereto as

Exhibit “10” and incorporated by this reference. Although required under Texas probate law,
JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA failed to give notice of the Texas Application to ELEANOR, the
only child of MARf ORIE T. CONNELL. JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA’s Nevada legal counsel
attempted to classify this Texas proceeding as a necessary ancillary administration because of the
Upton County, Texas, Oil rights at the November 12, 2013 hearing before Judge Sturman in the
matter of THE W.N. CONNELL AND MARJORIE T. CONNELL LIVING TRUST dated May 18,
1972 (Case No. P-09-066425-T). That rationalization is without merit since it 1s undisputed that at
the time of her death, the Upton County, Texas, Oil rights were not titled in the name of
MARJORIE T. CONNELL but were titled in the name of the TRUST and the TRUST is governed
by Nevada law and its situs is Nevada. Both JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA and ELEANOR are,
and have been for many years, residents of Clark County, Nevada. Furthermore, MARJORIE T.
CONNELL was a resident of Clark County, Nevada, at the time of her death and had been for many
years. Accordingly, no ancillary Texas probate administration of the MARJORIE T. CONNELL
Estatc was necessary or proper on account of the Upton County, Texas, Oil rights. However,

Page 21 AA 1185




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA contends that MARJORIE T. CONNELL exercised a testamentary
power of appointment in her purported Last Will And Testament appointing Trust No. 3 of the
TRUST, including sixty-five percent (65%) of the Upton County, Texas, Oil rights, to THE MTC
LIVING TRUST dated December 6, 1995 as restated January 7, 2008 (“THE MTC LIVING
TRUST?”), of which JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA is the sole trustee and of which JACQUELINE
M. MONTOYA and her sister are the sole beneficiaries. It is therefore evident that that the sole
impetus behind the Texas probate proceeding was in fact an effort by JACQUELINE M.
MONTOYA to have the purported Last Will And Testament admitted to probate and the time
expire for challenging the validity of the terms of the Will, all unbeknownst to ELEANOR. This 1s
further evidenced by the fact that the Texas Application of JACQUELINE M. MONTOY A contains

several falsehoods, including but not limited to the following:

“3. Decedent [MARJORIE T. CONNELL] owned oil, gas and mineral interests located
in Upton County, Texas, of a probable value in excess of $100,000.00.”

“5. To Applicant’s [JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA] knowledge, Decedent was married
one time only, such marriage being to W. N. Connell, who predeceased her. She was not

divorced after the making of her Will. No_child was ever born to or_adopted by the
Decedent [MARJORIE T. CONNELL].”

Applicant JACQUELINE M. MONTOY A has personal knowledge of, and has known for

years, that her mother, ELEANOR, was the adopted child of Decedent MARJORIE T. CONNELL.
In fact JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA in Paragraph 1 of the Application states she [JACQUELINE
M. MONTOYA] “[is] a granddaughter of the Decedent ...” The only way that JACQUELINE M.
MONTOYA could be the granddaughter of Decedent MARJORIE T. CONNNELL is if ELEANOR
is the child of the Decedent MARJORIE T. CONNELL.

JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA also references THE MTC LIVING TRUST - in Paragraphs
11, 12 and 13 of the Texas Application. In particular, JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA states in

relevant part in Paragraph 13 of the Texas Application as follows:

“JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA 1s the current trustee of THE MTC LIVING TRUST, and
Kathryn Anne Bouvier is the successor trustee.”

Article Two, Family Information, of THE MTC LIVING TRUST states as follows:
“I_have one child ELEANOR C. HARTMAN AHERN, born on May 13, 1938.”
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(emphasis added)

JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA as trustee of THE MTC LIVING TRUST obviously knows
the terms and provisions of THE MTC LIVING TRUST, including the fact that her own mother,
ELEANOR, is the child of Decedent MARJORIE T. CONNELL as stated and set forth therein. It is
self-evident that this blatantly false allegation that no child was ever adopted by Decedent
MARJORIE T. CONNELL contained in her Texas Application was an attempt by JACQUELINE
M. MONTOYA to avoid having to give ELEANOR lawful notice of the Texas MARJORIE T.
CONNELL Estate proceedings and due opportunity to object to the purported Last Will And
Testament of MARJORIE T. CONNELL under which the testamentary power of appointment of
Trust No. 3 to THE MTC LIVING TRUST was purportedly exercised, all as part of the plan of
JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA to deprive ELEANOR of sixty-five percent (65%) of the income
from the Upton County, Texas Oil interests to the benefit of Petitioner JACQUELINE M.
MONTOYA and her sister.

Since instituting the Texas probate proceeding (which is still pending), JACQUELINE M.,
MONTOYA instituted another probate proceeding in Nevada by filing her Petition For Probate Of
Will Of Marjorie T. Connell And Declaration Of Validity Of Will Pursuant To NRS 30.040
(“Nevada Probate Petition”) on March 25, 2014. By filing this Nevada Probate Petition,
JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA has arguably admitted that Texas is not the proper jurisdiction and
venue and that the Texas probate proceeding is wholly improper.

By filing the aforementioned Texas probate proceeding and doing so without giving notice
to ELEANOR and by making blatant misrepresentations, JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA
perpetrated fraud with the “intent to injure” ELEANOR. As such, punitive damages are

appropriate.

Misrepresentation, Deception, Concealment, Deprivation of Property and Rights — Control of
Trust and Royalties

As noted above, almost immediately after MARJORIE T. CONNELL’s death,
JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA removed numerous TRUST documents and records, including
documents relating to the Upton County, Texas, Oil rights, from MARJORIE T. CONNELL’s home

and refused to allow ELEANOR access to the same. Also, attendant to the control that
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JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA had gained while ELEANOR lived in Idaho, JACQUELINE M.
MONTOYA possessed the key to the post office box located in Las Vegas, Nevada, to which the
Upton County, Texas, Oil right income payments were sent. JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA
refused to turn over the key or allow ELEANOR access to this post office box. Accordingly,
JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA had full control over the payments received from the Upton
County, Texas Oil rights. Exerting her control, JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA took it upon herself
to continue dividing the Upton County, Texas, Oil right income in the same proportion as it had
been divided while MARJORIE T. CONNELL was alive. Now, however, JACQUELINE M.
MONTOYA decided that she would pay the sixty-five percent (65%) that was formerly paid to
MARJORIE T. CONNELL to herself and her sister, KATHRYN A. BOUVIER.

As JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA is not a trustee or beneficiary of the TRUST, her efforts
above in taking control of the TRUST documents and post office box and the royalties and their
distributions constitute misrepresentation, deception and concealment with the intent to deprive
ELEANOR her rights and the oil royalties.

Oppression — Letters and Emails to Oil Companies

As noted above, Ms. MONTONYA'’s Texas legal counsel sent letters and emails to various
oil companies and the surface tenant requesting the withholding of all rent and royalties based on
the Nevada proceeding, notwithstanding there is no dispute as to ELEANOR’s right to thirty-five
percent (35%) of the rent and royalties. Such actions constitute oppression that subjected
ELEANOR to unjust hardship with a conscious disregard to ELEANOR’s undisputed right to such

thirty-five percent (35%) of the rent and royalties.

F. JACOUELINE M. MONTOYA’s Request For Attorney’s Fees Based On NRS
18.010(2)(b) Lacks Justification: However, ELEANOR Should Be Awarded Attorneys’
Fees For Having To Defend Against JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA’s Harassing
Claims.

JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA claims that she is entitled to a reimbursement of attorneys’

fees because “Eleanor’s Counterclaims lack any merit and have obviously been brought to harass

22

Jacqueline.” However, this assessment could be no further from the truth. In light of the facts
above and for the reasons discussed above, there are can be no doubt that ELEANOR’s claims are

meritorious. In fact, given the facts of this case it is more accurate to say that JACQUELINE M.
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MONTOYA’s claims are intended to harass ELEANOR.

In summary, JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA has: (1) filed her 2013 DECLARATORY
JUDGMENT PETITION in spite of the fact that the TRUST clearly expresses W.N. CONNELL’s
intent to allow ELEANOR, his only daughter, to benefit from his sole and separate Upton County,
Texas, Oil right property during her life; (2) sent demand letters/emails to Apache Corporation and
other oil and gas lessees and surface tenants demanding that they suspend all of the Upton County,
Texas, Oil right income notwithstanding the fact that only sixty-five percent (65%) of such income
is in dispute; (3) instituted an improper and fraudulent probate proceeding in Texas to probate the
purported Last Will And Testament of MARJORIE T. CONNELL without giving notice to
ELEANOR (MARJORIE T. CONNELL’s only child); (4) seized TRUST documents, records and
rent and royalty payments following the death of MARJORIE T. CONNELL and refused to turn
over the same to ELEANOR as the rightful trustee; (5) made distributions of the rent and royalty
payments following the death of MARJORIE T. CONNELL contrary to the terms of the TRUST;
(6) made intentional misrepresentations in the Texas probate proceeding and on bank account
applications/documents; and (7) forged or caused to be forged signatures of ELEANOR and/or
MARIJORIE T. CONNELL on various bank signature cards and on the purported Last Will And
Testament of MARJORIE T. CONNELL. All of these actions were taken by JACQUELINE M.
MONTOYA in her effort to claim sixty-five percent (65%) of the Upton County, Texas, Oil right
income, which rightfully belong to ELEANOR during her lifetime under the terms of the TRUST.
And as a result of JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA'’s harassing actions, ELEANOR has incurred
legal fees attendant to her defense. Accordingly, this Court should award attorneys’ fees to
ELEANOR to the extent she prevails under NRS 18.010(2)(b).

III. CONCLUSION

In conclusion, JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA has failed to satisfy the requirements for the
dismissal of a claim under Nevada law with respect to each of ELEANOR’s counterclaims, and for
this reason ELEANOR respectfully requests that JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA’s MOTION be
denied. JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA has not shown “beyond a doubt” and “to a certainty” that
ELEANOR is unable to prove her counterclaims in light of the facts plead in this case. Thus,
JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA’s Rule 12(b)(5) MOTION should be denied and ELEANOR should
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be permitted to pursue her counterclaims.

WHEREFORE, ELEANOR C. AHERN, a/k/a ELEANOR CONNELL HARTMAN
AHERN, as Trustee of THE W.N. CONNELL AND MARJORIE T. CONNELL LIVING TRUST
dated May 18, 1972, prays as follows:

1. For this Court to deny JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA’s Motion To Dismiss

Counterclaims of ELEANOR C. AHERN;

2. For this Court to deny JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA’s request for reimbursement of

attorneys’ fees; and

3. For any other relief as this Court deems appropriate.

DATED: May / 2014,
JEFFREY BURR, LTD.

s
By: T / /// 7«—%@/ sl
q{gﬂN R. MUGAN ESQUI?& /
vada Bar No. 10690 \ _
MICHAEL D. LUM, ESQUIRE
Nevada Bar No. 12997
2600 Paseo Verde Parkway, Suite 200
Henderson, Nevada 89074

Attorneys for ELEANOR CONNELL HARTMAN
AHERN, individually and as Trustee
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VERIFICATION

STATE OF NEVADA )
): s
COUNTY OFCLARK )

ELEANOR CONNELL HARTMAN AHERN, individually and as Trustee of THE W. N.
CONNELL AND MARJORIE T. CONNELL LIVING TRUST dated May 18, 1972, being first
duly sworn, deposes and says: That I am the Defendant herein; that I have read the above and
foregoing Opposition of Eleanor C. Ahern To Motion To Dismiss Counterclaims Of Eleanor C.
Ahern, that the same is true of my own knowledge, except for matters therein stated on information

and belief, and as for those matters, I believe it to be true.

20 ol BlonLoran Ahein,

ELEANOR CONNELL HARTMAN AHER

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me
this _~1  day of May, 2014.

KARI A, LOMPREY
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF NEVADA
APPT. No. 11-5388-1
MY APPT. EXPIRES JULY 14, 2015
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that onthe &  day of May, 2014, I did email to JOSEPH J. POWELL,
Esquire, as indicated below, and I did email and deposit in the U.S. Post Office at Las Vegas,
Nevada, postage prepaid, a copy of the above and foregoing Opposition of Eleanor C. Ahern To
Motion To Dismiss Counterclaims Of Eleanor C. Ahern, to each person as indicated below,

addressed as follows:

Joseph J. Powell

The Rushforth Firm, Ltd.
P.O. Box 371655

Las Vegas, NV 89137-1655
probate@rushforthfirm.com

mployee of JEU URR, LTD.
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Email regarding facts

Division Orders and Upton County, Texas, O1l Rights

Hearing Transcript for November 12, 2013

Affidavit of Stan Crawford

Email confirming Stipulation

The W.N. Connell and Marjorie T. Connell Living Trust dated May 18,

1972
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Texas Application for Original Probate of Foreign Will and Issuance of
Letters of Independent Administration
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EXHIBIT “17
Email Regarding Facts
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Michael D. Lum

From: Joseph Powell [joey@rushforth.net]

Sent: Wednesday, February 05, 2014 5:09 PM
To: Michael D. Lum

Cc: John R. Mugan; Vanessa F. Farmer; Kari Lomprey
Subject: RE: J Randall Turner - Stipulation of Facis
TimeMattersID: ME637AA2E47EC4186

TM Contact: Eleanor Ahern

TM Contact No: 19690

TM Matter No: 01LTE

TM Matter Reference: Ahern, Eleanor - Beneficiary Representation
Michael,

| am fine with the language for Mr. Turner. Therefore, | think we are okay with vacating his depo.

As to the orders, | have to look at them more in depth and let you know. 1will be out of the office and nearly all of
Friday so | may not be able to give you a response on the orders until Monday.

As to Sean Guerrero, no, he will not be actively participating in the depo, just listening. Therefore, there are no plans to
admit him pro hoc vice.

Thanks.

Joey

From: Michae! D. Lum [mailto:michael@jeffreyburr.com]
Sent: Wednesday, February 05, 2014 11:04 AM

To: 'Joseph Powell'

Cc: John R. Mugan; Vanessa F. Farmer; Kari Lomprey
Subject: ) Randail Turner - Stipulation of Facts

Joey:

As previously discussed, we have prepared proposed language relating to the facts that J Randall Turner would testify
to. This language is as follows.

“John Randall Turner is an attorney licensed to practice law in the State of Texas and has been so licensed since May 15,
1981. Mr. Turner’s law office is located in Midland, Texas. Through his many years of practice, Mr. Turner has extensive
experience in the field of property rights relating to oil and gas interests in Texas. Mr. Turner has performed a thorough
review and search of the property records regarding the oil, gas and mineral interest on and under certain real estate
and severed oil, gas and mineral interests in other acreage all located in Upton County, Texas (“Upton, County, Texas Oil
Rights”) and owned by the W.N. Connell and Marjorie T. Connell Living Trust dated May 18, 1972. Based on Mr. Turner’s
review and search of these property records, Mr. Turner has determined that neither W.N. Connell, Marjorie T. Connell,
nor Eleanor Connell Hartman Ahern ever executed any deed or other document of conveyance transferring any portion of
the Upton, County, Texas Oil Rights to “Trust No. 3” of the W.N. Connell and Marjorie T. Connell Living Trust dated May
18, 1972 and there is no such deed or other document of public record.”

1
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Please let us know whether you will stipulate to these facts so that we may vacate Mr. Turner’s deposition.

Also, attached are the orders that we previously discussed. Following your approval of these orders, please sign and
return them to our office.

Finally, as a point of clarification, will Jackie’s Texas counsel be actively participating in the deposition of Curt Baggett? if
yes, will he be admitted pro hoc vice in Nevada {l presume he is not licensed in Nevada)?

Thank you,

Michael Lum, J.D., MAcc
Jeffrey Burr, Ltd

2600 Paseo Verde Parkway
Henderson, NV 89074
michael@jeffreyburr.com

702.433.4455 phone
702.451.1853 fax

Follow Jeffrey Burr on Twitter
Read the Jeffrey Burr Blog
Visit the Jeffrey Burr Website

[EFFREY BURI

ESTATE PLANNING & PROBATE ATTORNEYS

This message contains confidential information and may also contain information subject to the attorney client privilege
or the attorney work product rules. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete the message. If you are not the
intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, distribution, reliance on or use of the contents of this message is prohibited.

Circular 230 Disclosure:

To ensure compliance with requirements imposed by the IRS, we inform you that (i) any tax advice contained in this
communication (including any attachments) was not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used for the purpose
of avoiding penalties under the Internal Revenue Code or (ii) promoting, marketing or recommending to another party
any transaction or matter addressed herein.
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EXHIBIT *“2”
Division Orders - Upton County, Texas, Oil Rights
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Dzvisxdm ORDER . BWW:C

 RETURN ONE COPY TO: PHILLIPS 66 COMPANY B
T e T 0. BOX’ 5409
BARTLESVILLE OK. 74005 5400

'LEASE ﬂAME 'Péﬁffﬁ”27 N, PEMBROOK SPRARERRY

| GPERAEOR.ee " DARKER. PARSLEY ETROLEUM.COMP ANY
LjDESCRIPTION- SEé%NSE%Xéz BLK 38 T SS T&P RR CO SURVEY

- Each s1gnatory party Lert1;1es and warrants that he is: the {egat OHPEF,VIU the proport1on set out betow of all the 01{/gas

'(thCh hereunder 1nc{udes drstiltate) produced from the above descr;bed property

EFFECTIVE.,. 01/01/92

"Phililps 66 Cempany, hereanafter referred to as Ph1{l1ps, sub;e tuto the covenants and COhd]tIOhS set out .
on the revarse sxde hereof ‘which'are adopted By reference as -though, futty set .out hereln, is hereby author:zed

- ta)tdlp urchase and receive oil preduced from the: :abovie, described. property, er. - . :

- (b) where Phlll]ps ouwns .a. working interest in. .said property of--has - the- rdght - to marKet att ar pa
_ _ f'-preduct1on therefrem, to selt andfor del jvér oil: produced from the abeve: desciibed property to ny
- “f‘}““"“Ph:uL1pa ‘mays deetgwate and urtﬂl fu"ther hot1ce Ph1lt1ps.shatl glye credlt for sa1d otl as set ou

-\., .

10.,uf the
urchaser
b

elow

pu——

re
pu
t

CRED‘IT o : T U T e pichen
B ‘*‘”'“”"‘Vlfﬁf g 013671700

“This d1v131on order corrects and- supersedes dTV]San erder 1ssued December 2@ 1991 ThTS lelSien erder ‘covers '

the per1od JanUary 1, 1?92 to Apr1t 1 1992

SIGNATURE OF OWNER(S) :eam-?Q-TAXPAEER NUMBER

szjn%&mu%;;i;egﬁﬁ63733g
o il 89 -0 3 T 328

> .
(FFpIUL

¥ Types of Interest: R = Royatty, 0 ¥'Overriding3RGYalty Interest, N = Nork1ng Interest

*% In accordance with federal law, 20% tax witl be w1thheid if you do not prov1de your soc1al sécurity or employer

" jdentifcation number oF 3§ the number provided does not match the owner hame shown above Any taxes 8o withheld by

Phillips will not he refunded by Phillips.
- OVER -

ECA178.
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FiRST Said oil shall become the property of Phalhps upon the delwery thereof to-it or to any common carrier pipe line, perscn flrm or

- ’cerporatlon desugnated by Phillips to receive: satd oil for its account

SECOND: Oil purchased and received under (a) abeve shall be-paid for to the signatory parties, according to theirf respective mterest o
shown above, at the price paad by Phillips for ol of the same grade and gravity in the same figld or pool on the date oil'is received. Phillips
“is hereby euthonzed to receive payment for oil sold and/or delivered under (b) above, and shiall pay to the sugnetory parties, according to -+
their. respectiveinterests, the-same net price: received by Philflps therefor. "When nécessary for Phillips to transport said oil by truck er ether _
means of ransportation from the property, above described for deliveryto- a common ¢arrier pipe line or to any persom, firm-or corporatlon '
designated by Phillips to receive said oil for its account, then Phillips is authorized to arrange for the transponation of said oil. Where oil is
purchased.and received under. {a) aboye, Phillips is authorized to deduct proportionately from its- payment to the- signatory pames the
transportation charges agreed upon between Phillips and the ‘operatar.of said leasé. Whare oili5 $old and/or delivered Under (b) abOVe
Phillips is authonzed to deduct propor‘lionateiy from tts payment to the sngnetory parties the charges for such’ transpartatron

THIRD Phillips may refuse any oil which Phillips considers is not in its natural state or is not merchantable. ln making settiement for-
oil: {1) deductions may be made‘for dirt, sediment and other impurities; (2) where a well produces oil after liquid hydrocarbons have
been injected into the same for cemplet:en or rewcrkung purposes, teductions may be made for an amount of oil equivalent to'the amount
of liquid hydrocarbons.so injected; (3). adjustments may be made in accordance with accepted practices and rules, regulations. and/for’
customs prevailing at the time and place of delivery. - Before makmg payment to owners hereunder, there shall be deducted therefrom any
severance, gross pmducnon cccupation or other taximposed on the productlon or the purchase or sale of said oil.

FOURTH Sausfactory evzdence ot signatory party s !lﬂe to sald 0|E shail be !urnished at any time upon demand If, in the oplnion of
Phillips, such party does net have good title to the interest claimed, or in case of adverse claim of titie to the land from which said oil may
be produced or to which such oil is allocated under any unit operation, or to any of-said oil, Phillips may withhold, without interest, the
purchase price or proceeds of said oil, until indemnity satisfactory to Phillips has been furnished, or until such title is made acceptable to.
Phillips or until such adverse claim is settled to Phr]hps satisfaction. :

FIFTH: Phillips is hereby relieved of any responsibitity for determining if and when any of the interest attached set'forth shall or

should revert to or be owned by other parties as a result of the completion or discharge of money or other payment from said interests,

and the signatory parties whose interests are affected by such money or other payments, agree to give Phillips notice iri writing addressed -
as set out on'the front of this instrument, when any such meney or other payments have been completed or discharged or when any division
of interest other than that set forth shall for any reason, become effective and 1o furnish transfer orders aceordingly. Each signatory. party '
agrees to nolify- Phillips immediately in writing at Bartlesville, Oklahoma of any change in ownership affecting such owner's.interést and to

- furnish satisfactory proof thereof. Each working interest owner agrees to notify Ph:lirps immediately in writing at Bartlesville, Oklahoma, of _
any change in ownership affecting any owner's interest, notice of which has been given to such working interest owner, and to furnish to
Philiips the proof of such change-as given to.such workmg interest owner. In the.event natice or notices requrred in this paragraph are not

. recgived by Phillips, the party failing to give such nofice agregs to.held Philfips. harmless from any damage or- Ioss which- may arrse by

, reasen of Phllhps makmg payments to owners hereunder whose tnterests have char)ged e S

SIXTH:  ~Subject i the Fourth condrtlen eettiement eha[! be mads- monthly by malllng or dehvermg to’ the owners last known address o
a check or draft for the amount due on acceunt of oil which'has beén.run héreunder during the preceding calendar month: if atany
settlement date, the amount payable to any party hereunder shall be less than Twenty Five Dollars, settlement may be deferred unti}

Twenty Five Dollars or-more is payable. -Subject to the Fourth ¢ondition, upon termination of this agreement payment -shall be made to

the respective parties entitled thereto regard!ess of the ameunt or amounts due.

SEVENTH All parties hereto who are connected with the operation of the above descnbed lease guarantee and warrant that all ol
hereunder has not been or will not be produced or otherwise handled in violation of the Federal Fair Labor-Standards Act of 1938 as
heretofore or hereafter amended and all official regulations and orders issued thersunder, and that such oil has been and will be

~ produced in accordance with the applicable laws and official rules and regulations.

EIGHTH: Each of the signatory parties who owns a royalty interest in the lands above described recognizes as valid and subsisting
and in full force and effect all oil and gas leases of record héld by the herein named working interest owners, which cover or purport

to cover his ( her) interest in said lands as well as the above mentioned pooled unit {if this dwrs;on order covers a unit) and the same are
hereby adopted. ratified and confirmed. :

NINTH: This Division Order shall become valid and binding on each and every owner as attached as soon as signed, regardless of
whether or not any of the ather named owners shali have se s:gned and shall be binding separate!y and not jointly upon-the signatory
parties their assigns and successors in interest, and shall insure to the benefit of Phillips, its assigns and successors. Authority of Phillips
to purchase or sell oil hereunder is on a day-to-day’ basis only and, without prejudice to the rights of Phillips under ather agreemenis it any,
this Dlvrston Order is term:nabie at wsi! by elther party

ECA179
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PHILLIPS 66 COMPANY

(1

INSTRUCTIONS TO ALL INTEREST OWNERS
READ CAREFULLY BEFORE SIGNING THE INSTRUMENT(S)

We are preparing to account for production from the lease(s) described in the attached Division/Transfer Order(s}. Further
correspondence will be eliminated and payment expedited if you will foliow the instructions outlined below:

. The attached instrument(s) should not be altered in any way unless accompanied by documentary evidence {0 support the change.

If your name and interest are correctly shown:

SIGNATURE:

CORPORATIONS:

PARTNERSHIP:

SIGNATURE BY
SECOND PARTY:

TAXPAYER
IDENTIFICATION
NUMBER OR SOCIAL
SECURITY NUMBER:

MAILING ADDRESS:

LEASE NUMBER:

CHANGE OF
ADDRESS:

Sign name as shown on the instrument. Have your signature witnessed by at least one person not refated to

If signing for a corporation, signature must be attested, corporate seal affixed, and title of signatory par-
ty shown. If not previously furnished, a certified copy of executing officer's authority must be

submitted.

If signed for a partnership, all partners must sign unless signed by an authorized partner who has furnished
a cerfified copy of his authority.

if the instrument is signed by agent, attorney-in-fact, guardian, estate representative, trustee or any party
other than the named interest owner, we must have evidence of the rights vested in the signatory party.

Insert your number in the space provided. Failure to furnish number will result in 20% withholding tax in
accordance with federal law, and any tax witheld will not be refundable by Phillips.

Check your mailing address carefully. If it is not correct then make the necessary changes. If itis not
shown insert the correct address below your name. Please print or type the address, do not abbreviate.

in the right, top portion of the instrument you will find the number assigned to this lease. This number will
also appear on the statement attached to your check and should always be used when corresponding with

this company.

You should notify us promptly of any change in your mailing address. This notice must be over your own
signature, or the signature of your appointed agent. Always include your Owner Number {which appears on
your check from this company) and your old address, then give your new address with zip code.

Return the executed instrument(s) without delay to the address below. Keep the indicated copy for your records.

PHILLIPS 66 COMPANY
DIVISION ORDERS

ATTN: B. W. WILLIAMS

BOX 5400
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 74005

(918) 661-9248

L PLEASE SEE REVERSE SIDE * k% ECA180

FORM 12915-5 5-8
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kA .IHPORTANT TAX INFORMATION ***%

PLEASE READ THIS BEFORE SIGNING YOUR DIVISION/TRANSFER ORDER!

We have been advised by the Internal Revenue Service that:

Section 3406 of the Internal Revenue Code requires that we withhold 20% in
tax, called backup withholding, when you do not give us your coxrrect Taxpayer
Identification Number (TIN). Further, vou may be subject to a $50 penalty by
the IRS under section 6721 of the Internal Revenue Code for failing to provide

us with your correct TIN.

For individuals, the TIN is your Social Security Number (SSN). Very often
a TIN is incorrect because of a name change due to marriage, divorce, adoption,
or some other reason that has not been communicated to the Social Security
Administration (SSA) and recorded on its records. Alternatively, the account
may not contain the correct SSN of the actual owner. For example, an account
in a child’s name may contain a parent’s SSN. An account should be titled in
the name of the actual owner of the account with that person’s SSN.

For most non-individuals (such as trusts, estates, partnerships, and
similar entities), the TIN is the Employer Indentification Number (EIN). The
EIN on your account may be incorrect because it does not contain the number of
the actual owner of the account. For example, an account of an investment club
or bowling league should reflect the organization’s own EIN and name rather

than the SSN of a member. (The account of a sole proprietor who may have both
an EIN and an SSN should reflect the individual name of the socole proprietor and

his or her SSN.)

Please make sure the TIN you write on the Division/Transfer
Order matches the name shown on the Division/Transfer Order.
Should you have any doubts about the number ahd name matching,
send us a copy of your Social Security card, Notice of Employer
Identification Number (Form 8501), Application For Employer
Identification Number (Form SS-4) or Notice of New Employer

Identification Number Assigned (Form 5372).

*%% TMPORTANT TAX INFORMATION | **#

ECA181

AA 1202



DIVISION CRDER

M@{ F7 Lease No. 48083
| SQas. B4 .
o  JMPETROLEUM CORPORATION . patg AUGUST 14, 1989
2500 Alllanz Financial Centra
2323 Bryan, Lock Box #1856
Datlag, TX 75201

: : PARKER &
Each of the undersigned warrants that he is the owner of the interest credited to him in all oil produced frotn all wells on the

\RSLEY -~ CONNELL farm or lease, located in UETON County, State of TEXAS
ore particular[y descnibed as follows:
L1 of Seciton 36, Block 39, T-5-S, T&P RR Co. Survey, Upton County, Texas,
sntaining 672 acres, more or less, Limited as to all depths down to but not
slow the base of the Spraberry formation.

iffective 7 a.m. AUGUST 01,1989 and until further written notice, subject to the conditions,
ovenants and directions hereof, you, your successors and assigns, are authorized to receive and purchase such oil and to give credit to the following:

OWNER |LEASE | CREDIT TO
NO. NO. INTEREST : NAME AND ADDRESS

48083 FOR DIVISION OF INTEREST SEE EXHIBIT "AY
ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOQF.

SIRST: The oil run in pursuance of this division order shall be merchantable and become your property upon delivery thereof to any pipe line designated by
rou. Correction for temperature and deductions for dirt, sediment and othey imputities ate to be made in accordance with your rules, regulations and customs
n effect at the time and place of delivery. You may require that any unmerchantable oil be steamed or treated before you accept it, Each of the undersigned
~ho is an actual operator of said lease warrants that oil run hereunder wiil be produced and delivered in accordance with all applicable Federal, State and Local
~aws, Orders, Rules and Regulations.

SECOND: The oil received in pursuance of this division order shall be paid for monthly for oil run during the preceding calendar month to the party or pariies
sntitled thereto according to the division of interest shown above, at the price per barrel (42 gallons) agreed upon between you and the operator. (Inno event
shall any price paid pursuant to this division order be greater than the maximum-lawful ceiling price allowed for oil sold hereunder as determined by the laws
wndregulations of any federal or state agency having jurisdiction). These payments are to be made by your checks delivered or mailed to the parties thereto entitled
1t the addresses above given. However, it is agreed, if at any settiement date, the amount payable to any party hereunder shall be less than Twenty-Five Dollars,
you may withhold payments, without interest, and in lieu of monthly setlemnént maké payment annually. Pipeline grades and measurcrents, adjusted to conform
‘0 the provisions set forth herein and in the price posting above referred to, shall.control in-all settlements. The undersigned authorize you to withhold from the
sroceeds of any and all runs made hereunder the amount of any tax placed thereon; ot on the production thereof, by any govemment authority, and to pay the
iame in our behalf. If at any time a federal or state agency having jurisdiction over the price of oil sold hereunder shall determine that the price which has been
oaid pursuant to this contract exceeds the maximum lawful ceiling price determined by said agency, the Owner agrees to refund to § M Petroleum Corporation
the total amount of such overcharge within thirty (30) days from date of notice of the overcharge given by either said federal or state agency or IM Petroleum
Corporation. A '

D: Incase of any adverse chaim of title or in case title shall not be satisfactory to you at any time duting the term of this division order, each of the undersigned
agrees to furnish evidence of title satisfactory to.you and authorize you fo retain thie purchase price of the oil, without obligation to pay interest on the amount
sa withheld or untl title shall be made satisfactory to you, Eachundersigned party, as to the oifgumhased hereunder from said party, respectively agrees in the
event suit is filed in any court affecting title 1o said ail, either before or after severance, to indemnify and save you and any.carrier ransporting said oil for your
account harmless against.any and all liability for loss, cost, damage and expense which you or the carrier may suffer or incur on account of receiv ing, transporting
and paying said party for said oil. Where you, pursuent to the provisions hereof, withhold payment of the purchase price, or any part thereof, on any oil run
hersunder, each undersigned party from whom payment is so withheld severally agrees toindemnify and hold you harmless from all liability for any tax, together
with all interest and penalties incident thereto, imposed or assessed against, or paid by you onaccount of; the sum or sums so withheld from payment to said patty,
and severally agrees, that you may deduct.all such-texes, interest and penalties 50 paid by you from any sums owing by you to said party.

FOURTH: The undersigned severally agree to notify you of any chinge of ownership and no transfer of interest shall be binding wpon you until transfer order
and the recorded instrument evidencing such transfer, or a certified copy thereaf, shaﬁ be furnished to you. Transfers of interest shall be made effective on the
first day of the calendar month in which nolice is received by you. You are hereby relieved of any. responsibility for determining if and when any of the interests
hereinabove set forth shall or should revert to or be owned by other parties as aresult of the completion or discharge of money or other payntents from said interests
and the signers hereof whose interests are affected by such money or other paymehts, if any, agree-to give you notice in writing by registered letter addressed
to I M Petroleum Corporation, at the above address, when any such money or other payments have been completed or discharged or when any other division
of interest than that set forth shall, for any reason, become effective and to furnish transferorders accordingly, and thatin the event such notice shall not ba received,
you shall be held harmless in the event of, and are hereby released from any and all damages or loss which might arise out of any overpayment.

FIFTH: This division order shall become valid and binding on each and every owner above hamed as soon as signed by such owner, regardless of whether or
not all of the above-named owners have so signed. o e '

IMPORTANT: Owner, pleasc insert your Tax Account Number in the space shown below, Cofporate signatures must be attested and corporate seal affixed

NO PAYMENT WILL BE MADE M PETROLEUM HAS YOUR IRS TAX ACCO NUMBER,
WITNESSES: SIGNATURE OF OWNER: 4 OWNER'S SOCIAL SECURITY OR
' 6 IRS TAX ACCOUNT NUMBER
- ’ P —— ot vt nmrre i
5l S bo 3733

AL AL R g T X fohgiatina L Topsger (o B2l S8 6037 338
-~ — NNEP0- By iy ECA186

1s your signnture witnessed? —=s- s I3 your correct add shown?  —e ~ao~  [nclude Zip Code
Lo 1, 0 g 5

AA 1203




EXHIBIT - A
08/03/89 PAGE i

EAGE NUMBER : 48083
EASE NAME . CONNELL
OCATION . UPTON ' TX

WNER NO. ~ INTEREST CRERIT TO

* 11433 0. Q0043940 R ROY D GOLSTON JR ET AL #441
TAB/FT WORTH, TRUSTEE
R O BOX 99033
FORT WORTH TX 76199-0033

# 11439 0. Q00746900 R JOHN W HERBERT EST #386~TAB FT WORTH.
‘ : - ' JOHN W HERBERT & JOANNE S BILBY, TRSTES
DRAWER #99033
FORT WORTH TX 746199-033

11441 0. 00021970 R ANA GARDNER OSBORN
755 SUNNY LANE
BRYAN T TX 77801

11548 0. 00448750 R EMIL MOSBACHER, .JR.
MERIDIAN BLDG
170 MASON STREET
GREENWICH CT 06830

it 11814 0.00131830 R TENNECO OIL CO:MID-CONTINENT DIV
P 0 BOX 730089

DALLAS - X 73373-0089

11999 0. 00043940 R- J. H. HERD
_ P -0 BOX 130
MIDLAND TX 79702

12003 0. 00010985 R JOHN J-REDFERN, JR ESTATE
P O BOX 44
MIDLAND TX 79702

12004 0. 00010985 R ROSALIND REDFERN
| P O BOX 2127 '
MIDLAND TX 79702

12175 0. 00B20310 R NORTH CENTRAL OIL CORPORATION
6001 SAVDY #4600

HOUSTON ' TX 77036~3381

¢ 15546 0. 06093750 R EXXON CORPORATION
P.0. BOX 1347 -
HOUSTON . TX 772511547

24815 0. 00193310 R W E KREPS TRUST #1124
: REPUBL.ICBK 18T MATL MIDLAND, TRUSTEE
P O BOX 270 '
MIDLAND TX ' 79702

30700 0. 00021970 R @ENE C. REDFERN
JOHN J. REDFERN, JR, ATTORNEY-IN-FACT
P O BOX 50430
MIDLAND TX 79710

36332 0. 00936250 W JOE MAC PARSLEY
P O BOX 1771
MIDLAND TX 79702

3&33D 0. 26025790 W HOWARD W PARKER
P 0O BOX 201420
AUSTIN TX 78720

37381 0. 00133480 R JOHN PERKINS 111, TRUSTEE
P 0O BOX 2177
MIDLAND TX 79702

44892 0. 00129961 W A FRANK KUBICA
2605 HODGES
MIDLAND TX 79705

ECA187

r 44901 0. 00129961 W . SCOTT D SHEFFIELD

P O BOX 8585 AA 1204



EXHIBIT ~ A _ -
08/03/89 PAGE 2

EABE NUMBER
EASE NAME
OCATION

48083

CONNELL

UP TON TX
WNER NO.

INTEREST CREDIT TO

44908

43590

21265

21811

642791

L8375

68377

&5405

66061

60462

L6063

&&072

66103

66133

&6137

0. 001299461
0. Q0193310
0. 00129961
0. 25739345

0. 00043940

0. 000276353

0. 000274654
0. 00129941

0. 00146483
0. 00144484
0. 00146483

0. Q0047750

0. Q0195310 .

0.01367186

0. 04452340

 MIRIAM L. _DBROUDY.

ROBERT. J CABTOR
2302 AUBURN PL
MIDLAND | TX

EARL R BRUNO JR
P 0 BOX 590 '
MIDLAND : TX

HERBERT ¢ WILLIAMSON I11I
3109 STANOLIND CT
MIDLAND TX

PARSLEY OIL PROPERTIES INC
P O BOX 1771
MIDLAND TX

LORETTA MCDERMOTT MARSH
%HARRELL & MCCART

901 W INDIANA #A

MIDLAND TX

MARYLANE MYERS ANDERSON
7618 SOUTHWESTERN BLYD
DALLAS TX

MICHAEL GLENN ANDERSON
P O BOX 4291 |
RIVERSIDE CA

JAMES D. MORING
2510 GULPEPER
MIDLAND TX

PHILLIP HILLHOUSE TRUST #504-~03

NCNB TX NATL BK, TRUSTEE
P O BOX 270
MIDLAND TX

GEDRGE & HILLHOUSE TRUST #504-04

NCNB TX NATL BK, TRUSTEE
P O BOX 270
MIDLAND TS

JAMES HILLHOUSE TRUST #504-02
NCNB TX NATL BK, TRUSTEE

P ¢ BOX 270

MIDLAND TX -

GERTRUDE Q. F. TYSON
2104. WOODLAWN _
MIDLAND. TX

CLOVERLAY CIRCLE “E™
NORWALK. - cT

CARDLYN C. CHANEY
624 AMARILLO
ABILENE TX

DAISY CHORIN
1000 PARK AVE
NEW YORK NY

72705

79702

797035

79702

79701
73225~7924&
9R%14-4291

79705-46318
72702-0270
79702~-0270

79702-0270
797Q05-7349
06855-5308

79605-1014

10028~-0934

66628 0. 02030780 RV/ MARJORIE T CONNELL & E C HARTMAN, CO-TR

P O BOX 710
LAS VEBAS NV ~REO OO
G237 /8

ECA188

10005-1401%
AA 1205

68458 0. 05198410 W A. R. CONNELLY

1 CHASE MANHATTAN PL.
NEW YORK NY



.EASE NUMBER
[EASE NAME
.OCATION

JWNER NO.

48508

68523

68325

L8526

68044

&8585

&8556

LBETH

68587
584608
L8439
4HBALHAR

&B630

68660
£B&EY

68691

48083
CONNELL
UPTON

INTEREST

0. Q0076460

. 000974650

. Q13467187

. 00027660

. 00021970

. 00098870

. 039464730
. 08182480

. 003904620
. 01347187
. 00073240
. 04332010
. 00048820
. 00048820
. 00263670

. C00&7 50

. Q00274655

EXHIBIT ~ &

08/03/8% PAGE 3

TX

CREDIT TO

_:RUTH Q¥;FERGUSDN DREWERY

3508 EUCLID

DALLAS X 75205~-3214
VALFEY. FAMILY TRUST

NORMAN C & GLADYS M VALPEY CO-TRTEES
1724 PLAZA DE SAN JOAQUIN

MODESTQ CA 55350-3549
CONSTANCE C. FAUBER

1721, BROOKS

ARLINGTON TX 76012

HUGH W. FERGUSON, JR. ESTATE

- RUTH F. DREWERY TRUSTEE

3308 EUCLID
DALLAS TX 75205

GMFG OIL ACCT #3153

TAB FT WORTH

P 0O BOX 24608

FT WORTH TX 76113 -

JOSEPHINE H. GRAF

C/0 .FT WORTH NATL BK

DRAWER NO 99033

FORT WORTH TX 76199-0033
FLAVIA R. HACKETT

19 EAST 72ND STREET

‘NEW YORK NY . 10021

SOLOMON J. KARAM
CONSOLIDATED PRODUCE

1220 BANDERA ROAD

SAN ANTONIO TX 78200-4030
CORINNE C. LAW

P 0O BOX 299

ALTO NM 8g8312-029%
MISSIONARY SOCIETY OF OBLATE FATHERS TX

7714 MADONNA DR

SAN ANTONIO TX 7821 b~64620
EDWARD S PINNEY MARITAL TRUST

PO BOX 36010

LOUVISVILLE Ky 40233
STEPHEN F. PRESLAR

4847 VISTA DEL MONTE

EL PABOD . TX 79500

HENRY RUSSELL ESTATE
MARION. RUSSELL EXEC

412 S ALBERTA

PECOS- TX 79772-2715
M. E. SINGLETON JR

C/0 CITIZENS NATL BK

WAXAHACHIE TX 75145

J C THOMPSON % J C THOMPSON JR ROY ACCT
4500 NCNB CENTER TOWER 11
DALLAS TX 73201-3993
WM. WOLF FAMILY TR 01514602
BANK OF SOUTHWEST TR

P O BOX 2629

HOUSTON . TX

ECA189

77282-2629
AA 1206



SASE NUMBER
ABE NAME
JICATION

JNER NO.
68714
69013
67014
é?blﬁ

&2016

&LF075

L7250

71133

48083
CONNELL
UFTON

INTEREST

0.
0.

006460780
Q0722000

. 00034180

. 000144650

. Q0034180

. 00014650

. 02030780

. QOOR74655

. QQOR76D3

. 00000000

EXHIBIT ~ A
08/03/89

TX

CREDIT TO

MONTAGUE H. HACKETT JR
230 PARK AVENUE
NEW YORK NY

ANN MORRISSEY
205 YDAKUM PKWY #8264

ALEXANDRIA Va

GREGORY E MORRIGSEY
2201 BYTON COURT
FORREST HILL MD

PATRICIA MORRISGEY
205 YOAKUM PARKWAY #826
ALEXANDRIA Va4

RACHEL MORRISSEY MAOYER
P 0O BOX 249
SHAWNEE ON DELA P&

E C HOPKINS TRUST ,
FRANCES ™M MILLER, TRUSTEE
3621 CROMWELL

PLANO TX

ANNA R. WOLF TRUST 0151401
BANK OF SOQUTHWEST-TRUSTEE
P 0O BOX 2429

HOUSTON TX

MEL.INDA ANDERSON CATES
ADDRESE UNKNOWN

PAGE 4

10021

22304

21080

22304

183%6-0247

795075

77252

ECA190
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JUNE 01, 1989
KJY

Hun e 21480 Cate:

DIVISION ORDER

500672-00000

TO: Sun Reflning and Marketing Company Crude Oit Account
PO Box 2039

Tulsa OK 74102-2039 GCondensate Account

MAY 01, 1989

Effective 7 a.ni.,

The undersigned, severally and not jointly, warrants, guarantees and cartiliss that it ts the owner of the interest shawn opposite His name on the
allached exhibit in the oil (defined herein (o inciude condensate), produced lrom: . :

Property Nama: " DECK -A-
Operator: KEYSTONE ENERE;-Y OIL & GAS . B
“Eield: SPRABERRY TREND
County: UII:’TON
State: TX
Description: SECTION 47, BLOCK 39, T-5-S, T&P. RR CO., SURVEY. LIMITED TO DEPTHS

BETWEEN 7,130 FEET BENEATH SURFACE OF GRQUND DOWN TO &,419% FEET
BENEATH SURFACE OF GROUND.

CNEY »&Z%/M
N

e

aa“w‘ fr:é"? /:-ZT.:":P“@_—- /P_ﬁ:‘\

: _ DIVISION OF INTEREST
See attached exhibil made a part of thls Divislon Order for all purposes.
Exhibit musl e returned. Please do not detach.

THIS DIVISION ORDER DOES NOT AMEND ANY OF THE LEASE PROVISIONS BETWEEN THE INTEREST OWNERS AND THE LESBEE,

This Division Order Is subject to all the lerms and condilions appearing on the reverse side,

FOR YOUR FILES

% All Signatures Musl Be Witnessed.

—

Signature of Interest Owner: ' Social Security/Tax L0, No, y/

fzqa%ijw T brvmadl, Tosalie, 85~ 603737
.Y ax. 71O .
77 e@w St o), JI SIS

Mo PO Boy 77 .
. v I8
Aar V22 7 | ECA191

Eallure to furnish your Soclat Security/ Tax 1.D. number wit resultin a 20% withhalding lax in accordance with lederal faw, and any {ax withheld will
not be refundable by Sun.
AA 1208

G g3 35S




SUN--21146-2

THIS EXHIBIT IS PART OF THE DIVISION ORDER.

PLEASE DO NOT DETACH.

Property No.  g456225-00000 EFFECTIVE MAY 01, 1989 Page No.
Owner Number and
Uwner'’s Suclal Seeurity Credit to Division of Interest
or Tax Account Number
650873 3 KEYSTONE 1984-P LIMITED .71802730 W1
25-1489445 PARTNERSHIP :
FIVE GATEWAY CTR STE 619
PITTSBURGH PA 15222
650876 6 KEYSTONE ENERGY OIL & GAS INC ,03787550 W
25~-1230817 FIVE GATEMWAY CTR STE 619
PITTSBURGH PA 15222
652396 3 ATLANTIC RICHFIELD COMPANY . .02343750 RI
230~37-1610 PO  BOX 201690 .
HOUSTON TX 77216-1690
655237 6 TRAFALOAR HOUSE OIL & GAS INC .021093270 RI
86-0460233 PO BOX 200284 | ‘ A
HOUSTON TX 77216-0284%
657033 7 CONNIE S GLASSCOCK .02140300 ORI
464-06~7110 PO  BOX 50215
MIDLAND TX 79710
657035 2 KRIS LOY .02140300 ORI
462-08-0114 PO BOX 8345
MIDLAND TX 79708
657036 0 CAROLYN COMWDEN CHANEY .00390630 RI
L63-52-36444 624 AMARILLG ST 3
ABILENE TX 79602
657038 6 CONSTANCE COWDEN FAUBER 00390620 RI
459~48~8643 1721 BROOKS DR
ARLINGTON TX 76012
657039 4 MARY LANE MYERS ANbERsoN .00039060 RI
457-36~7128 7618 SOUTHWESTERN BLVD
: DALLAS TX 75225
657060 2 CORINNE COWDEN LAU .00390630 RI
G59~48~8642 PO BOX 299
ALTOD NM 88312
657062 8 - FRANCES MOZELLE MILLER TRUSTEE .00585940 RT
85~6095246 OF THE ELEANQR C HOPKINS '
: REVOCABLE TRUST
3621 CROMWELL
PLANO TX 75075
657044 4 MARVIN E SINGLETON JR ESTATE .00234380 RI
75-6353621 PO BOX 717
WAXAHACHIE TX 75165
657047 7 PHILLIP MAVERICK TRUST 00312500 RI
75-6251565 A/C £504~03
REP BANK 1ST MNATL MIDLAND
TRUSTEE
PO BOX 270
MIDLAND TX 79702
657048 & 'SARAH M WOODMWARD 00117190 RI
465-80~-0122 90064 GLEN SPRINGS DR
' DALLAS TX 75243
657052 7 K N & MARJORIE T CONNELL .00585940 RT
41-7121212 LIVING TRUST
M T CONNELL AND E C HARTMAN
CO~TRUSTEES
PO BOX 710
LAS VEGAS NV 89125
ECA192
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DIVISION ORDER

. BWW:bb P
RETURN ONE GCOPY TO: PHILLIFS 66 COMPANY DATE: 12-20-91
P.0. BOX 5400 LEASE: 57200
BARTLESVILLE, OK 74005-5400
LEASE NAME: NORTH PEMBROOK SPRABERRY UNIT TRACT 27
OPERATOR: PFCo.

DESCRIPTION: SE/4, Sec. 42, Blk. 38, T-58, T&P RR Co. Survey
Upton County, Texas

Each signatory party certifies and warranta that he Ls the legal owner, in the proportion ser out below, of all the oll
(which hereunder includes distillate) produced from the above described property.

EFFECTIVE: 1-1-92

Phillips 66 Company, harsinafter referred to as Phillips, subject to the covenants and conditlons set out below which are
adopted by reference as though fully set out hereln, is hereby authorized:
fa) to purchase and receive ail produced from the above dascribed property, or
(b} whers Phiilips owns a working interest {n 2ald proparty or has the right to market all or a portlon of the production
therafrom, to sell andfor deliver oll produced from the above described property to any purchaser Phillips may
designate; and until further anotice Phillips shall glive credit for aald oil, as per directions below:

OWNER NUMBER CREDIT TO #TYPE OF INTEREST  DECIMAL J

4

178503 MARJORIE T. CONNELL AND R .0137507
ELEANOR C. HARTMAN AS CO-TRUSTEES
P.0O. BOX 710
LAS VEGAS, NV 89101

FYRST: Said oil shall become the property of Phillips upon the delivery thereof ta it or te any common carrier pipe Line,
person, flrm or corporaticn destgnaced by Phillips to recelwve sald oil fer lts account,

SECOMD: 0Ll purchased and received under (a) above, shall be paid for to the signatory parties, according te thelr
resgectLva {nterests shown above, at the price gaLd by Phillips for oll of the same §:ada and gravity in the same fleld oz
poel on the date oll La recelved. Phillips is hereby autherlzed to recelve paymant Lfor oLl sold andf/or delivered under
(b) above, and shall psﬁ to the slgnatory garties, hccording to thelr respective lnterests, the same net price recelved
bg Phillips therefor. en necessary for Phillips to trenspert said oll by truck or other meana of tramsportation from
the proparty abaove described for delivery to a common carriar pipe line or to any parson, flrm ox aprporation desgignated
by Phillips to receive said oil for its account, then Phillips Ls authorized to arrange for the transportation of sald
oil. Where oil is purchased and received under {a) above, Phillips is suchorized to educt proportlonately from its
ayment to the signatory parties the tranagortacion charfes agread upon between Phillips and the operator of sald lease.
ere oll 1s sold and/or delfivered under (b) above, Phillips Is autharized to deduct proporctonateﬁy from lts payment to

the signatory parties the charges for such transapertation. .

THEIRD: Phillips may rofuse any oll which Phlllip5 considers Ls not in lts natural state or is nut merchantable, In

makLn% sertlement for oil: (1) daductlons mey be made for dire sediment and other ngu:lties; (2) where a well produces
oll after liquid hydrocarbons have been injected into tha sama for compleclon or revorking purposes, deductlons may be
made for an amount of oll equivalent to the zmount of Liquid hydrocarbons so Injected: (3 adjustments may be made in

accordance with aecepted practices and rules, regulations and/or customa prevailing at the tlme and place of delivery,
Before maklng payment to owners hereunder, there shall be deducted therefrom any sevarance, §ross production, occupatlon
or ather tax imposed on the production or the purchase or sale of said oil.

FOURTE: Batisfactory evidence of slgnatory party's citle to sald oil shall be furnlshed at any tlme upan demand. If, in
the opinion of Phllllgs, such Earty oes not have good ctitle to the Interest claimed, or in case of adverse claim of title
to the land from which sald oil may be produced, or to which such otl is allocated under sny unit opegation, Ox to any of
said 6i}, Phillips may withhold, without interast, the purchase price or proceeds of sald oll, untl indemnlty
satisfactory uo Phillilps has been furnished, or untll such title fia made acceptable to Phillips er until such’ adverse
clsim is settied vo its sacisfaction.
FIFTH: Philllps is hereby relieved of any responsibility for datermining 1f and when any of the interssts attached set
forth shall or should revert to or be owned by othar partias aa a result of the completion or dlscharge of money or other
payment from sald interasts, and tha slignatory partiaa whose intexests arae affoctad bﬁ such money or othar payments, agree
to give Philllpa notice in writing sddrassed to Phillips at Bartlesville, Oklahoma, when any such money or other payments
have been completed or diacharged or when any division of jintarest othar than that attached, for any reason, bacome
offsctlve and to furnlsh transfer orders acecoxdingly. Each signatory party agrees to notify Phillips meudiatel{ in
writing at Bartleaville, Oklahoma, of any change ownership affecting auch owner's lnterast and to fumish satlsfactory
proof theveof. Eaeh working interest ownar agrees to notify Fhillips mmedlately 1n writlng at Bartlesville, Oklahowa, of
any change in ownership affecting any ownex's Loterest, notlce of which haa bean glven to such working interest otmer, and
to furnlsh te Phillips the preof of such change a3 iiven ta such workininlntsrest owner. In the event notlice or notices
requirad in this paragraph are oot recelved b{ Phillips, the part{ fall & te give such notlce agrees to hold Philllpa
ﬁarmlaﬁs frgm any damsge or loss which may arlse by xeason of Phillips maklng payments to owners hareunder whose interests
ave changed.

SIXTH: Subject to tha Fourth conditlion, sattlement shall be made menthly, by malling ox delivering to the owner a check
or draft for the amount dus on agcount Lf oil whiech has been run hereunder during the preceding calendar month. If at any
settlement date the amount Ba{able to any party hereunder shall be less than Twenty Five Dollars, settlement Mmay be
defarred until Tuent{ Five Dollars or more is payable. Subject to the Fourth conditlon, upon termination of this
azgreement, payment shall be made to the respective partles entitled therero regardless of the amount or amounts due,

. ALL parties hereto who ars connected with the operatlon of the above deseribed Leaas guarantes and warrant that
all oLl here er has aot basn ar will pot be produced ox otherwlse handled Ln violation of the Federal Falr Laber
Scanderds Act of 1938 as heretofore or herezfter smended and all offlcial regulations and crders lLssued thereunder, and
that sueh oLl has been and will be produced In aceordanae with the applicable laws and offleial rules and regulations.

EIGHIE: Each of the signatory gartLes who owis 2 royalt{ interest Ln the lands above described recognlzes as valid and
subalsting and In full force and effect all oil and gas laases of record hald by the herain named worklng lnterest owners.
which cover or purpott to cover his (her) interest in sald lands as well as the above ment lonad pooled unlt {(if this
division order covaers & unlt) and the same are hereby adopted, ratlfied and confirmed,

EINTH: This Division Qrder shall become valld and binding on each and every ownar abave named 13 soon as slghed,
:e%ardless of whether or not any of the other named owners shall have aso signed, and shall be bindlng saparately and not
olntly upon the signatory parties Thelr assiins and successors in ioterasc, and shall inaure to the banefiz of Phlilips,

ts aasigns and successorsy. Authority of Phlllips to purchase or sall otl fiereundar is on a day-to-day basis only and
without prejudice to the rights of Phikllps under other agreements, 1f any, this divisien ordex Ls terminable at will $y

elther party. ,
Dolih~ /13- T2
SIGNATURE OF WITNESS SIGNATURE OF OWNER(S) TAXPAYER NUMBER

7
w//;/f /(7 . X Y it Tolix 8. Lo 3T 3355

it S ] Epn (Nl (& Trwer _ 35 4032378

* Types of Interest: R=Royalty, O=Overriding Royalty, W=Working, pP=Production Payment
% In accordance with federal law, 20% tax will be withheld if you do not provide your
soclal security or taxpayers identification number, and any tax withheld by Phillips
will not be refunded by Phillips.
ECA193
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PHILLIPS 66 COMPANY

PHILLIPS

66,

INSTRUCTIONS TO ALL INTEREST OWNERS
READ CAREFULLY BEFORE SIGNING THE INSTRUMENT(S)

We are preparing to account for production from the tease(s) described in the attached Division/Transfer Order(s). Further
correspondence wilt be eliminated and payment expedited if you will follow the instructions outiined below:

The attached instrument(s) should not be altered in any way unless accompanied by documentary evidence to support the change.

if your name and interest are correctly shown:

CORPORATIONS:

PARTNERSHIP:

SIGNATURE BY
SECOND PARTY:

TAXPAYER
IDENTIFICATION
NUMBER OR SGCIAL
SECURITY NUMBER:

MAILING ADDRESS:

LEASE NUMBER:

CHANGE OF
ADDRESS:

. H Iy H H ~
Stgn name 2g shown on the ingtrument. Have vour signature witnessad by atleast one porsen net related o

the party signing.

It signing for a corporation, signature must be attested, corporate seal affixed, and title of signatory par-
ty shown. If not previously furnished, a certified copy of executing officer's authority must be
submitted.

if signed for a partnership, all partners must sign unless signed by an authorized partner who has furnished
a certified copy of his authority.

if the instrument is signed by agent, altorney-in-fact, guardian, estate representative, trustee or any party
ather than the named interest owner, we must have evidence of the rights vested in the signatory party.

Ingert your number in the space provided. Failure to furnish number will result in 20% withholding tax in
accordance with federal law, and any tax witheld will not be refundable by Phillips.

Check ybur mailing address carefully. if it is not correct then make the necessary changes. lf it is not
shown insert the correct address below your name. Please print or type the address, do not abbreviate.

In the right, top portion of the instrument you will find the number assigned to this lease. This number will
ai30 appear on ine staterent attached to your check and shouid always be used when corresponding with
this company.

You should notify us prompily of any change in your mailing address. This notice must be over your own
signature, or the signature of your appointed agent. Always include your Owner Number (which appsars on
your check from this company) and your old address, then give your new address with zip code,

Return the executed instrument(s) without delay to the address below. Keep the indicated copy for your records.

PHILLIPS 66 COMPANY
DIVISION ORDERS
ATTN: F. W. BROWN

BOX 5400
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 74005

(818) 661- 5854

FORM 128158 587

ECA194
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FLINS

phibro Energy, Inc. NERR
Gathering Dlvision- wagy v
$500 Allianz Financial Centre ANy

2323 Bryan
Lock Box #185
Dallas, Taxas 75201

214 953 0330
214 953 1199/Fax

February 20, 1992

Re: 48083 - Connell
Upton County, Texas

Dear Interest Gwner:
Effective March 1, 1992, Phibro Energy, Inc., formerly JM Petroleum Corporation,
will begin purchasing oil from the captioned lease again. Exxon has been
purchasing this oil for the past year or so.
We have prepared the enclosed Division Order based on the information we had when
Pxxon replaced JM Petroleum Corporation as oil purchaser. If your address or
interest has changed, please advise us as scon as possible.
Although we have reinstated the division order you formerly signed, we would
appreciate your verifying your interest by signing the enclosed division order and
returning it to us.
Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Yours truly,

PHIERO ENERGY, INC.

. :

Marilyn O/Brien

MO smed

Enclosure

ECA195

AA 1212



DIVISION ORDER

Lease No. 48083000
To PH‘BRO ENERGY, INC. DATE FEBRUARY 19 , 1992
2500 Alllanz Financlal Centre
2323 Bryan, LB 185
Dallas, Texas 75201
PARKER &

Each of the undersigned severally and not jointly certifies it is the legal ownes of the inlerest set out below of all the oil produced (ram the

PARSLEY - CONNELL farm or lease, localed in UPTON County/Patish, Stale of TEXAS

more particulatly described as follows:

All of Seciton 36, Block 39, T-5-8, T&P RR Co. Survey, Upton County, Texas,
containing 672 acres, more or less, Limited as to all depths down to but not
below the base of the Spraberry formation.

E{[ccgivc? a.m. MARCH 01, 19292 ' . and until further writicn notice, subject to the condilions, coveaants
aad dircetions hereof, Phibro Energy, Inc. (Payor), its successors and assigns, are authorized to receive and purchase such oil and to give credit to the following:

OWNER LEASE CREDITTO
NO. NO. INTEREST NAME AND ADDRESS
48083000 ) FOR DIVISION OF INTEREST SEE REVERSE

SIDE HEREQF.

THIS AGREEMENT DOES NOT AMEND ANY LEASE OR OPERATING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE INTEREST QWNERS AND THE LESSEEOR
OPERATOR OR ANY OTHER CONTRACTS FOR THE PURCIIASE OF OIL.

The following provisions apply to each inicrest owner (Owner) who execules this agreement:

TERMS OF SALE: The undersigned will be paid in accordance with the division of inlerests set out above. The payor shall pay all parlies al the price agreed
to by the operator for oil 1o be sold pursuant to this division order. Purchaser shall compute quanlily and make corrections fur gravity and lemperature and make
deduclion for impurities.

PAYMENT: From the effective date, payment is to be made monthly by payor’s check, based on this division of interest, {or oil run during the preceding calender
month from the property listed above, less taxes required by law 1o be deducted and remitled by payor as purchaser. Payments of less than $25.00 may be accrued
before disbursement untit the total amount equals $25.00 or more, or untit December 31 of exch year, whichever occurs first. Payce agrecs (o refund to payor
any amounts attributable to an interest or part of an interest that payee does not own.

INDEMNITY: Owncragrees loindemnily and hold payor larmless from ail liabitity resulling from payments made Lo the owner in accordance with such division
of interest, including but not limited 1o attorney fees or judgments in connection with any suit that aflccts owner’s Interest to which payor is made a parly.
DISPUTE: WITHHOLDING OF FUNDS: Hf a suitis filed that affects the interest of owner, wrillen nolice shafl be given to payor by the awner together with
acopy of the complaint or pelition filed. I the cvent of aclaim ot dispute hataffects litle lo the division of interest crediled herein, payor is authorized to withhold
payments accruing o such inlerest, without interest unless otherwise required by appticable statute, uniil the claim or dispute is scitled.

TERMINATION: Termination of the agreement is effective on the first day of the month that begins afier the 30th day after the date wrilten notice of terminalion
is reccived by cither party.

NOTICES: Owner agrees ta notify payor in writing of any change in the division of interest, including changes of inlerest conlingent on payment of money or
cxpiration of time. No chaage of interest is binding oa payeruntil a copy of the recorded instrument of change or documents satis{actorily evitencing such change
arc furnished to payor, Any change ol interest shall be mude elfective on the first day of the month (oliowing receipt of such nolice by payor. Any correspondence
regarding this agreement shall be furnished to the addresses listed unless othenwise advised by cither parly.

IMPPORTANT: NO PAYMENT WILL BE MADE UNTIL PHIBRO ENERGY, INC. HAS YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY / TAX LD. NUMBER.

WITRESSES: MARJORIE T CONRHATHRECR ¥ NE RTMAN=CO-TS T O NUMBER

. RS TAX AC
YR \%‘“\5&& - X 9.
e:.).i-'ﬁ{jf hantl \

66628 K —E

"AK’1213



EYHIBIT - A
02/19/92 PAGE 1
LEASE NUMBER
LEASE NAME
LOCATION

480BA0C0OO

CONMELL

UPTON TX
OWHER MO,

IMTEREEY CREDIT 7O

At

it 4t

H*#

£ 4

4

# 4

11433

11433

11437

11441

11451

11548

11997

12003

12004

121795

12960

15045

24815

30700

370381

44672

44901

Q.

O

G,

Q0043740

. 00021270

. QG074%00

L G021970

. QO27 3440

, 001171790

. 00043740

. 00610985

. 0o010983

. QOER6310

. 00138238

00121830

00195310

. 0C0Z1970

. 26487325

. 00153680

. D0138237

. Q01382337

e 4]

i

R

S ——

f0Y D GOLETON JR ET AL 4441
TEAM DANK-TRUSTEE

P 0 BOX 97084

FORT WORTH TX

GMOF OIL ACCOUNT #3123
TEAM BAMK-TRUSTEE

P 0 BOX 99004

FNRT WORTH TX

JOHM W HERBERT €8T #58&-TEAM EW,

7641329

765199

JOHH W HERBERT % JOAMNE € RILBY-TSTEES

DRAWER 92084
FORT WORTH T4

AlA GARGMER DSEURM
P O BOX 4264
BRYAN X

ROBERT MOSEACHER
P O BOX 201478
HOUSTON TX

EMiL HMOSBACHER, JH.
170 MASON ST
CREENWICH cT

J. H., HERU
P D BOX 130
MIDLAWD TX

JOHM J REDFERN JR ESTATE
JOHN J REDFERN III-EXECUTOR
P O BOY S0U%&

MIDLAND TX

ROSALIND REDFERM
£ 0 BOX 2127
MIDLAND TY

MORTH CENMTRAL 01L CORP
P 0O BOX 200201
HOUETON T

PARWER % PARSLEY CDEVELOPMENT CO
P O BOX 3178
MIDLAND TX

HOUSTOM OIL & MINERALS CORP
P O ROX 200771
HOUSTOM TX

E¥XON CDRPORATIUN
P 0 BOY 1347
HOUSTON : TX

W £ KREPH TRUST H1124

MCMB TX NaTL BANA-TRUSYEE

P 0 BOX 841949

DALLAS TX

GEME C REDFERN

JOHM J REDFERM JRELTTY -~ IN~FACT
£ O BOX 50430

mMIDLAND T

HOWARD W FARKER
P O BOX 2014320
AUSTIN TX

JOHN PERWING I1I-TRUSTEE
7711 LOULIS PASTEUR H208
SAN ANTONIO TY

A FRAMK RUBICAT™T T

2605 HODGES
1M TLAND TX

SCOTT D SHEFFICLD
P O DOX B98I
MIDLAND TX

76199

77801

77214~1678

04820

79702

79710

72702

77216-0201

79702-3178

75284-1549

79710

79705-7411

72708

ECA197
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LEASE MUMBER

LEASE NAME

LOCATION
OWIMER RO

44902

.

43370

s1e1t

~4291

45G78

&5373

65405

G&0EL

6606&2

66072

&5103

G4 L35

&L &E2E

L8438

485233

68525

EXHIBIT — A
GR/19/02

48083000
CONNELL
UPTON TX

IMTEREST CREDIT T0O

PAGE

a

0.

O

01326237

. 00195310

. 27378511

. Q043740

L QCO13020

LOGGTTASE

. Q0074654

. 001328237

L 00146483

. 00144484

. 00144483

, 00069750

. 001953310

L 01367186

. 02050780

. 000FTELD

. 00027450

, 013467187

R

ROBERT J CASTOR

P O BOX 50007

M1 DLAND TX 79710
EARL R BRUND JR

8211 WHITHAN

MIDLAND TX 79709
PARGLEY OIL PROPERTIES INC
P 0 BOX L771

MIDLAND TX 79702
LORETTA MCDERMOTT MARSH
%HARRELL % MCCART

201 W INDIANA HA

11 DLAMND TX 727G
EMIL MOSBACHER, 11T

1580 CANADA LM

WOODE1DE cA R406%
MARYLANE MYERE AMDERZON
7418 SOUTHWESTERM BLVD
DALLAS TX

MICHAEL GLENM ANDERSOM

P O BOX 43284

DALLAS T4 73208-0584
JAMES D, MORING

251¢ CULPEPER

HIDLAND TX 79705-6318
PHILLIP HILLHOUSE TRUST #504-03
NATIONGBANK TX-TRUSTLE

P 0O BOX B4154°

DaLLAS TX 7520841549
GEORGE 3 HILLHOUSE TRUST #304-04
NATIONBBANK TX-TRUSTEE

P O DOX 8413549

DALLAS TX 73284~154%
JAMES HILLHOUSE TRUST #304-02
NaTIONSBANK TX~-TRUSTEER

P O HOX B413549

DALLAS “TX 75284~13549
GERTRUDE 0. F.
2104 WOODLAWN
MITLAMD TX

TYSOM
79709

MIRIAM L. BROUDY
9 CLOVERLY CIRCLE
EAST NORWALK cCT Q6B55~3358
CAROLYN C. CHANEY

&24 AMARILLO -

Al ILENE TX T9405-1014
MARJORIE T COMNELL % EC HARTMAN=CO-TSTE

P O BOX 710

LaS VEGAS R 89125-0710
& R OCONNELLY

825 EICHTH aAVE

NEW YORK NY 100Q19-7413
RUTH V. FERCUESON DREWERY
3308 EUCLID AVE

DallLag TX 752053214
VALPEY FaMILY TRUST
GLADYS M VALPEY-TRUETEE
1724 PLAZA DE SAM JOAGUIN
MODEESTO .-

CONSTANMCE C.
1721 HROOKS
ARLINGTON TX

FAUBER

76012

ECA198

CA F5350-3549 e
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[LEASE NUMBER :

LEASE NaAME
LOCATION

BUWNER NQ.

68324

68555

6853546

4BET7S

4B 587

48408

L8637

L8642

484650

LB LEO

% LB &9

&£84L71

68714

6013

£9014

49019

L7014

&2073

480B3000
CONNELL
UP TON

INTEREST

0. 00097440

Q. 00078870

0. 08703780

0, 01347187

0. 00073240

0. 03607887

0. 00048820

Q. 00048820

0. 0D2563470

0. D00&RT7S0

0. 00097455

Q. Q07&737%9

0. 00024180

0. 00N14450

Q. 00034180

0. 00014450

0. 02030780

0. 0007655

0

N

EXHIBIT ~ A

oRr17/92 PAGE 3

TX
CREDIT 7O

HUGH W FERGUSON JR EBTATE
RUTH F DREWERY~TRUSTEE
2508 EUCLID AVE

DALLAS TX To205
JOSEPHINE H. GRAF

C/0 TEAM BANK TRUSTEE
DRAWER NO 27084

FORT WORTH _ TX 761959~0084
FLAYIA R. HACKETT

19 EAST 72NMD STREET

MNEW YORW MY 10021
SOLOMON J. KARAM
CONSOLIDATED PRODUCE

1220 BANDERA ROAD

HaN AaNTONIO TX 7BRO0O-4030
CORINMNNE C. LAW

&104 PARKTREE PLL NE
ALBUQUERGUE [l B7111
MISSIONARY SOCIETY OF OBLATE FATHERS TX
T71t HMADOMNA DR

SaN ANTONIO TX 78216-6620
EDWARD S PIMNEY MARITAL TRUET

PO BOX 234010

LOUISVILLE KY 40233

STEPHEN F. PRESLAR

AB47 VISTA DEL MONTE

EL PASD TX 79960
MARION WHEELER RUSSELL-TRUSTEE
412 & ALBERTA ST

AECOS TX FRITI-2T7LS
M E SINGLETOM JR ESTATE

GEDRGE SINGLETOM % JEANETTE CLOYD-EXEC

% CLTIZENS NATL BH®
WAXAHACHIE TS 75165
J CLEQ THOMPSON f. JAMES CLED
THOMPSAN JR  ROYALTY ACCOUMT
4500 NCNR CENTER TOWER 11
DALLAS TY 75201-3993
WM WOLF FAMILY TRUST 4815151429
AMER LTRUGT TEXAS NA-TRUSTEE

P O BOX 951414

DALLAS TX 75395-1416
MONTAGUE H., HACKETT JR

550 PARW AVE

NEW YORK MY 10021
ANN MORRISEEY

208 YOAKUM PKWY #2854
ALEXANDRIA VA 22304
GREGORY E MORRISSEY

22301 BYTOM CT

FOREST HILL 1D 21050
PATRICIA MORRIGSEY

205 YOAKUM PARKWAY 826
ALEXANDRIA VA 22304
RACHEL MORRISSEY MOYER

P O BOX 249

SHAWNEE ON DELA Ph 18354-0249
E C HOPKINS TRUST _
FRANCES 1 MILLER~TRUSTEE
2621 CROMWELL

PLANO TX 75075
ANNA R WOLF TRUST #4H15151410
AMERITRUST TEXAS M A~TRUSTEE
PO BOX 951416

DALLAS T

AA 1216



EXHIEIT - A

02/19/92 PAGE 4
LEABE NUMBER : 48083000
LEABE MNAME 1 CONNELL
LOCATION : URTON TX
QWHER MO, INTEREST CREDIT 70
71133 0. 000974652 R MELINDA AMDERSON CATES
4532 LORRAINE
DALLAS X 73205
#% 75782 0, 00936250 W PARKER & PARSLEY PETR CO A/C
JOE MAC PARBLEY
P O BOX 880243 :
BALLAS TX 75488-0245
#a 77712 ¢, 004607680 W PRP PETROLEUM A/C MONTAGUE H HACKETT JR
P O DOX BB0243
DaLLAS TX 758880245
¥ 77713 0. 039564730 W pL.e PETROLEUM A/C FLAVIA HACKETT
' ; P 0O BOX 880245
DALLAS TX 753868-0245
4 79278 0, 00734250 W HOWARD W PARKER “PARWER % PARSLEY
P 0 BOX 3178
MIDLAND TX 79702-3178
72369 0. 00013020 R JOHM DAVID MOSBACHER
1580 CAMADA LANE
WOODSIDE CA 24062
79370 0, 00015020 R R BRUCE MOSBACHER
1580 CANADA LANE
WOODSIDE CA 40462
it 79374 0,00019330 R BENNETT E SHULLYANM
P O BOX 2014678
HOUSTON TX 77216
#a 7370 0. 00019530 R CLIMNTON T SMULLYAM, R
P 0O BOX 201478
HOUSTON TX 77214
1. 0GO00Q00
;

ECA200
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PLINY

Phibro Energy, Inc. , AERR
Gathering Dlvision L 117 J I m' nergy
. 9500 Aliianz Financial Centra h\l/d

2323 Bryan ‘ :

Lock Box #185

© Dallas, Texas 75201

214 953 0330
214 953 1193/Fax

April 21, 1992

Re: 80421 - North Pexbrook Spraberry
Unit Tract 27

Upteon County, Texas

Dear Irnterest Owner:
Phibro Energy, Inc. has been designated as the purchaser of oil sold from the
North Pembrook Spraberry Unit effective April 1, 1992. There are numexrous tracts
in this unit and we will be paying on a tract basis. In other words a separate
lease number will be assigned to each tract which means a separate division oxder
will be issued on each tract. Fnclosed is our division order covering Tract 27.
If your interest is shown correctly, please execute before two witnesses
| -%(COIporations mst attest), enter your tax identification number or social
e S%curity mmber in the space provided and return one Copy to us.

Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Very truly yours,

PHIERO ENERGY, INC.

Sue Clark
Division Order Analyst

SCillg

Enclosures

ECA201

AA 1218



DIVISION ORDER

Lease No. 50421000

To  PHIBRO ENERGY USA,INC. DATE
2500 Alllan? Flnancial Centre e APRIL 21, 1992
2323 Bryan, LB 185 '
Dallas, Texas 75201

Ench of the undersigned sevesaily and not jolntly cortifies it is the legal owner 6 the iriterest set out below of all the oil produced from the PARKER &
pARS LEY - N PEMB@OK SPRfam or ]case., located in UPTON Coumnyarish, State of . TEXAS

more particularly described as follows:

NORTH PEMBROOK SPRABERRY UNIT - TRACT 27
Tract Name: Hopkins.

SE/4 Section 42, Block 38, T-5-8, T&P RRC Survey, Upton County, Texas

Effective 7 a.m. APERTT. Q1 1862 and until further written notice, subject to the conditions, covenants
and directions hereof, Phibro Energy USA, Inc. (Payor), its successors and assigns,are authorizedto receive and purchase suchoil and to give creditto the following:
OWNER LEASE . CREDITTO
NO. NO. INTEREST NAME AND ADDRESS
50421000 FOR DIVISION OF INTEREST SEE REVERSE

SIDE HERLOF.

THIS AGREEMENTDOES NOT AMEND ANY LEASE OR OPERATING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE INTEREST OWNERS AND THE LESSEE OR
OPERATOR OR ANY OTHER CONTRACTS FOR THE PURCHASE OF OIL. :

The following provisions apply to each interest awner (Owner) who executes this agreement:

TERMS OF SALE: The undersigned will be paid in accordance with the division of iméxcsts set out above. The payor stiall pay ail parties at the price agreed
0 by the operator for oil to be sold pursuant to this division order. Putchaser shall compute quanitity and make corrections for gravity and temperature and make
deduction for impurities,

PAYMENT: From the effective date, payment is to be made monthly by payor’s check, based on this division of interest, for oil run during the preceding calender
month from the property listed above, less taxes required by law to be deducted and remitted by payor as purchaser. Payments of fess than $25.00 may be acerued
before disbursement until the total amount equals $25.00 or more, ot until December 31 of each year, whichever occurs first, Payee agrees to refund to payor
any amounts attributable to an interest or part of an interest that payee does not own.. '

INDEMNITY: Owner agrees to indemnify and hold payor harmless from all liability resulting from payments made to the owner in accordance with such division
of interest, including but not limited to attorney fees or judgments in connection with-any suit thal affects owner’s inlerest 1o which payor is made a party.
DISPUTE: WITHHOLDING OF FUNDS: If a suit is filed that affects the interest of owner, wrilten notice shall be given to payor by the owner together with
a copy of the complaint or petition filed. In the eventofa claim or dispute that affects title to the division of interest credited herein, payor is authorized to withhotd
payments accruing to such interest, without interest unless otherwise required by spplicable statute, until the claim or dispute is settled.

TERMINATION: Termination of the agreement is effective on the first day of the month that begins after the 30th day after the date writicn notice of termination
is teceived by either party. .

NOTICES: Owner agrees to notify payor in writing of any change in the division of interest, including changes of interest contingent on payment of money or
expiration of time. Nochange ofinterestis binding on payor until a copy of the recorded instrument of change or documents satisfactorily evidencing such change
are furnished to payor. Any change of interest shall be made effective on the first day of the month following receipt of such notice by payor. Any correspondence
regarding this agreement shai] be furnished to the addresses listed unless otherwise advised by either party.

IMPORTANT: NO PAYMENT WILL BE MADE UNTIL PHIBRO ENERGY USA, INC. HAS YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY / TAX 1.D. NUMBER.

WITNESSES: SIGNATURE OF OWNER: OWNER'S SOCIAL SECURITY OR
- ) / ' ' IRS TAX ACCOUNT NUMBER

)O;ZAA' /)({%!M ‘ AL .1 ai ot ATV g.:.e' P S S(/q— é@j 733%

{ 1 * Nt .

UBSCREED AND STVQRBQATQ BEFORE_ME THIS !\Y OT TO BE RET LJ F?‘ I\J ED tS) %&‘)Qg? 73 5&/

. , - = PP A £ ] / - 4 -

el eIt I (i s it G Szt AALaATL LD o

- s L CUAHR [ ‘ L] ’A [/ A Cb " ,;ﬁ.‘;‘t‘&ﬁ.‘- ) nig Lh’

IR

LRI SASTATE OF NEVADA -\ o

v-;{g*‘ﬁwﬁﬂ /e gcoanty of Clark— oAU L
‘ i ¢ SUE LANCUE

- - K4z Annaintmont Expires Aprit 24, 1995
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EXHIBIT - A

04/20/92 - L pAGE |
| EAGE MUMBER : 50421000 e - |
"EASE NAME ¢ N PEMBROOK SPRABERRY UNIT TR 27
LOCATION . UPTON COTX
AWNER NO. INTEREST CREDIT TO
11435 0. Q00156340 R oMeF OIL ACCQUNT gﬁlﬁg

TEAM BANK-TRUSTEE
P O RBOX 29084
FORT WORTH X 761979

33 11439 0. 00057330 R JOHN W HERBERT EST #586-TEAM BK,
JOHN W HERBERT % JOANNE S BILBY-TSTEES
DRAWER 99084

FORT WORTH TX 76199
11441 0. 00014340 R ANA GARDNER COSBORN
P O BOX 42464
BRYAN | X 77801
11548 0. 00471400 R EMIL MDSBACHER. JR.
{70 MASON 8T
GREENWICH cT 06830
{1999 0. 00047470 R J. H. HERD
. P .0 BOX 130
MIDLAND TYX 79702
% 12003 0. 00011840 R JOHN J REDFERN JR ESTATE

JOHN o REDFERN III-EXECUTOR
P O BOX 508%6
MIDLAND TX 79710

12004 0. 00011850 R ROSAL IND REDFERN
P 0O .ROX 2127
MIDLAND TX 727Q2

12175 0. 00733400 R NORTH CENTRAL QIL CORP
P 0 BOX 200201
HOUSTON TX 77216-020:

13980 0. 30172900 W PARKER % PARSLEY DEVELOPMENT CO
P O BOX 3178 |
MIDLAND TX 79702-317!

ax 15566 0. Q7150340 R EXXON CORPORATION
‘P O BOX 1547
HOUSTON TX 77252~154

24815 0. 000981460 R W E KREPS TRUST #1124
NMCONE TX NATL BANK~TRUSTEE
P 0O BOX B41549
DALLAS ' . TX 75284~194

209C0 0. 000R3480 R GENME C REDFERN
: JOHN J REDFERN JR=ATTY-IN-FACT
P 0O BOX 50430
MIDLAND X 79710

23214 0.-00073&420 'R JOSERPHINE - H- CROMAT FAMILY TR #4537
' TEAM BANK % JDANNE H BILBY. CO-TRUSTEES
‘P 0 DRAWER 99084
FT WORTH TX 76199008

34810 0. 00047080 R DON..STEPHEN BURKET
1301 WOODLAND HILLS
“TYLER 7 : TX 75701

34812 0. Q0043080 R JOMN ™M BURKET JR
: 1705 TIMBERCREEK
“TYLER TX 75703

34830 0. 00032680 R SALLY M GOLDSTON TRUST
; TEAM BANK, SUCC TTEE
P O BOX 2603 : ECAZ203
: TYX

FORT WORTH 76113

AA 1220



_EASE NUMBER

_EASE NAME
JOCATION

JWNER . NO.
34834
24839

34840

34841

34844

348435

37381

45990

L1441

Lo

L& 1G5

56 L35

L& bEd

50421000
N-PEMBROOK SPRABERRY UNIT TR 27
;- URTON -

INTEREST"

Qo 02645220

G

377146130

. 02542820

. 00007140
. 00032720

. 02594050

. 00162030

. 001946420

. 00196430

. 07243230

. 00047470

. 00098230

. Q0098220

. 00098230

, 00324150

. 00176430
. 00216720

. 01373070

eyl

EXHIBIT - A
04/20/92

™
CREDIT 70O.

ROBERT G- HalL.
23114 LAMP POST LN
oKLaHOMA CITY

THELMA WHITSON HENGON
1204 SHIRLEY LN
MIDLAND.

THE. LAAHNZ CORP
P~ 0JBOX - 357922
HOQUSTON

HENRY RUSSELL ESTATE"
MARION RUSSELL.,
41275 ALBERTA -
PECOS.

RALPH O.SHEPLEY
STAR RT A- BOX 77C
DRIPPING SPRINGS

PAGE 2.

oK

73120

TX 79701

TX 77235-5992

INDP EXECUTRIX

TX 79772

TX. 7862

TEXSLYVANIA MINERALS CORP

ADDR  UNKNOWN

JOHN PERKINS III-TRUGTEE

7711 LOUIS RASTEUR #208

AN ANTONIOQ

EARL R BRUNO JR
5211 WHITMAN
MEIDLAND.

CASS RESOURCES ING
300 CRESCENT CRT #1800
DALLAS.

LORETTA MCDERMOTT MARSH

%HARRELL % LUPARDUSG
Q1 W-INDIANA #A
MIDLAND '

TX 78229
TX

79709

TX 75201

TX 79701

PHILLIP MILLHOUSE TRUET #504-03

NATIONSBANK TX-TRUSTEER
P Q.BOX 841549
DALLAG

TX 752841549

GEORGE o HILLHOUSE TRUST #504-04

NATIOMNSBANK TX-TRUSTEE
P 0 BDX B4134%9
DALLAS

TX 75284~1549

JAMES HILLHOUSE TRUST #504-02

NATIONSBANK TX-TRUSTEE
P O BOX A41549
DaLLAS

M E SINCLETON JR EEBTATE
G M SINGLETON & J & CLOYD,

P Q Bax 717
WAXAHACHIE

MIRIAM L. BROUDY
% CLOVERLY CIRCLE
EAST NORWALK

CAROLYN C. CGHANEY
&24 AMARILLO
ABILENE

MARJORIE T CONNELL 2% EC
P Q BOX 710
l.ag VEGAS

TX 752841549

TNDFP CO-EXC

CTX 761450717

TR 79405-1014

HAR TREODASTE

89125-0710
AA 1221
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LEAGE NUMBER

LEASE NAME
LOCATION

OWNER NO. -

a3

il

&8 568

&B O3

LB 325

&B G246

&8587

LB &AL

L8671

&2013

&2014

&F01L3

62016

6T G770

0. 002944640

. 00098210

. 009146710

. 00294440

. 009146720
. 00007160
. 00032730
. 00014320
, 00045480
. 00034380
. 00014730
. 00034370
. QO01473Q
. 01378070
. Q00143220

, 000465480

. 00000000

EXHIBIT - A

04/20/92 FAGE 3
50421000
N PEMBROOK SPRABERRY UNIT TR 27
.- UPTON TX
INTEREST CREDIT TO
RUTH V. FERGUSON DREWERY

1508 .EUCLID AVE

DALLAS TX 75005-321+
VALPEY FAMILY TRUST

OLADYS M VALPEY-TRUSTEE
1724 PLAZA DE SAN JDAQUIN
MODESTO CA 95350-354!
CONSTANCE C. FAUBER

1721 BRODKS

ARL.INGTON TX 76012

HUGH. W FERGUSON JR EBTATE

RUTH F. DREWERY-~TRUSTEE

3508 EUCLID AVE

DALLAS TX 79205

CORINNE C. LAW
5104 PARKTREE PL NE
ALBUGUERQUE MM 87111

STEPHEN F. PRESLAR
4847 VISTA DEL MONTE
EL PASO TX 79922

WILLIAM WOLF FAMILY TRUST
#H4B151516E7

P 0 80X 251416

DALLAS TX 75395~-141
ANN MORRISBEY

205 YOAKUM PRUWY #286: ‘
ALEXANDRIA VA 22304

GREGORY £ MORRISSEY
6913 .8 OWENS ST
LITTLETON, co 80127

PATRICIA MORRISSEY
205 YOAKUM PARKWAY 824
ALEXANDR 14 VA 22304

RACHEL. MORRISSEY MOYER

P .0 BOX 249

SHAWNEE. DN DELA PA 18356-024
ROBERT R .OR FRANCES M MILLER REV TRUST

P O NOX 847417

PLAND T 75084-741
ANNA ROSS WOLF “TRUST
#4815151410
. P- 0 BOX 951416
DALLAS TH 75395~14:
ECA205

AA 1222



o i
#2 Phibro USA
Phibro Energy USA, Inc.

0500 Allanz Financlal Centre Gathering Division
2323 Bryan Street LB 185

Dallas, TX 75201 .
(214) 953-0330 \//%MM 5 - A 7 /744

(214) 953-1132/fax

May 19, 1992

Re: 50339 - Cormell A
Upton County, Texas

Dear Interest Owner:

Effective Februaxy 1, 1992, Phibro Energy, Inc. was designated purchaser of oil
cold from the captioned lease.

We are enclosing two copies of a division order covering your interest in the
subject lease. If your interest is shown correctly, please sign in the space
provided, have your signature witnessed, enter your Social Security number OX
Federal Tax Identification number and return the signed copy to us to be placed in
line for payment. :
Thank you for your assistance in this matter.
| Very truly yours,
THIBRO ENERGY, INC.
mwﬂ/u M

Marion Wheeler
Division Order Analyst

MW:llg

nclosures

ECA206

AA 1223



DIVISION ORDER

Lease No. 50339000

e PHIBRO ENERGY USA, INC. DATE MAY 18 1962
2500 Allianz Financial Centre . : '
2323 Bryan, LB 185
Dallas, Texas 75201

PARKER &

ach of the undersigned severally and not jointly certifies it is the legal owner of the interest set out below of all the oil produced from the

pARST;F’.V - CONNEILT,. A _ farm or lease, located in UPTON : .. County/Parish, State of TEXAS
10r¢ particnlarly described as follows: o .

CONNELL A: E/2 NE/4 SECTION 36, BLOCK 39, T-5§, T&P RR CO SURVEY, BUT ONLY
FROM THE SURFACE TO THE BASE OF THE SPRABERRY FORMATION,
UPTON COUNTY, TEXAS. : -

iffective 7 a.m. EEBRUARY 01 1082 . and until further written notice, subject to the conditions, covenants
ind directions hereof, Phibro Energy USA, Inc.(Payor), its successors and assigns, are authorized o receive and purchase such oif and lo give creditto the following:
OWNER CEASE . . _CREDITTO_ .
NO. NO. INTEREST NAME AND ADDRESS
50339000 FOR DIVISION OF INTEREST SEE EXHIBIT "AM

ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF.

1IS AGREEMENT DOES NOT AMEND ANY LEASE OR OPERATING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE INTEREST OWNERS AND THE LESSEE OR
SERATOR OR ANY OTHER CONTRACTS FOR THE PURCHASE OF OIL.

1e following provisions apply to each interest owner (Owner) who executes this agreemésit:

IRMS OF SALE: The undersigned will be paid in accordance with the division of interests set out above. The payor shall pay all parties at the price agreed
by the operator for oil to be sold pursuant to this division order. Purchaser shall compute quantity and make cotrections for gravity and temperature and make
duction for impurities. : ’ _
\YMENT: From the effective date, payment is to be made monthly by payor’s check, based on this division of interest, for oil run during the preceding calender
onth from the property listed above, less taxes required by law to be deducted and remitted by payor as purchaser. Payments of less than $25.00 may be accrued
fore disbursement unsl! the total amount equals $25.00 or more, or until December 31 of cach year, whichever occurs first. Payee agrees to refund Lo payor
.y amounts attributable to an interest or part of an interest that payee does not own. _
{DEMNITY: Owneragrees toindemaify and hotd payor harmtiess from ail liability resulting from paymehts made to the owner in accordance with such division
“interest, including but not limited to attomey fees or judgments in connection with any suit that affects owner’s interest to which payor is made a party,
[SPUTE: WITHHOLDING OF FUNDS: If a suit is filed that affects the i'qie’fés_t of owner, written notice shall be given to payor by the owner together with
:opy of the complaint or petition filed. Inthe eventofa ¢laim or dispute that affects title to the division of interest credited herein, payor is authorized to withhold
'yments aceruing to such interest, without interest unless otherwise required:by appii_cab]c statute, until the claim or dispute is settled.

SRMINATION: Termination of the agreement is effective on the first day of the month that begins after the 30th day after the date writien notice of termination
received by either party.

OTICES: Owner agrees to notify payor in writing of any change in the division of interest, including changes of interest contingent on payment of money or
‘piration of time. No change of interest is binding on payor untila copy of the recorded instrument 6f change or documents satisfactorily evidencing suchchange
¢ furnished to payér’. Any change of interest shall be made effective on the first day of the month following receipt of such notice by payor. Any correspondence
garding this agreement shall be furnished to the addresses listed unless otherwise advised by either parly.

APORTANT: NO PAYMENT WILL BE MADE UNTIL PHIBRO ENERGY USA, INC, HAS YOUR SOCJAL SECURITY / TAX 1.D. NUMBER.

YITMESSES: . SiGNA’I‘Q RE QF'OWN:E-SR: OWNgrR‘iSOCég L(} 3"EF?\ULRI\]:Y OR
i IRS TAX ACCOUNT NUMBER
e % /)@/gj;m T et Foreatn E8- 637 337
7 ' FORYQUR RECORDS |
— 75— NOTTO BE RETURNED
Gl L 0 fuilpan G- Zaniter _conag

Ta cememnen b mdes men mmaldes mmm = W HAE ——— - | PR D P Y LI ] e _— Tw —barrfm 'A-Anr224



EXHIBIT — A
05/18/92 : PAGE 1

LEASE NUMBER @ 50332000
LEASE NAME CONNELL A S
LOCATION . UPTON B TX

OWNER NO. INTEREST

CREDIT. TO

*# 11433

11435

G 11439

11441
it 11451

11548

11999

it 12003

12¢04

12175

H ¥ iS2AS
A 15346

176648

0. 00043940 R

00021970

. 000746200

. 00021970
. 00273440
. 00117190
. 00043940

. C0010%80

. 00010980
. 00820310
. 15486600
. 00022950
. 06093750

. 00098870

. 00390420

. 00195310

ROY D GOLETON JR ET AL #441
TEAM BANK-TRUSTEE

P. O BOX 95084

FORT WORTH TX

GMGF OIL ACCOUNT #3133
TEAM BANK-TRUSTEE

P .0 BOX 97084

FORT WORTH TX

JOHN W HERBERT EST #586~TEAM BK,

76179

76199

JOHN W HERBERT % JOANME & BILBY-TSTEES

' DRAWER 99084
FORT WORTH TX

ANA CARDNER OSBORM
P O BOX 4286
BRYAN ‘ : TY

ROBERT MOSBACHER
P 0O BOX 201678
HOUSTON - - TX

EMIL MOSBACHER: JR.
170 MASON 8T
GREEMWICH CT

J. H. -HERD

F O BOX 130
MIDLAND TX

JOHN J REDFERN JR EBTATE
JOHN J REDFERN III-EXECUTOR
P 0O BOX 50896

MIDLAND TX

ROSALIND REDFERN
P 0O BOX 2127

MIDLAND CoTx

' NORTH CENTRAL 0OIL CORP

P O BOX 200201
HOUSTON TX

PARKER % PARSLEY DEVELOPMENT
P 0. BOX 3178
MIDLAND TX

HOUSTON OIL % MINERALE CORP
P O BOX 200771
HOUSTON COTX

EXXOM CORPORATION
P 0.BOX 1547 ,
HOUSTON TX

SEAGULL MIDCON INC

TEXAS COMMERCE BANK

P 0 BOX 200293

HOUSTON TX

AZIZI KARAM
1220 BAMNDERA
SAN ANTONIO X

W E KREPS TRUST #1124

NCNBE TX NATL BANK-TRUSTEE
P 0O BOX B415G4T
DALLAS

E€A208

76199
77801
77216-18
04830

79702

79710
79702
7721602
79702-3:
77216

77252~1

772160

78228

752841

AA 1225



_EAGE NUMBER

~EASE NAME
_OCATION

JWNER NO.
06287
04288

36900

33214

3&332
37381
24892
33 44901

44902

L4271

LECSL

LALOTR

50337000
CONNELL A
UPTON

INTEREST

0. 322464420

0. 01757350

0. 00021970

0. 00098870

0. 30133930

0. 00153680

0. 00129940

0. 001292&0

0. 00127240

0. 00195210

Q. 00043940

0. 00013020

Q. 00O TEL0

0. 0007450

0. 00129940

0. 04392450

0. Q00LR740

N

EXHIBIT - A
05718792

TX
CREDIT TQ.

PARKER % PARSLEY 91-A LP % GF
P QO BOX 3178
MIDLAND TX

PP EMPLOYEES 91-4
P O BOX 3178
MIDLAND TX

cENE C REDFERN
P 0 BOX S0430 -
MIDLAND TX

JOSERPHINE H CHOMAT FAMILY TR #6537

PAGE 2

79702-3178

79702-3178

79710

 TEAM BANK & JOANNE H BILEY, CO-TRUSTEES

P O DRAWER 99084 _
FT WORTH T

JOE MAC PARSLEY
P O BOX 1771
MIDLAND : T

JOHN PERKINS III-TRUSTEE
7711 LOUIS PASTEUR #208
SAN ANTONIO TX

A FRANK KUBICA
2605 HODGES
‘MIDLAND . TX

SCOTT D SHEFFIELD
P O BDX 938%
MIDLAND TX

ROBERT J CASTOR
P .0 BOX 30007
MIDLAND TX

E£ARL R ERUNDO JR
5211 WHITMAN .
MIDLAND : TX

LORETTA MCDERMOTT MARSH
“HARRELL % LUPARDUS

901 W INDIANA #A

MYDLAND TX

EMIL MOSBACHER: II1
1580 CANADA LN
WOODSIRE Céa

MARYLANE MYERS ANDERSON
7418 SOUTHWESTERN ELVD
DALLAS: ' X'

MICHAEL GLENN ANDERSON.
P O BOX 4584
DALLAS TX

| JAMES D. MORING
2510 CULPEPER
11 DLAND TX

CPHILLIP HILLHOUSE TRUST #304-03
NATIONSBANK TX~TRUSTEE

P 0 BOX 841547

DALLAS TX
GERTRUDE 0. F. TYSON
2104 WOODLAWN
MIDLAND

TECA209

7&1?9-0084

72702

79705-7411
72708
79710

7705

79701

K062

- 75225-792

75208-058"

75284-104

77005

AA 1226



#3

&5

YSE NUMBER

ASE NAME
SATION

NER MO

66103

66135

LHE2E

&B 523

48587
&8 606
L&B&AL
&B8&30

68 &EQ

LB 6ED

LB &ERL

59013
L7 QL4

63015

L LRQLE

SQ337000
CONNELL A
UPTON

INTEREST
0. 00195310
01367190 R

02050780

. 0002?7450

. 01367190

Q0193320

. 01367190
.90073240
. 00048820
., 00048820

. QOR&3670

. D00&2760

. 00027450

. 00024180
. 00014650
. 00034180

. D00144650

EXHIBIT ~ A

05/18/92 PAGE 3.

TX

CREDIT TQ

MIRIAM L. BROUDY
¢ CLOVERLY ‘CIRCLE

EAST MNORWALMK CT 06855-5358
CARDLYN C. CHANEY

&24 AMARILLO

AB ILENE - TX 79605-1014

MARJDRIE T CONNELL % EC HARTMAN=CO-TSTE
P O BOX 710

LLAS VEGAS NV 89125-0710
Val-PEY FAMILY TRUST

GLADYS M VALPEY-TRUSTEE
1704 PLAZA DE SAN JOAGUIN
MODESTD R Ch 25350~-354%
CONSTAMCE C. FAUBER

1721 BROOKS

ARLINGTON TX 76012

HUGH ‘W FERGUSON JR ESTATE

RUTH F DREWERY~TRUSTEE

3508 EUCLID AVE

DALLAS TX 78209

CORINNE . LAW
£104 PARKTREE PL NE
AL BUQUERGUE N 87111

MISSIONARY GOCIETY OF OBLATE FATHERS TX
7711 MADONNA DR

SAN ANTONIO TX 7821 6-6620
WILLIAM C. PORTER

3205 HAYNES |
MIDLAND -~ TX 79705-4214
MARION WHEELER RUSSELL-TRUSTEE
412 S ALBERTA ST

PECOS | TX 79772-2715
M E SINGLETDN JR ESTATE

GEORGE SINGLETON % JEANETTE CLOYD-EXEC

P 0 BOX 717

WAXAHACHIE TX 75145

) CLEG THOMPSDN & JAMES CLED
THDMFSDN JR RDYALTY ACCOUNT
32% N 8T ‘PAUL #4‘00

DALLAS TX 792Q1-3993
NILLﬁAM'NDLF FAMILY TRUST

#4815151629
P O BOX 9951416

DALLAS TX 753951416

ANN MORR ISSEY
205 YOAKUM PKWY #286&
ALEXANDRIA va 22304

GREGORY E MORRISSEY
6913 'S DWENS 8T
LITTLETON ofn 80127

PATRICIA MORRISSEY
005 YOAKUM PARKKWAY 826

ALEXANDRIA vh 557304
RACHEL MORRISSEY MOYER ECA210
P O BOX 249

4 —— - n - A oA

AN BEPp-024



ASE NUMBER -

ASE NAME
CATION

NER NO.

67073

71133

TR3I74

VIITE

30339000
CONNELL A
UPTON

INTEREST

0. 02050780

. 00097450

. 00097650
. 00013020
. 00013020
. 00019530

. 00019530

. 00000000

i

EAMLELE — A
05/18/792

TX

CREDIT TQ

PAGE 4

ROBERT R OR FRANCES M MILLER REV TRUST
P D BOX B67417

PLANO

ANNA ROSS WOLF TRUST

#4815151610

P 0 BOX
DALLAS

2514164

MEL INDA ANDERSON CATES

4532 LOR
DALLAS

JOHN DAVID MOSBACHER

44 GRAHA
GREENWIC

R BRUCE
1580 CAN
WDODSIDE

BENNETT
P O BOX

HOUSTON

CLINTON
P O BOX
HOUSTON

RAINE

MPTON LANE
H

MOSBACHER
ADA LANE

E SMULLYAN
201678

I SMULLYAN,
2014678

R

TX

TX

TX

cT

TX

TX

ECA211

750867417

75595-1416
75205
06830
24042

772164

AA 1228



PIINS

< Phibro USA

2500 Alllanz Financial Cenire Galherlng Divislon
2323 Bryan Street LB 185
Dallas. TX 75201

{214) 953-0230
£214) 953-1132/1ax

July 8, 1992

RE: 50421 - North Penbrook Spraberry
Tract 27
Upton County, Texas

Dear Owners:
Phibro Energy was designated as the purchaser of oil sold from the referenced
lease effective April 1, 1992. Accordingly, division orders were issued April 21,
1992 based on information furnished us by the previous oil purchaser. We then
found out the information furnished us was incorrect.
Fnclosed is a revised division order for your execution. Please execute before
two witnesses (Corporations must attest), enter your tax identification mumber ard
return one copy to us,
Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Very ’éruly yours,

PHIERO ENERGY USA, INC.

CAREY Vs

Sue Clark
Division Order Analyst
(214} 855~1961
SC:ic

Enclosures

ECA212

AA 1229



DIVISION ORDER

Lease No. 50421000
To PHIBRO ENERGY USA, INC. : : ' pATE JULY 08, 1992
2500 Aiftanz Financial Centre
2323 Bryan, L.B 185
Dallas, Texas 75201
PARKER &

Rach of the undersigned severally and not jointly cectifies it is the legal owner of the interest set out below of all the oil produced from the

PARSLEY -~ N PEMBROOK SPR farm or lease, located in UPTON County/Parish, State of TEXAS
more particularly described as follows:

NORTH PEMBROOK SPRABERRY UNIT - TRACT 27
Tract Name: Hopkins

SE/4 Section 42, Block 38, T-5-8, T&P RRC Survey, Upton County, Texas

Effective 7 a.m. APRTY, 01, 1992 and unti} further writien notice, subject to the conditions, covenants
and directions hereof, Phibro Energy USA, Inc. (Payor), its successors and assigns, are authorizedto receive and purchase such oif and to give creditto the following!
OWNER LEASE CREDIT TO
NO. NO. INTEREST . NAME AND ADDRESS
50421000 FOR DIVISION OF INTEREST SEE REVERSE

SIDE HEREOF.

THIS AGREEMENT DOES NOT AMEND ANY LEASE OR OPERATING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE INTEREST OWNERS AND THE LESSEE OR
OPERATOR OR ANY OTHER CONTRACTS FOR THE PURCHASE OF OIL.

The following provisions apply to each interest owner (Owner) who executes this agreement:

TERMS OF SALE: The undersigned will be paid in sccordance with the dlvision of Interests set out above. The payor shall.pay all pasties al the price agreed
to by the operator for oil fo be sold pursuant to this division order. Purchaser shall compute quantity und make corrections for gravity and temperature and make
deduction for impurities,

PAYMENT: From the effective date, payment is 1o be made monthly by payor’s check, based on this division of interest, for oil run during the preceding calender
month from the property listed above, tess taxes required by law fo be deducted and remitted by payor'as purchaser, Payments of fess than $25.00 may be accrued
pefore disbursement unti! the total amount equals $25.00 or more, or until December 31 of cach year, whichever oceuss first. Payec agrees to refund to payor
any amounts altributable to an interest or part of an interest that payee does not own.

INDEMNITY: Owneragrees to indemnify and hold payor harmless from all liability resulting from payments made to the owner in accordance with such division
of interest, including but not limited to attorney fees or judgments in connection with any suit that affects owner's interest o which payor is made a party.
DISPUTE: WITHHOLDING OF FUNDS: If a suit is filed that affects the interest of owner, written notice shall be given to payor by the owner together with
acopy of the (_:urﬁplaint or petition filed. Jn the eventofaclaimor dispute that affects title to the division of interest credited herein, payor is authorized to withhold
payments accruing o such interest, without inlerest unless otherwise required-by applicablé statute, until'the claim or dispute is settled. .
TERMINATION: Termination of the agreement is effective on the first day of the month that begins afler the 30th day afler the date writien notice of termination
is received by either party. -

NOTICES: Owner agrees to notify payor in writing of any change in the division of inierest, including changes of interest contingent on payment of money or
expiration of time. No change of interest is binding on payor untila copy of the recorded instrumerit of change or documents satisfactorily evidencing such change
are furnished to payor. Any change of interest shall be made effeclive on the first day of the month following receipt of such notice by payor. Any correspandence
regarding this agreement shall be furnished to the addrcsses listed uniess otherwise advised by either party.

1 . < ¢
IMPORTANT: NO PAYMENT WILL BE MADE UNTIL PHIBRO ENERGY USA, INC, HAS YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY / TAX 1.D. NUMBER.

WITNESSES: ‘fai?{. 6. /993 - SIONATURE OF OWNER: OWNER'S SOCIAL SECURITY OR
| MARJORIE T :CONNELIL & EC HARTMAN=CQO-TSTE IRSTAX ACCOUNT NUMBER
) : .
‘:Ziﬁﬁﬁﬁ

Llaa &
Xt ¢ ccztocs

YTt G,

Yoty S - 4037 328

E{‘Af}do
CRETI

66628 R

- AA 1230
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07/02/92 — PAGE
LEASE NUMBER : 50421000 .

LEASE NAME . N PEMBROOK SPRABERRY UNIT TR 27

LOCATION - UPTON COVEIN BE ML e

OWNER NO. ~ INTEREST Lo REREDIT TN s s

#4 11433 0. 00032550 R ROY D COLSTON JR ET AL K441

TEAM BANK~TRUSTEE
P 0. BOXS 990848
FORT WORTH TX 76199

114435 0. 00016270 R GMGF OIL ACCOUNT #3153
X ' TEAM BANK~TRUSTEE
PO OROX 99084 '
FORT WORTH TX 74199

*# 11439 0. 00056960 R JOHN W HERBERT EST #984-TEAM 8K,
JOHM W HERBERT % JOANNE & BILBY-TSTEES
DRAWER Q2084 . -
FORT  WORTH TX ' 76129

11441 0.00016270 R ANA GARDNER OSBORN
| P Q BOX 4246
 BRYAN TX 77801

4 11451 - 0. 00273450 R~ ROBERT MOSBACHER
. P 0 BOX 201678
HOUS TON , T¥ 77216-147

113548 Q. 00117190 8 EHMIL MOSRACHER,  JR.
' 170 MASON ST
" GREENWICH : cT 06830

11999 0. 00047200 R J. H. HERD
' ¢ 0 BOX 130 .
MIDLAND _ TX 79702

3 12003 0. 00011780 R JOHN J REDFERN JR ESTATE
JOHN O REDFERN ITI-EXECUTOR
P D BOX 50B%é
MIDLAND TX ' 79710

12004 Q. 00011780 R ROSALIND REDFERNM
P O BAOX 2127
MIDLAND T 79702

12175 . 0.00729150 R NORTH CENTRAL OIL CORP
P O BOX 200201
HOUSTON TX 77216-02C .

% 15245 0, 00161110 R HOUSTON DIL % MINERALS CORP
: : | P 0 BOX 200771 ‘
- HOUSTON | o Tx - 77216
# 195870 0. 005372470 0 AMERADA HESS CORPORATION
‘ P O BOX 910834 :
DALLAS TX 7539 1~083

#% 19964 0. 07109360 O EXXON CORPORAT IGN
PO BOX 1547 |
HOUSTOM TX . 77252-194

24815 0. 00097640 R W E KREPS TRUST #1124
NCNE TX NATL DBANK-TRUSTEE
PO BOX 841349

DALLAS ™  75284-154

30900 0. 00023410 R GENE C REDFERN
¥ PO BOX $0430 :
¥ M T L AND TX 793710

30289 o.abdooooo W PARKER # PARSLEY DEVELOPMENT €O

PO BOx 317 :

M1 DLAND OTYX 797G2-317
23214 0. Q0073230 R JOSEPHINE H CHOMAT FAMILY EC AR

TEAM BANK % JOANNE H BILBY, CO-TRUSTEES

P 0 DRAWER @904
' AA 1231



07/02/92

LEASE MUMBER
LEABE NAME
LOCATION

50421000
UP TN TX
CREDRIT TO

OWHER NO. INTEREST

N PEMBROOK SPRABERRY UNIT TR 27

PAGE &

34810

R4 B34
34939
.34344
37361

37953

45590
&H1 341

Jype-3]

L3078

L6081

L6042

&EQGE

bHOER

66103

&é&H1LA5

L

0.

(.

00048830

00048830

05158420

. 37500170

L UR257Q190

0D EF530G

. Q004R720

001233210

. 00195300
. 075Q0170

. 00047200

. QGO13020

OO0R75640

. QQOR744C

Q00874640

. 00322250

. Q0193300

.Q091145D

DI

TYLER S ¢

DON STEPHEN BURKET
1301 WOODLAND HILLS
73701

JOHM M BURKET JR

i70% TIMBERCREEK :
TYLER : TX 75703
ROBERT ¢ HALL

3116 LAMPR PORT LN _
OULaHOMA CITY DK 73120
THELMA WHITSON HENSDON

1204 SHIRLEY LN

MIDELAND T% 79701
RALPH ) SHEPLEY

STAR RT A - BOX 77C

DHIEPING SPRINGS TX 78420
JOMMN PERKING 1II-TRUSTEE
7711 LOUIS PASTEUR HZ0B _
SaN ANTONIO TX 78229
WILMA HENTOM LAFORGE

ADDRESS UNKMOWM

EARL R BRUND IR

5213 WHITMAN

MIDLAND : TX 7705
CABS RESOURCES INC

400 CRESCENT CRT #1800
DALLAS _ TX 75201
LORETTA MCDERMOTT MARSH e
%HARRELL % LUPARDUS

901 W INDIANG #A

MIDLAMD TX 79701
EM1L MOSBACHER, 11T

1580 CANADA 1N

WOODS IDE o 24062
PHILLIP HILLHDUSE TRUST #504-02
NATIONSBAMK TX-TRUSTEE

P O BOX 841349 )
DALLAS — ' TY 76284~1545
CEORGE § HMILLHOUSE TRUST #3504-04
RNATIONSBANK TYX-TRUSTEE

pD BOX 841549 o

DalLLAS ' T 75264-154¢
JAMES HILLHOUSE TRUST -#%504-02
NATIONSBANK TYX~TRUSTEE

P o0 BOX B4154% ,
DaLLAS - TX 75084-154¢
M E SINGLETUN JR ESTATE

G H SINGLETON &°J 8 CLOYD, INDP CD-EXC
PO OBOX 717 JE
WAXAHACHIE - TX T6165-0710
MIRIAM L. -BROUDY

§ CLOVERLY CIRCLE

EAST NORWALK CT 0LR55-53 5!
CARDLYN C. CHANEY

&24 AMARTLLO

AR TLENE 72605-101-

"EcAa215

AA 1232



LEABE NUMBER
LEASE NaME

LOCATION

OWNER N,

3

A5

L& ELEB
£8508

A 023

HB52E

68587
69013
&5014
&F0OLS
LH5014
L9075
793469
79370
79374

7375

50421060G :
N PEMBRROOK SPRABERRY UNIT TR 27
URTON

INTEREST
0. 01347170

Q0292850

. 00087440

. 009114460

. Q0292960

L 00S11450
. 00034180
00014640
00034180
.Ooo;gaao
01367200
. 00013020
00013020
00019540

. 00012540

. 0000000

R

4

Q7/702/3&

T

CREDIT T

PAGE

“MARJORIE T CONNELL & EC HARTMAN=CO-TSTE

P O BOX 710 . _
LAS VEGAS - ot

RUTH V. FERGUSON DREWERY
AS08 EUCLID AVE :
DALLAS TX

VALPEY FAMILY TRUST

GLADYS M VALPEY-TRUSTEE
1724 PLAZA DE SAN JOAGUIN
MODESTO CA

CONSTANCE €. FAUBER
1721 BROOKS
ARLINGTON - TX

89125-07 11 .

75205-321: |

95350-394¢ -

76012

HUGH W FERGUSON JR TESTAMENTARY TRUST

RUTH F DREWERY-TRUSTEE
3S0E EUCL.ID AVE
DALLAS ‘ TX

CORINNME C. 1L.AW
&104 PARKTREE PL NE
‘ALBUQUERQUE NM

ANN MORRISSEY
205 YOAKUM PRWY #2654
ALEXANDRIA  ° VA

GREGORY & MORRISSEY
4913 5 OWENE 8T
LITTLETON - co

PATRICIA MORRISSEY
205 YOAKUM PARKWAY 826
ALEXANDR LA Va

RACHEL MORRISSEY MOYER
P O BOX 249
BHAWNEE: ON DELA PA

75205-321:

87111

22304

go127

22304

18356-024

ROBERT R OR FRAMCES M MILLER REV TRUST

P O BOX 867417
FLAND TX

JOHN DAVID MOSBACHER
44 GRAHAMPTON LLANE
GREENWICH CT

R BRUCE MOSBACHER
1580 CANADA LANE
WOODSIDE A

BENNETT E SMULLYAN
P 0O BOX 201470
ROUSTON TX

CCLINTON I SMULLYAN: JR
P O BOX 201678
HOUSTON ' TX

75086-741

06830

F4Q4

77216

77216

ECAZ216

AA 1233



MESA PIPE LINE COMPANY
1 200 SMITH STREET, SUITE 2950
HOUSTON, TEXAS 77002
(71316589673
TELECOPY; (7 13) 658-0997

December 6, 1594

RE: Lease No. 12025
Connell Estate, Well No. 2 Lease
Upton County, Texas

Dear Interest Owner:

You have heretofore received payment for your interest in the captioned property from Hydrocarbon
Management, Inc, Effective with runs commencing October 1, 1994, Mesa Pipe Line Company will
disburse proceeds from the sale of oil production.

Accordingly, enclosed herewith is Mesa’s Division Order, prepared on the basis of information
furnished us by TSF Operating, Operator of the captioned property. If you find your interest is
correctly stated on the Division Order, please sign one copy in the presence of two witnesses and
return it to this office for further handling.

Before returning the signed Division Order, please insert your correct mailing address and Social
Security or Taxpayer Identification Number in the spaces provided on the Division Order. It is Mesa’s
policy not to place an interest in line for payment without the proper number.

Please do not hesitate to contact us if you have any questions.
Yours very truly,
MESA PIPE LINE COMPANY
oW futl

Ed W. Richter
Senior Title Analyst

EWR/llw

enclosures

cc: TSF Operating (widivision order)
P. O. Box 222
Midland, Texas 79702

ECA217

AA 1234



THIS AGREEMENT DOES NOT AMEND ANY LEASE OR OPERATING AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE INTEREST OWNERS AND THE LESSEE OR OPERATOR OR ANY
OTHER CONTRACTS FOR THE PURCHASE OF OIL OR GAS.

The following provisions apply to each interest owner {"owner") who executes this
agreement:

TERMS OF SALE: The undersigned will be paid in accordance with the division of interests set out above.
The payor shall pay all parties at the price agreed to by the operator for oil to be sold pursuant 10 this division
order. Purchaser shall compute quantity and make corrections for gravity and temperature and make

deductions for impurities.

PAYMENT: From the sffective date, payment is to be made monthly by payor's check, based on this
division of interest, for oil run during the preceding calendar month from the property listed above, less taxes
required by law to be deducted and remitted by payor as purchaser. Payments of less than $265 may be
accrued before disbursement until the total amount equals $25 -or more, or until December 31 of sach year,
whichever occurs first. Payee agrees 1o refund to payor any amounts attributable to an interest or part of an

interast that payee does not own.

INDEMNITY: The owner agrees to indemnify and hold payor harmless from all liabitity resulting from
payments made to the ownerin accordance with such division of interest, including but not limited to attorney
fees or judgments in connection with any suit that affects the owner’s interest to which payor is made a party.

DISPUTE; WITHHOLDING OF FUNDS: If a suit is filed that affects the interest of the owner, written
notice shall be given to payor by the owner together with a copy of the complaint or petition filed.

In the event of a claim or dispute that affects title to the division of interest credited herein, payor is
authorized to withhold payments acceruing to such Interest, without interest unless otherwise required by
applicable statute, until the claim or dispute is settled.

TERMINATION: Termination of this agreement is sffective on the first day of the month that begins after
the 30th day after the date written notice of termination is raceived by either party.

NOTICES: The owner agrees to notify payor in writing of any change in the division of interest, including
changes of interest contingent on payment of money ot expiration of time.

No change of interest is binding on payor until the recorded copy of the instrument of change or
documents satisfactorily evidencing such change are furnished to payor at the time the change cccurs,

Any change of intersst shall he made effectiva on the first day of the month fallowing receipt of such
notice by payor.

Any correspondence regarding this agreement shall be furnished to the addresses listed unless otherwise
advised by either party.

In addition to the legal rights provided by the terms and provisions of this division order, an ownsar may
have certain statutory rights under the laws of this state.

Witnesses' Signature Signature of Interest Owner Saocial Security/
and Addresses alling Address Tax 1.D. Number

/,fj \L/ .ém/%’;‘fw 2:“‘ fe. @M 778 |
(//}0 //f 7 XQM Zf%ﬁ-dﬁfr éi:‘/ X ?/ &
it T W Ppnidnie Commell Juuddee 386037325
L;éy//ifa ;,:/;l (fégfazé’m%f;@@ /@01‘ ,7/451 75

a{gﬁ_/%ézf b, £502 757 L -
p i e, Taw Ysgen Tl 37135

N
(e o 7). ottd2227

e

BE SURE YOUR SIGNATURE IS WITNESSED AND YOUR CORRECT ADDRESS IS SHOWN

Faiture to furnish your Social Security/Tax LD. Number will result in a withholding taE?{&%cﬂr@ance with

faderal law, and any tax withheld will not he refundable by payor.
AA 1235



DIVISION ORDER

TO: MESA PIPE LINE COMPANY
1200 Smith Street, Suite 2950
Houston, Texas 77002-4501

PROPERTY NO.:

EFFECTIVE:

12025

EWR/liw
12/6/94

Qctober 1, 1994

The undearsigned severally and not jointly certifies it Is the legal owner of the interest set out below of

all the oil and related liquid hydrocarbons produced from the property dascribed below:

. _STATE:..

OPERATOR: TSE OPERATING
PROPERTY NAME: Connefl Estate (Well No. 2)
COUNTY: Upton |

DESCRIPTION: NW/4 of Section 32, Block 39,

T-5-8, T&P Ry. Co. Survey.

DEPTH: Limited from the surface to the base of the Dean

OWNER

PAYEE

NUMBER

00451
20120
29101
28472
29102

29103

29104
29105
29106
129107
29108

29109

29110 -
02911

29111

Amoco Production Company

. Fred W. Shield and ‘Company

Walter R. Berger, Ir.
Comelia C. Blake, Trustee
Lee V. Berger, J1.

Charles Frederick Berger

Sand Formation at approximately 9100 feet.

DIVISION OF INTEREST

ROYALTY INTEREST

1/12 x 1/4

1/24 x 1/4

1/2x 3/80 x 1/4

3/80 x 1/4

1/3x 1/2x3/80 x 1/4

2/3 x 1/2 x 3/80 x 1/4

Charles Frederick Berger, Trustee NO INTEREST

of the Lee V. Berger Marital Trust

M. E. Singleton, Jr. Estate
Sarah M. Woodward

Carolyn Cowden Chaney
Constance Cowden Fauber
Corinne Cowden Law

E. Hartman and Marjoﬁe Connell
Trustees of the W.N, and M,T.
Connell Living Trust

Emil Mosbacher, Jr.

Robert Mosbacher

Emil Mosbacher, I1I

1/80 x 1/4
1/160 x 1/4

1/3 x 7/32 x 1/4
113 x 7732 x 1/4
1/3x7/32x 1/4

7164 x 1/4

3/640 x 1/4
7/640 x 1/4

1/3 x 1/2 x 2/640 x 1/4

{See Reverse Hereof)

Texas

4

ECA219

.020833333
.010416667
004687500
009375000
001562500
003125000

.000000000

003125000
001562500
018229166
018229167
018229167

027343750

001171875
002734375

.000130208

AA 1236



Connell Estate (Well No. 2) Lease 2
Lease No. 12025

ROYALTY INTEREST  (cont’d)
20112 R. Bruce Mosbacher 1/3 x 1/2 x 2/640 x 1/4 = ,000130208
29113 Bennett E. Smullyan 1/2 x 1/2 x 2/640 x 1/4 = 000195313
29114 Clinton 1. Smullyan, Jr. 1/2 x 1/2 x 2/640 x 1/4 = 000195313
29115 . John David Mosbacher 1/3 x 1/2x2/640 x 1/4 = ,000130208
29116 Maryland Myers Anderson 1/3 = 17160 x 1/4 = 000520833
29117 Michael Glenn Anderson 173 x 1/160 x 1/4 = 000520833
20118 Melinda Anderson Cates 1/3 x 1/160 x 1/4 = (00520834
29119 NationsBank of Texas, N.A., 1/3 x 1/40 x 1/4 = 002083333
Trustee of the George Shelton :
Hillhouse Trust
20120 NationsBank of Texas, N.A., 1/3 x 1/40 x 1/4 = .002083333
} Trustee of the James D. :
Hillhouse, IV Trust
29121 NationsBank of Texas, N.A.,  1/3 x 1/40 x 1/4 = 002083334
Trustee of the Philip Maverick :
Hillhouse Trust
29122 R.R. Miller or F.M. Miller, 7/64 x 1/4 = 027343750
Trustees For Benefit of
Robert R. Miller and E, Miller
10584 North Central Oil Corporation 7/160 x 1/4 = 010937500
QVERRIDING ROYALTY INTEREST
29123 C. F. Qualia 1.0% x 3/4 : = 007500000
29124 Wayne D. Miller 1.0% x 3/4 = 007500000
29125 Mercer 1987 Income Partnership = 000984300
WORKING INTEREST
' Before Payout  ** After Payout
22035 Terry S. Fields = .796515700 = 762296950
29126 Curiis Vaughn NG INTEREST = .000C00000
6.25% x 54.75% | = 034218750
Alton Oehler and Alberta Ochler NO INTEREST = .000000000 = ,000000000
Greg Oehler and Donna Qehler  NO INTEREST = .000000000 = 000000000
Ben A. Culpepper NO INTEREST = .000000000 =, (00000000

* These interests ate subject to change after payout has been reached. TItisthe
responsibility of the Operator and/or the interest owners involved to notify
Mesa Pipe Line Company in writing thirty (30) days prior to any changes in
the method of payment due to payout. Mesa Pipe Line Company accepts no

_responsibility or liability for accounting for the date that payout will E&AZZO
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. -THE. SURFACE

L %';Effacme I?Jate* .
B NN 88211@159 SR
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CEASE ‘NO: L5479 . - o o EFFECTIVE DATE: 05796
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3 . P e e
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NAVAIO CRUDE OiL M ; ;LTING CGyPANY

i oL DIVISION 'Q'Z'DER
L (INDEMNI\FYI__; o

“Tox Navajo Crude Oxl MarkehnglCompany s Effecuve Date May, 1996
. P.O. Bax 159; Antesta, NM 88211~ 0159 L . R

.+ Telephone:’ (505) 748~ 3311 ‘

e Fax (505) 746 6410 -

. ?repcrty Number/Name 005479 D'@l --Exxon Cowden o
Operator Tamarack Petroleum Cio »- Ime) E

Property Descrzpnon ' Upton Cmu}nty, Texas

S C=1 Well -~ SW/4 SECTION 37 ﬁROM THE SURFACE DOWN TO THE BASE OF THE DEAN. FORMATION

: BLOCK. 39, TOUNSHIP.550UTH, [P6P'RY. ,CG SF’#"“ ? %%@»
g@ﬂ%% “%M

[ Owner Name. . - SEEAZ{TACHED e f'_-'._j*awner Numbeﬁ
and Address DIVISION OF INTEREST. -+ " Typs of. Interest
T . EXHIBIQ._ S f__}_ﬁ;--._Decimal Interest

 The unders:gned cert:ﬁes the ownershlp of rhmr decxmal mterest m productlon or proceeds as descnbed
herem payable by Navam Crude 011 Markenng Company : o :

-;Navajo Cmde 011 Marketmg Compahy shail be nouﬁecl m wriung, Qf any change in. ownerslup, dec1ma1
interest, or paymert address All su¢h changes shall be effectz\re the first tiay of the month follewmg recexpt
of such notice. - 7 - L : . . .o :

Ndvajo Crude O Markaﬂng Company is authorxzed tor thhhg)ld payment rpendmg resolutxon of a ntle dispute ¢
or adverss claim asserted regarding the interest in preduct:on c'};&;med hereim by the: undcrsxgned The '
undersigned agrees to ndenmnify and re1mburse Payor any-amount attnbntgble to an intérest to which the
unders:gned is not entitled. . - B _ :

. 'Navajo Crude. Gil Markemng Campany may -atcrue proeeéds u;;anl the: totﬁ ameunt equals $100.00 ot pay
! annually if. the amount is greater thaﬂ $25 00; wh;chever occufs first, or. ag reqmred by apphcabie state
: Stﬁtlle . Gt . .

-' -V:Thls Division Dl'ﬁiﬂr d@ﬁs not amend:f iy lease of epe:-rau.ug agf@cment betwee;ﬁff.?thé --pﬁgic_é;éi-'ghed. an.d the fessee -

C or operator or. any ‘other- céﬁfrélct}s fe"_fthe purchase of 911 and: gas

a In addmon to the terms amd condmm&s of thxs Dmswn @r;ier ghe nﬁerszé‘nad and P'xyor may havc certain
' statutory rxghts undar the IawS of thig] state in whmh the pmpm{sf 1s oeatec! T

-,-1[3@ pany has based thcxr
Gorporat:.on L

. Specxai Clauses’ T understeﬂd[that Navaja Cnids Oxl.:f farket
: Dwxs&on Order upon the payment ;nfermﬂﬂan of. Scm:lo P

i i (g, e uitsh
B :'_"_'-Own;er S'ergnature L e

| 5’5? ém 3*/”3’5’9?= L PR 4a3 75?5, .

' Owner’s Tax ID#/SS# | . e "_‘r-Owner 5. Tax IDWISSE -0 —
o 8T8 é’é»%?’ : D L8 boIE
.Owner s Dayﬂme Telephone g L -anef s Rax N

| Federal Law 1equu'es yOu to furmsh your‘ Socml Secuntg or depayer Id&nhﬁcaﬂon Number Faﬂure to
. comply’ wzll tesult in 31.% tax’ w:thholdmg and will-not be refu'nddbla by- lPAyor ,

l.
'.l
'|
|

. ECA223
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" Ihis Exhibit is attached and made of a part of this Division Order.
| L Lease #_(_105}{79%1 ‘ -

| B It is urderstood - that the "{:_rudé::(ﬁl'.-uﬁdér:-._tﬁié"-.Diﬁfiéioh"éfdé"rﬁ for the Exxon, Cowden C-well leasé - |
. #005479-001 is. being. comtninigled: into. the -same. tank “battery 'as the Exxon Coweden -B~ well lease .

- #005479: By execution of this Division Order, the_underié;ignedfacknj(dw'ledge's-"mat.Nai'zajof‘takesi possession . . -

- of the oil delivered, at the central battery Tocaton and has. no-independent means of verifying the: source of -
gt delivered to it ‘Pot purposes of alocating such oil to each inierest owner fiereunder, the undersigned
-hezeby.-.auﬁi-o:iZesN-as{aiolto. rely on.statsments of the source and ‘quantity of a1t oil delivered hereudder, t0 be - -
. furnished by Tamarack Petroleurn its SUCCESSOES &;ﬁ;d;_a-séiggs;%pmiri'ded that Navajo shall never be résponsible’
* for any quantity-of oil in-excess of that delivered fo. it hereunder nor for its reliapce upon the information "~
furnished regarding the seurce of such oil.- In-considgration of Navajo Aistributing proceeds under this =~
Division Order, the undersighed: does hereby relieve ‘Ndvajo of ‘agy 108s, ‘claim or liability incurred by its. -

. .

good Taith performance:hgreuﬁd'ar, including i__t_s;’._:fat_'n_érne};:s_i feés, dnd .spall__i'ﬁdam_n_-ify Navajo for such. purpose,
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o Operator Tamarank Petrcleum CO 5 Inc

= statug.

NAVAJO CRUDE ozL VARK] 'ffmG COMPANY
" OIL DIVISION.ORDER . =
o (INDBMNIFYING)

r”IT_().:"3'.‘.-Nav330 Crude OLI Markeung Company ; f. Effecﬂve Date Ma‘u 1996
- PO Box 159, Artesia; NM 88211 0159 S ‘.

T -Telephorre (505) 748- 3311 s

o Fax (S05Y 7466410 -

",Propeﬁy Number/Name 903480 ~ Exxon Cowd.en D - A

Propeny Descnpuon Upton County, Texas |

| ; BLOCK 38, TQWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, T&P RY. CG SURVEY, SWM SECTION 31 (Exxon—Cowden D 1 Well),--
- AND Nwla SEGTION 31+ (Exxon-—t‘:owden D=2 ws11)¥ ‘AS:T0! “PEPTHS, FR:)M ‘THE DEPTH.OF 7, 300 I‘EET
- BELOW THE SURFACE DOWN TO 100 FEET BELGW TI-’{E BASE GF THE DEA& FORMATIO\I L

0, . e - .
K - N . N A .
,=..'-' oo .

" -Owner Name SEE AQY‘ACHED L '_\'_'.A':'--'-._A_f"',Gwm:r Number‘_f' -
{ and’ Addrcss DIVISION OF INTEREST - Type-of Interésg ~ -
- MR EXHIBIT e _Demmal Imerest;:‘ :

“The undersxgned cemﬁes thie owncrsmp of‘ their decxmal mterest in producuon or. proce:eds as descnbed
~herein payabie by Navajo Crude Oil Marketing Company

Navajo Crude Oil Markem:g Company shail be nonﬁed ficy wntmg, of. any char}ge in ownershxp, demmal
interest, -or payment address: - All such changes shall'be. effecnve the first day of the month following receipt
‘of such notice. : _ . :

. or-adverse claim. asserted regarding the. interest in: producuon claimed heeein-by the undersigned. The
- undersigned -agrees:10 mdemmfy and re:mburse Payor any amount attributable to an.intérest to wmch the
-.undersxgned 18: not entxﬂed T R P S
-Navajo Crude Ozi Markemng Cﬂmpsmfy m c\;@accme procee;ds uhh} the total'amount equals $100. 00 or pay
' --:annuaiiy if. the amopnt 13 greater than $2<5 whichever :occurs ﬁrst or as reqnu*ed by apphcable state '

' :‘_Navajo Cmde 011 Marketmg Company is. authonzed 0 wzthhold paymentjendmg resolut:on of a mle chspute

o Thls Dmsmn Order does not amend a;ny lease or oparatmg agraemant bem'fEen the uncfers: gned and the lessee
£.er opcrat{ar or any othcr cﬁntracts for the purchase of mi and gats _ _

In addman torthe terms and candmons of thms wasmn Grder a{xe undersxgnéﬁrﬁéﬁfd‘-‘.‘Payor‘;"_m-ay h_ri?ziévbertain -
statutory nghts underthe Iaws of the stat»e m whrch the pr@perty isdocatedd - <.t 0T

L '-Speclal Clauses It is tmderstood that Navaga Crude Oxl Markenug (,.ompany lms based thezr _—
Dmswn Order upon the payment mformatmn of Scurlock Perndan: Corparation '

'.'Owner sSrgnature ‘

Owners'l"ax DASSE - Owner'sTax ID#/SS#|

71@4»5*7,?1 Xéf 9’5 A% 3 ais éaf,?é

Owner s DayUme Teiephone # o VR Owner S Fax #

Federa[ Law requues you to furmsh your Socxal Secumy or, Taxpdyer Identxﬁcauon Number Faxiure 0
comply wxll resuit in 31 % tax’ thhholdmg and wﬂl not be re"uhdable by F'ayor IERRT
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NAVAJO CRUDE OIL MARKETING COMPANY
~ OIL DIVISION ORDER
“ (INDEMNIFYING)

To:  Navajo Crude Oil Marketing Company Effective Date: May, 1996
P.O. Box 159, Artesia, NM 88211-0159
- Telephone: (505) 748-3311
Fax: (505) 740-6410

Property Number/Name: 005481 ~ Exxon Cowden E
Operator: Tamarack Petroleum Co., Inc.

Property Description:  Upton County, Texas

E/2 SECTION 31, BLOCK 38, TOWNSHIP .5 ‘SOUTH, T&P RY. CO. SURVEY, AS TO DEPTHS
FROM THE DEPTH OF 7,300 FEET BELOW THE SURFACE DOWN TO THE BASE OF THE DEAN

FORMATION

Owner Name SEE ATTACHED Owner Number:
and Address:  DIVISION OF INTEREST Type of Interest:
EXHIBIT Decimal Interest:

The undersigned certifies the ownership of their decimal interest in production or proceeds as described
- herein payable by Navajo Crude Oil Marketing Company.

Navajo Crude Oil Marketing Company shall be notified, in writing, of any change in ownership, decimal
interest, or payment address. All such changes shall be ‘effective the first day of the month following receipt
of such notice.

Navam Crude Oil Marketing Company is authorized to withhold payment pending resolution of a. title dispute
or adverse claim asserted regarding the interest in production claimed herein by the undersigned. The -
undersigned agrees to indemnify and reimburse Payor any amount attributable to an interest to which the
undersigned is not entitled

Navajo Crude Oil Marketmg Company may accrue proceeds until the total amount equals $100.00 or pay
annually if the amount is greater than' $25.00, whichever occurs first; or as required by apphcable state
statue.

This Division Order does not amend any lease or operating agreement between the under51gned and the lessee
or operator or any other contracts for the purchase of oil and gas.

In addition to the terms and conditions of thlS Division Order, the undersigned and Payor may have certain
statutory rights under the laws of the state in which the property is located.

Special Clauses: It is understood that Navajo Crude Gil Marketjng Company has based their
Division Order upon the payment information of Scurlock Permian Corporation.

Owner s S:gnature

LR b3 7758 | F8~ 603 V33§

Owner’s Tax ID#/SSH Owner’s Tax ID#/SSH
[04. - Z78-YEvg JeR 658 €074
Owner’s Daytime Telephone # Owner's Fax #

Federal Law requires you to furnish your Social Security or Taxpayer [dentification Number. Failure to
comply will result in-31% tax withholding and will not be refundable by Payor..
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AMERITRUST TEXAS NA TRE
ACCT MO 4815151610

P O BOX 951416

paLLAS TX 75395-14146
WILLIAM WOLF FAMILY TRUSY
AMERITRUST TEXAS MA TRE

ACCT NO 4815151629

P O BOX 951416

DALLAS Tx 75325~t416
JOHN SCHERER JR

g0 RBOX 3334

MIDLAND TX T9270&8-33324%

PETER R SCHERER
4801 DAKWOOD COURT
MIDLAND TY 79707~
ROY D GOLDSTON JR ET AL TRUST
TEAM BANK NA TRUSTEE AGCT 441
PO BOX 29024

EFORT WORTH IX 76159~
CONSTAMGCE COWDEN FAUBER
1751 BROOKS DR

ARL INGTON TX  76012~2319
CORINNE COMDEN LAW

5104 PARKTREE PL NE

ALBUQUERQUE NM 87111~
MIRIAM L BROUDY

C/0 LOUIS L BROUDY

12 BRIDGE ROAD

WEESTON CT 06883~

COMMELL TRUST ©S/18/782

W N COWNELL & HMARJORIE CONNELL
PO BOX T10

LAS VEGAS HY 8%128~
RUTH V F DREWERY

3508 FUCLID AVE

DALLASE TX TS205-2214

IMTEREST INTEREST
L00130210 RI
L00130210 o1
00352290 OR
L DQ36E890 OR
L 00022880 RI
L01041670 RI
01041670 R1
L001953190 RI
L01568500 R1
00439450 08
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D1 led, V/j’l 7

COPY

DIVISION ORDER

. Remuda Operating Company
- 301 N..Colorado, Ste 150
- Midland, Texas 79701

Lease Number 123100 The above number will appear on alt
settlement checks and will be the only lease identification shown, 1t is
important that you retain-and record this number and lease description in
your records. ‘ i

The undersign'éd and each of them guarantee and warrant thét the legal owners in the production set out below of
oil produced and/or-of gas sold from Cowder "32" lease, described as:

' NE/4 and the SWi4. (356 acres) of Section 32; T-5-3, T&P RR Company 'Survey,rll}pton County,
Texas.- ' '

in Upton County, State of Texas and commencing at 7:00 am April 1, 1996, subject to the Covenants appearing on
the reverse side hereof, which same are bihding upon the undersigned, their sticcessors, legal representatives and
assigns, you are authorized until further notice either from you of from us to receive oil therefrom, and to give credit
for oil and/or gas proceeds as directed below: i

Midland Trustee for'Trust No. 504-04

Republicbank First National 00208330 P.O. Box 841549
Midland Trustee for Trust No. 504-02 Dallas, Texas 75284-1549
Republicbank First National 00208330 P.OC. Box 841549
Midland Trustee for Trust No. 504-03 Dallas, Texas 75284-1549
Corinne Cowden Law 01822910 6104 Parktree Place N.E.
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87111
Emil Mosbacher, Jr. 00093750 P.0. Box 29396
New York, NY 10087-9376
Emil Mosbacher, 111 00010420 Melrose Square on Melrose Ave,
Greenwich, Ct 06830
John David Mosbacher 00010420 Melrose Square on Melrose Ave
Greenwich, Ct 06830
R. Bruce Mosbacher 2200 Sandhill Road #150

00010420

CREDIT TO 'DIVISION OF INTEREST P.0. ADDRESS
Royalty Interest -
Cornelia C. Blake, Trustee 00937500 . 500 West 7th St., Suite 1213
¢ | - Fort Worth, Texas 76102-4727
Melinda Anderson Cates 00052080 4532 Lorraine
' Dallas, Texas 75205
Carolyn Cowden Chaney 01822910 624 Amarillo Street
| - Abilene, Texas 79602
VWi, & Marjorie Connell Trust 02734380 "P:0. Box 710
B ‘ Las Vegas, Nevada 89125
Constance Gowdeﬁ Fauber 01822910 1721 Brooks
Arlington, Texas 76012
Republicbank First;National 00208340 -P.0O. Box 841549

Dallas, Texas 75284-1549

Menlo Park EXARG(H4025-6936
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The undé:rs{gned' certify and puarantee to Remudsa Operating Company -, herein calied Remuda, that we are the owners of the‘i_nt.eresf,‘
set out opposite our name in oil and gas or the proceeds from the sale of oil and gas from the property as so described. Until further
written notice either from Remudn or from us, Remuda is authorized to glve credit as set forth for alt proceeds derived from the sale of

production from sald property, subject to the following covenants, condltions and directions:

1. Oil sold hereunder shall be dalivered f.0,b. to the carrier designated to gather and receive such oil and shall become Remuda's
property upon receipt thereof by the carrier-designated by Remiuda or by any other purchager to whom Remuda may resell such oil. The
term “oil” as used In this division order shall include all marketable liquid hydrocarbonsg. Should the-oil produced from the herein
described land be commingled with ofl produced from one or more other separately owned tracts of land prior to delivery to.the
deslgnated carrier, the commingled oll gold hereunden shall be deeined to be the interest of the undersigned in that portion of the total
' commingled oil delivered which Is allocated to the herein described land on the basis of lease meter readings or any other methoed
generzlly accepted In the Indbstry as an equitable basis for determining the quantity and quality of oil sold from each separately owned
tract. Such formula shall be uniformly applied to all oiwners of an interest in the tracts of land involved, Should the interest of the
undersigned in the oil produeed from the heréln described tand:ba unitized with oll)produced from one or'more other tracts of land, this
Instrument shall thereafter be deemed to be modified to the extent necessary to conform with the applicable unitization agreement or
plan of unitization, and all revisions or amendments thiereto, but dtherwise to remain inforce and effect as to all other provisions. In such
event, the portlon of the unitized oil sold hersunder shall be the interest of the undersigned in that portion of the total unitized oil
delivered which i3 allocated to the hereln described land and shall be deenied for all purposes to have bean actusally produced from said -
land. Remuda agrees to pay for the oil sold hereunder at the price posted by Remuda for oil of the same grade and gravity in the same
producing fleld oi atea on the date said oll is received by Remuda or-the designated carrier, If Remuda does not currently post such a
price, then until such time as Remuda doas so, leniuda sgraes ta pay the price establislied by Remuda, Remuda {s authorized to reduce
the price by those truck, barge, tankcar, or pipe line transportation chiarges as determined by Ileraudn, Should the oil sold hereunder be
resold by Ilemuda te another purchaser accepting delivery thereof at the same point at which Remiuda takes title, Remuda agrees to pay
for such oll bdsed itpon the volume computation made by such purchaser and at the price received by Remuda for such oil, reduced by
any transportation charges deducted by such purchaser, Quality and quantity shdll be'deferniined in accordance with the conditions
specilied In the price posting. Remuda may refuse to receive any oil not considered merchantable by Remuda. '

2. Settlements for gas shall be based on the net proceeds at the wells, after deducting a falr and reasonable charge for compressing and
making It merchdntable and for transporting if the gas Is gald off the property. Where gas is sold subject to reguiation by the Federal
Power Commission or other governmental authorlty, the price applicable to such sale approved by order of such authority shall be used.

to determine the net proceeds at the wells,

3. Settlements shall be made monthly by eheck mailed to the respective parties according to the division of Interest herein specified af
the latest address known by Remuda less any taxes required by law to be deducted and paid by Remuda applicable to owner's interest,

4. Inthe event any dispute or question arises concerning the title to the interest of the undersigned in said land and/or the ofl or gas
produced therefrom or the proceeds thereof, Remuda will be furnished satis{actory abstracts or other evidence of title upon demand.
Until such eviderce of title has beeh furnished and/or such dispute, defect, or question of title is corrected or removed to your
satisfaction, or tntil indemnity satisfactory to Remuda has been {urnished, Remuda is authorized to withhold the proceeds of such ofl or
gas received and run, without interest. In the event any action or sult Is flled in any court sffecting the title to the interest of the
undersigned in the herein described land or the oil or gas produced thereirom or the proceeds thereof to which the undersigned Is a
party, written notice of the Iiling of such-sult or action shall be immediately furnished Remuda by the undersigned, stating the courtin
which the same Is filed and the title of such suit or action. Remiuda will not be responsible for any change of ownership in the absence of -

actual notice and satisfactory -proof thereof.

5. Whether or not any contingency Is expressly stated in this instrument, Remuda s hereby relieved of any responsibility for
determining when any of the interests herein shell increase, diminish, terminate, be extinguished or revert to other parties as a result of
the completion or discharge of money or other payments from sald interest, or as a result of the expiration of any time or term Hmitation
(either definite or indefinite), and uniess Remuda is also the operator of the property, as a result of an increase or decreass in production,
or as a result of a change In thé depth, the methods or the means of production, or as a result of a change in the allocation of production
aifecting the herdin described land or any portion theteof under any agreement or by order of Governmental authority, and until
Remuds recelves notice in writing to the contrary Remuda Is hereby authorized to continue to remit without liability: pursuant to the
division of interest shown herein, '

6. Working Interest Owriers and/or Operators, and each of them, by signature to this instrument, certify, guarantee and warrant for
Remuda's benefit and that of any piie line or other carrjer designated to.run or transport said ofl or gas, that all-oil or gas tendered
hereunder has been and shall be produced Irom or lawlully ailocated to the herein described land in.accordance with all applicable
Faderal, state and local laws, orders, rules and regulations, ' '

-ECAZ231
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Cowden "32"- Division Order
Page 2

Emil Mosbacher 1978 Trust
Robert Mosbacher, Trustee
North Central Oil Corporation
Fred W. Shield & Company
Bennett E. Smullyan

Clinton I. Smullyan, Jr.

Sarah M. Woodward

Robert Reece Miller And France
Rev Trust dated 5/03/91
Hardy Oil & Gas USA, Inc.
Cloyd Singleton Estate
Amoco Production Co.
Marfahe Myers Anderson ™
Michael Glenn Anderson’
Arch Petroleum, Inc.

Arco Permian, a unit of

Atlantic Richfield Company

Lee Vincent Berger Marital Trust
Charles F. Berger Trustee

Walter R. Berger, Jr.

Overriding Royalty Interest

Dorothy W. Montgdmery

Zachry Oil & Gas Properties

Working Interest

Hydrocarbon Energy, Inc.

J. Michael Muckleroy

00015630

00218750
01093750
01041670

00015630

.

00156250
02734380
02812500
00312500
02083330
' .00052080. -
.00052080
.00312500
03125000
00468750

00468750

00050000

00625000

11250000

00450000

|
|
|
|

P.(‘y%). Box 201678
Ho*luston, Texas 77216-1678

P.d). Box 200201

" Hduston, Texas 77216-0201

115 B. Travis St, Suite 1442
Sax? Antonio, Texas 78205

P.(. Box 201678

Hduston, Texas 77216-1678

P.O. Box 201678
Houston, Texas 77216-1678

9004 Glen Springs Drive
Dallas, Texas 75243

P.O. Box 867417
Plano, Texas 75086-7417

. P.O. Box 200284

Houston, Texas 77216

P.O. Box 717
Waxahachie, Texas 75165

P.O. Box 841521
Dallas, Texas 75284-1521

" . 7618 Southwestetn Blvd - _
" Dallas, Texas 75225

P.O. Box 4584
Dallas, Texas- 75208

777 Taylor Street, Penthouse 11-A
Fort Worth, Texas 76102

P.O. Box 910355
Dallas, Texas 75391-0355

6300 Ridgle_a Place, Ste 414
Fort Worth, Texas 76116

203 West Wall, Suite 612
Midland, Texas 79701

1921 Chesham Drive
Carrollton, Texas 75007

~ P.O. Box 80100

Midland, Texas 79708

P.O. Box M-2017
Hoboken, NJ 07030

02 Broad O%glélgc?ez
18

\
Houston, Texa
Houston, Texas 77057 AA 1249



Cowden "32"- Division Order

Page 3
Donald P. Schoeder, Jr. 00375000 P.O. Box 610148
Houston, Texas 77208
Melgerhel, Inc. 16500000 P.O. Box 5623
Austin, Texas 78763
Comstock Oil & Gas Inc, .18500000 : 5005 LB Freeway, Suite 1000
Attn: Dean Kaster ' Dallas, Texas 75244
Marc Briggs . 00750000 P.O. Box 579
Pleasanton, T{_exas 78064
Terry Fields .02250000 P.O. Box 222
Midland, Texas 79702
Dale W. Beikirch 01500000 P.0. Box 392
‘Midland, Texas 79702-0392
R E Glasscock 01500000 ' P.0. Box 50215
' ' Midland, Texas 79710
Remuda Operating Company 21343750 301 N. Colorado Ste 150

Midland, Texas 79701

Owners Sign Below Social Security Number or taxpayer

Number
Dt

Thriad Duprrntlars

|'g9- 6037338

itneds of Signatures:

Date 7— “5-’ fé

Be sure you show you correct mailing address and taxpayer identification number. If you are an individual, your -
SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER is you identification number; if a Company or Estate, please furnish your
employer identification number. PRINT OR TYPE - DO NOT ABBREVIATE.

=CA233
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. |
DIVISION ORDER

TO: LPC Crude Oil, Inc. . " Lease No. TX1028700
P. 0. Box 3821 | o
Midland, Texas 79702 Effective Date: June 1, 2006

The undersigned severally and not jointly certifies it is the legal owner of the interest set out
below of all the oil produced from the CONNELL A well in UPTON, County TX, operated-by
MOMENTUM ENERGY CORPORATION, described as:

E/2 NE/4 SEC 36 BLK 39 T-5-8 T&P RR CO SURVEY
From the effective date and until further written notice, and subject to the following provisions,
you , or your designated agent, are authorized to receive such production and for the proceeds
from the sale of oil in accordance with the division of interest set forth'below. (The contents of
the reverse side shall constitute a part of this division order.)
Owner No. Lease No, Interest ' . : Type
1003588.. TX1028700 .0.0205Q780 . RI

Credit To/Name.and Address.

MARJORIE T.CONNELL & EC
POBOX710 -
LAS VEGAS NV 89125-0710
,;1-"&;',.--?3’
ot ';!}} -
oo,
\“"g{ 42&5\%
SIGNATURE OF ¢
WITNESS/ATTEST: - SIGNATURE OF OWNER: -
| o D2aganisn Z Cngantdd, T
f7<f,oéi~ ,//éz//ww sy, Lonper (e zaat? Nantmaern & Z©
] /—‘ _ ‘ _ :
: NAME: :
TITLE:

YOUR TAX ID# ﬁgﬂég j 23 5 j

OWNER’S REMITTANCE ADDRESS:

** [N ACCORDANCE WITH FEDERAL LAW 31% TAX WILL BE WITHHELD IF YOU DO NOT
PROVIDE YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER OR EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER.

ECA234
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THIS AGREEMENT DOES NOT AMEND ANY LEASE COR OPERATING AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE INTEREST OWNERS AND THE LESSEE OR OPERATOR OR ANY
- OTHER CONTRACTS FOR THE PURCHASE OF OIL OR GAS.

Terms of Sale. The undersigned will be paid in accordance with the division of interests set out
on the front page. The payor shall pay all parties at the pnce agreed to by the operator for oil and
gas to be sold pursuant to this division order.

- Payment. From the effective date, payment is to be made monthly by payor’s check, based on
the division of interest for oil runs during the precedmg calendar month from the property listed
above, less taxes required by law to be deducted and remitted by payor as purchaser. Payments
of less than $100.00 may be accrued before disbursement until the total amount equals $100.00
or more, or until December 31 of each year, whichever oceurs first, Owner agrees to refund
payor any amounts attributable {o an interest or part of an inferest that owner does not own,

Indemnity. The owner agrees to indemnify and hold payor harmless from all liability resulting
from payments made o the owner in accordance with such division of interest, including but not
limited to attorney’s fees or judgments in connection with any suit that affects the owner’s
interest to which payor is made a paity.

Dispute: Withholding of Funds. If a suit is filed that affects the interest of the owner, written
notice shall be givento payor by the owner together with a copy of the complaint or petition
filed. In the event of a claim of a dispute that affects title to the division of interest credited
herein, payor is authorized to withhold:payments accruing to such interest, without interest
unless otherwise required by applicable statute, until the ciaim or dispute is settled.

Termination. Termination of this agreement is effective on the first day of the month that begins
after the 30" day of the written notice of termination is recewed by either party.

Notices. The owner agrees to notify payor in writing of any changes in the division of interest,
including changes of interest contingent on payment of money or expiration of time.

No change of interest is binding on payor until the recorded copy of the instrument of
change or documents satisfactorily evidencing such change are furnished to payor at the time the
change occurs. _

. Any change of interest shall be made effective on the first day of the month following
receipt of such notice by payor.

Any correspondence regarding this agreement shall be furnished to the addresses listed
above unless otherwise advised by either party.

In addition to the legal rights provided by the terms and provisions of this Division
Order, an owner may have certain statutory. fights under the laws of this state (where the subject
property is located).

ECA235
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